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Dates To Remember

July 1, 1994

December 1, 1994

March 22, 1995

March 28, 1995

April 1, 1995

April 15, 1995

May 1, 1995

May 9, 1995

June 30, 1995

Fiscal year begins.

Last day to pay final installment on 1993 property taxes

without interest penalty

Filing period for elected office begins; ends March 31,

1995.

Annual Meeting, Merrimack Village District.

All property, both real and personal, assessed to owner of

record this date.

Last day to file Current Use applications per RSA 79-A5.

Last day for veterans to file permanent application for

tax exemption (green card). Applies only to those who
have not previously applied to Merrimack per RSA 72:33.

Last day for filing exemption for elderly, blind, handi-

capped and tax-exempt properties, and for special asses-

ment of residences in industrial or commercial zone per

RSA 75:11.

Timber Tax Report of Cut due.

Dog Licenses expire.

Annual Town Meeting.

Fiscal year ends.
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Introduction

This annual report of the Town of Merrimack has been compiled through the ef-

forts ofyour local public officials, to serve as a permanent record of the past year. We
hope that you will find it interesting and informative.

Merrimack's 1992 annual report was again recognized by the New Hampshire Mu-
nicipal Association, for the fifth consecutive year, for its excellence, accuracy, cre-

ativity and clarity. It received the second place award, competing against towns with

populations of 7,501 and higher. It is printed entirely on recycled paper. The cost to

produce the town report for the past three years has steadily declined.

We welcome your questions and comments regarding any of the information con-

tained in this report. Please contact us or our staff at 424-2331.

The Merrimack Board of Selectmen

Richard E. Dumont

Robert W. Brundige

Edward J. Silva

Leonard C. Worster

William R. Cote



ONE HUNDRED YEARS AGO . .

.

In 1 893, the Board of Selectmen of the Town of Merrimack consisted of William P.

Melvin, George E. Patterson and Williams D. Mitchel. Town operating expenses

for the year ending March 1, 1893 totalled $9,376.96. The town accounts were ex-

amined and found to be correctly cast and properly vouched by George W. Darrah

and Daniel Jones, Auditors of Merrimack.

According to Town Clerk George P. Butterfield, there were 8 births, 3 marriages,

and 22 deaths registered in the Town of Merrimack in the year ending December

31, 1893.

Tax Collector Frank P. Jones collected $6,242.67 in taxes as of March 1, 1893.

Town Treasurer Charles S. Nesmith reported that the total indebtedness of the

town as of March 1, 1893 was $1,950.16.

The town elected as Library Trustees the Reverend E.A. Keep, Henry A. Harris,

and W.W. Pillsbury, and voted the sum of $25.00 for books, with which 61 volumes

were purchased. The library was opened to the public on January 1, 1893. Expenses

incurred for supplies, insurance and express were paid by the town. The balance of

the library's finances as of March 1, 1893 was $.09.

The Merrimack School Board was comprised of Henry A. Harris, Herbert A. Porter

and James P. Walker. School operating expenses for the year ending March 1, 1893

amounted to $2,684.82.

These statistics were obtained from the Annual Report of the Selectmen, Treasurer

and Board of Education of the Town of Merrimack for the Year ending March 1,

1893, published by the Telegraph Publishing company, Book and Job Printers,

Nashua, N.H.



In Memoriam

George R. Rivet

May 18, 1928— January 1, 1993



In Memoriam

William J. Drohan
Merrimack Department of Public Works

Equipment Operator II

September 29, 1931 —May 14, 1993



In Memoriam

Judge Charles E Morrill

July 2, 1932 — November 10, 1993



In Memoriam

Donald R. Dwyer
October 9, 1925 —November 11, 1993

Selectman 1975 — 1980
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Retirement

Robert R, Morrill

Town Clerk/Tax Collector

March 10, 1969— June 30, 1993

n
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Merrimack Town Warrant
The State of New Hampshire

To the inhabitants of the Town of Merrimack in the

County of Hillsborough in said state, qualified to vote
in town affairs:

You are hereby notified that the annual meeting of the

Town of Merrimack will be held at the Mastricola Middle
School All-Purpose Room on Baboosic Lake Road in said

Merrimack on Tuesday, May 10, 1994, at 7:00 o Tclock

in the forenoon for the choice of town officers elected

by official ballot and other action required to be inserted

on said official ballot. The polls for the election of town
officers and other action required to be inserted on said

ballot will open on said date at 7:00 o'clock in the

forenoon and will not close earlier than 8:00 o'clock

in the evening.

You are hereby notified that the second session of the

annual meeting of the Town of Merrimack will be held

at the Mastricola Middle School All-Purpose Room on
Baboosic Lake Road in Merrimack on Thursday, May
12, 1994, at 7:00 o'clock in the evening to act on the

matters not to be voted on by official ballot.

Article 1. To choose all necessary town officers for

the ensuing year. (Vote by official ballot)

Article 2. To choose all necessary school district

officers for the ensuing year. (Vote by
official ballot)

Article 3. Are you in favor of the adoption of

Amendment No. 1 as proposed by the

Planning Board for the Town Zoning
Ordinance as follows:

Amend Section 1 PURPOSE AND
DEFINITIONS, with one (1) amendment,

13



Article 4,

to clarify that there are definitions of
terms found at locations in addition to

Section 1.02, namely at 2.02.8, 2.02.11,

and 17.02. (Vote by official ballot)

Are you in favor of the adoption of

Amendment No. 2 as proposed by the

Planning Board for the Town Zoning
Ordinance s follows:

Amend Section 2 ESTABLISHMENT OF
DISTRICTS, with two (2) amendments,
to clarify that the Industrial use "Enclosed
Service and Repair" includes automotive
vehicles; and to add a definition of

"Recreational Vehicle" and how such
vehicles shall be stored within the 100-year
A-Zone Flood Hazard Area. (Vote by
official ballot)

Article 5. Are you in favor of the adoption of

Amendment No. 3 as proposed by the

Planning Board for the Town Zoning
Ordinance as follows:

Article 6

Amend Section 3 LOT AND YARD
REGULATIONS, with four (4) amendments,
to change the status of nonconforming
lots, to reference the state laws (NHRSAs)
regarding site plan approvals, to set a date
certain for setback compliance, and to

regulate septic systems on sites with

wetlands. (Vote by official ballot)

Are you in favor of the adoption of

Amendment No. 4 as proposed by the

Planning Board for the Town Zoning
Ordinance as follows:

Amend Section 8 ZONING BOARD OF

14



Article 7

ADJUSTMENT, with one (1) amendment,
to clarify that a building permit shall be
obtained within nine months from the

Building Inspector in order to validate

the action of the Zoning Board. (Vote

by official ballot)

Are you in favor of the adoption of

Amendment No. 5 as proposed by the

Planning Board for the Town Zoning
Ordinance as follows:

Article 8

Article 9

Amend Section 17 SIGNS, with eight (8)

amendments, to clarify the definition of

"Flashing" signs, to delete regulation of

"Mobile" signs and add regulation of

"Portable" signs, to clarify the definition

of a "Sign", to clarify the location of

"Subdivision Identification" signs, to

establish the frequency of sign display

changes, to delete the definition of "Mobile"

signs and add the definition of "Portable"

signs, to delete "Mobile" sign regulation,

and to allow "Portable" signs with conditions

in "Commercial" and "Industrial" zones
both with one and with more than one
principal activity. (Vote by official ballot)

To see if the town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of fifteen million

one hundred twenty five thousand one
hundred eighty two dollars ($15,125,182)

for general town operations and charges.

(See budget detail for more information)

(Recommended by the Budget Committee)

To see if the town will vote to rescind

that part of Warrant Article 20 passed
by the 1986 Annual Town Meeting which
designates the Board of Selectmen as agents

15



for, or to act on anything relative to the
Capital Reserve Fund for the purpose of

reappraisal of the real estate in the town
for tax assessment purposes; thus requiring

town meeting approval for the withdrawal
of monies from said fund. (By petition)

Article 10. To see if the town will vote per RSA 35:15

to authorize the withdrawal of up to three
hundred fifty thousand dollars ($350,000)
from the capital reserve fund created for

the reappraisal of the real estate in the

town, for the purpose of conducting a
complete reappraisal of real estate in the

town as of April 1, 1995, or take any other
action relative thereto. (By petition) (Not
recommended by the Budget Committee)
(Not recommended by the Board of

Selectmen)

Article 11. To see if the town will vote to establish

a Sewer Extension Capital Reserve Fund
pursuant to the provisions of RSA Chapter
35 for the purpose of planning, designing

and constructing sewers, including land

acquisition, in various locations throughout
the Town; to raise and appropriate the

sum of one hundred thirty five thousand
dollars ($135,000) to be placed in such

fund, said sum to be in addition to any
federal, state, or private funds made
available therefor and in addition to any
sewer connection fees and other revenue
related thereto; authorize the Board of

Selectmen to contract for and accept any
grant or grants of federal, state, or private

aid that may become available in connection
with said purpose; to permit said grants

and related revenue to be deposited to

said fund; and to designate the Board of

Selectmen as agents to expend; or to take

any other action relative thereto.

(Recommended by Board of Selectmen)
(Recommended by Budget Committee)
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Article 12. To see if the town will vote to establish

a Sidewalk and Bike Path Capital Reserve
Fund pursuant to the provisions of RSA
Chapter 35 for the purpose of constructing

sidewalks and bike paths; raise and
appropriate the sum of twenty five thousand
dollars ($25,000) to be placed in such fund,

said sum to be in addition to any federal,

state, or private funds made available

therefor and in addition to any other

revenue related thereto; authorize the

Board of Selectmen to contract for and
accept any grant or grants of federal, state,

or private aid that may become available

in connection with said purpose; to permit
said grants and related revenue to be
deposited to said fund; and to designate

the Board of Selectmen as agents to expend;

or to take any other action relative thereto.

(Recommended by Board of Selectmen)
(Recommended by Budget Committee)

Article 13. To see if the town will vote to establish

a Bridge Capital Reserve Fund pursuant
to the provisions of RSA Chapter 35 for

the purpose of planning, designing, and
constructing bridge replacement and
rehabilitation projects, including right-of-

way acquisition and pertinent approach
roadway construction and rehabilitation

work; raise and appropriate the sum of

twenty thousand dollars ($20,000) to be
placed in such fund, said sum to be in

addition to any federal, state, or private

funds made available therefor and in

addition to any and other revenue related

thereto; authorize the Board of Selectmen
to contract for and accept any grant or

grants of federal, state, or private aid
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that may become available in connection
with said purpose; to permit said grants
and related revenues to be deposited to

said fund; and to designate the Board of

Selectmen as agents to expend; or to act
on anything relative thereto.

(Recommended by the Board of Selectmen)
(Recommended by the Budget Committee)

Article 14. To see if the town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of twelve thousand
five hundred dollars ($12,500) for the

purpose of performing capital improvements
to the Merrimack Adult Community Center,
as follows: $10,000 for the renovation
of the kitchen, and $2,500 for an emergency
generator, or act on anything relative

thereto. (Recommended by the Board
of Selectmen) (Recommended by the Budget
Committee)

Article 15. To see if the town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of twelve thousand
three hundred seventy nine dollars ($12,379),

half of which six thousand one hundred
eighty nine dollars ($6,189) will come from
a Library Services Construction Act Grant
and the balance of six thousand one hundred
ninety dollars ($6,190) to come through
taxes to set up a Local Area Network (LAN)
in the library and increase the CD-ROM
technology available to library users. (By

Petition) (Recommended by the Board
of Selectmen) (Recommended by the Budget
Committee)

Article 16. To see if the town will vote to raise and
appropriate the sum of eleven thousand
one hundred fifty three dollars ($11,153)

to staff the library so that it can be open

18



on Sunday afternoons from the middle
of September until the middle of June.

(By petition) (Recommended by the Board
of Selectmen) (Recommended by the Budget
Committee)

Article 17. To see if the town will vote to establish

a Capital Reserve Fund under the provisions

of RSA 35:1 for the replacement of the

library roof and to raise and appropriate
the sum of ten thousand dollars ($10,000)

to be placed in this fund, and further, to

designate the library trustees as agents
to administer said fund, or act upon anything
relative thereto. (By petition)

(Recommended by the Board of Selectmen)
(Recommended by the Budget Committee)

Article 18. To see if the town will vote to adopt a

conservation area ordinance pursuant to

the provisions of RSA 31:39(I)(a) to regulate,

protect and preserve conservation areas
in the Town of Merrimack or take any
other action relative thereto:

ORDINANCE TO REGULATE
MERRIMACK CONSERVATION AREAS

In accordance with the provisions of RSA
31:39-(I)(a), the Town of Merrimack hereby
adopts the following ordinance to regulate,

protect and preserve Conservation areas.

Conservation areas shall include those

properties listed in Section B of this

ordinance. In order to protect the safety

of those persons using these areas for

recreational purposes and to preserve the

tranquility of these areas, the following

regulations will apply.

19



SECTION A - REGULATIONS:

1. No person shall remain, stay or loiter

in or on any Conservation area during

the period from i hour after sunset

to i hour before sunrise, except under
the authorization of the Conservation
Commission or its designated agents.

This provision is not intended to preclude
authorized activities from occurring

outside of the prescribed times.

2. No fires on conservation areas except
as approved by the Merrimack
Conservation Commission in conjunction

with RSA 224 and with a permit issued

by the Forest Fire Warden.

3. No person shall bring or carry any glass

containers within any Conservation
area.

4. No person shall throw, leave or discard

any trash, rubbish or garbage within

any Conservation area. All trash or

refuse will be carried out by individuals.

5. No person shall use, consume, bring

or carry any alcoholic beverages or

unlawful drugs within any Conservation
area.

6. Use of vehicles within Conservation
areas:

a. No person shall park or drive any vehicle

within Conservation areas except in

specifically designated areas.

20



b. No person shall drive, operate or

maintain any motor vehicle or off

highway recreational vehicle (as defined

in RSA 215-A:1-VI) in any Conservation
area without prior authorization from
the Conservation Commission or its

designated agents, excluding Fire, Police

or Ambulance personnel for emergency
purposes.

c. Any person found violating any of the

provisions of Section 6 (above) shall

be subject to such penalties as are

described in RSA 215-A:19.

7. No person shall bring any domesticated
animal upon any Conservation area,

unless such animal is controlled by
the use of a leash, reign or is within

a cage.

8. No person shall carry upon, possess

or discharge any air powered or spring

powered gun, or any firearm within

any Conservation area. No person shall

engage in hunting or trapping animals
within any Conservation area unless

authorized to do so by the Conservation
Commission or its designated agents.

9. No person shall remove or deface any
building, equipment, tree, shrub or

flower within any Conservation area.

PENALTIES:

Any person found violating the provisions

of this ordinance may be assessed a penalty
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up to the amount set forth in N.H. RSA
31:39 III; said penalty to be placed in the

Town of Merrimack's General Fund.

SECTION B:

Areas designated as Conservation areas
shall consist of the following parcels:

1. Parcel 5C/658 commonly known as 80

Acres
2. Parcel 4B/035 commonly known as

Riverside Drive

3. Parcel 6B/087-099 commonly known
as French Court

4. Parcel 6B/085-097 commonly known
as Hitchinpost Lane

5. Parcel 6B/085-98 commonly known
as 18 Woodward Road

6. Parcel 6B/2241 commonly known as

Mitchell Street

SAVINGS CLAUSE:

If any provision of this ordinance or the

application thereof to any person or

circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity

does not affect the other provisions or

applications of this ordinance which can

be given effect without the invalid provision

or application, and to this end the provisions

of this ordinance are severable.
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Article 19. To see if the town will vote to authorize

the Board of Selectmen, as they deem
appropriate, to formally dedicate and name
various sites and recreation areas within

Wasserman Park or to take any action

relative thereto.

Article 20,

Article 21.

Article 22.

To see if the town will vote to accept the

Fire Department's organization as outlined

in the Administrative Code, Article 1,

A198-7, Officers Appointed by Town
Manager; Article XI Fire Department A198-
55, Composition of Department; A198-56,
Powers of Fire Chief; A198-57, Division

of Suppression and Rescue; Al 98-58,

Protection, Inspection and Investigation

Division; and A198-59, Ambulance Division.

To see if the town will vote, pursuant to

RSA 674:40-a, to authorize the Board of

Selectmen to accept any dedicated street

which corresponds in its location and lines

with a street shown on either a subdivision

plat or site plan approved by the Planning

Board, or on the Official Map, or on a street

plat made and adopted by the Planning

Board, provided that the Board of Selectmen
shall take no action with regard to any
proposed acceptance without first holding

a public hearing thereon. A street so

accepted shall have the status of a public

highway under RSA 229:1. This vote shall

remain in full force and effect until

rescinded by future action of an Annual
or Special Town Meeting.

Shall the town accept the provisions of

RSA 31:95-b providing that any town at

an annual meeting may adopt an article

authorizing indefinitely, until specific

23



Article 23

recission of such authority, the selectmen
to apply for, accept and expend, without
further action by the town meeting,
unanticipated money from a state, federal

or other governmental unit or a private

source which becomes available during

the fiscal year? (Recommended by the

Budget Committee)

To see if the town will vote to accept the

provisions of RSA 33:7 providing that any
town at an annual meeting may adopt an
article authorizing indefinitely, until

specific recission of such authority, the

selectmen to issue tax anticipation notes.

Article 24. To see if the town will vote pursuant to

RSA 80:80 to authorize the selectmen
to retain for public use or to sell, either

by private sale to the previous owner from
which title was obtained through tax

collector's deed or public auction, and
for such price and upon such terms as in

their judgement may seem best, any real

estate or interest therein, to which the

town has obtained or shall obtain title

by tax collector's deed for the nonpayment
of taxes, and further, that during the period

when title to said property shall be held

by the town, that the selectmen be given

authority to rent, use or administer the

same as in their judgement may seem best.

This vote shall supersede any previous

votes of the town inconsistent with the

powers conferred herein, and shall remain
in full force indefinitely, until rescinded

by future action of the town meeting.

Article 25. To see if the town will vote to accept the

provisions of RSA 202-A:4-c providing

24



that any town at an annual meeting may
adopt an article authorizing indefinitely,

until specific recission of such authority,

the public library trustees to apply for,

accept and expend money from a state,

federal or other governmental unit or a

private source which becomes available

during the fiscal year. (By petition)

(Recommended by the Budget Committee)

Given our hands and seals this twenty-fifth day of April,

in the year of Our Lord nineteen hundred and ninety-

four.

The Merrimack Board of Selectmen:

Richard E. Dumont, Chairman
Robert W. Brundige
Edward J. Silva

Leonard C. Worster
William R. Cote

***Warrant may be subject to change up to time of posting***
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= Town Budget MS-7 Form

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION

MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIVISION

P.O. Boat 457

Concord. NH 03302-0457

(003)271-3397

Fonii MS-7

BUDGET FORM FOR TOWNS WHICH HAVE ADOPTED THE
PROVISIONS OF THE MUNICIPAL BUDGET LAW

BUDGET OF THE TOWN

OF MERRIMACK N.H

Appropriations and Estimates of Revenue for the Ensuing Year January 1 . 1 9 to December 31 . 19 or for Fiscal Year

19 94 to June-311 19 3A_From July 1

IMPORTANT: Please read the new RSA 32:5 applicable to all municipalities.

It requires this budget be prepared on a "gross" basis, showing all revenues and appropriations. At least one public

hearing must be held on this budget.

When completed, a copy of the budget must be posted with the warrant. Another copy must be placed on file with the town

clerk, and a copy sent to the Department of Revenue Administration at the address above.

THIS BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE TOWN WARRANT
RSA 31:95 and 32:5

Budgej Committee: (Please^argn in ink)

-&^l» yrC\+**^

Date April 13, 1994

(Rev 1993)
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i 2 9 4 8

PURPOSE OF APPROPRIATION

(RSA31:4)
Acct
No. GENERAL GOVERNMENT

WA.
No. 1

'Actual Actual

Selectmen's
Recommended 1

Budget

&tx)g#4 CotriiT>ttt##

Expenditures Not
Ensuing Fiscal 1

(omH csnlrt

star
(Ofntt c#fTt9)

Year
(omit cents)

(omH cents)

4130 Executive

4140 Elec. Reg , A Vital Stat ij 10.280 13,688 13,688 1

4150 Financial Administration

4152 Revaluation ol Property 81 181.195 178,494 178,494
|

4 1 53 Legal Expense 8 70.900 89,000
1

88,000 1

4 1 55 Personnel Administration

4191 Planning and Zoning 8 219.716 254.267 254,267
|

4194 General Government BJdg 8 134.488 134,557 134.557 I

4 195 Cemeteries

4190 Insurance

4197 Advertising and Reg Assoc

Fire Protection Area 8 44.974 43.100 43.100 I

4199 Other General Government 8 869.003 854.361 854.961 1

PUBLIC SAFETY

4210 Police 8 2.283.609 1 2.207.123 2.207.123 1

4215 Ambulance
8j 254.982 I 249.044 249.044 1

4220 Fire Bl 1.956.494 | 1.935.168 1.935.168
4240 Building Inspection

8| 116.415 116.116 116.116
4290 Emergency Management 8 5.534 | 5,676 7.576
4299 Other Pubfc Saiety Communica. 8 248.024 1 231.605 229.205

HIGHWAYS AND STREETS

4312 Highways and Streets 8 1.429.843 I 1 1.434.240 1.434.240 I

4313 Bridges zt
4316 Street Lighting

Public Works Administration 8 124.798 123.146 123,146
|

Rqiiipmpnt Mftintpruince 8 245.073 243,816 243,816 R

SANITATION

4323 Solid Waste CoHectton

4324 Solid Waste Disposal 8 391.560 405.867 405.867
|

4326 Sewage Collection & Disposal 8 2.266.297 2.238.698 2.238.698
J

WATER DISTRIBUTION ft TREATMENT

4332 Water Services

4335 Water Treatment

HEALTH

4414 Pest Control

44 1 5 Health Agencies and Hospitals 8 106.539 106,846 112.416

WELFARE

4442 Direct Assistance 8 163.070 148.005 148.005
4444 Intergovernmental Well Pay'ts.

4445 Vendor Payments

Sub-Totals (carry to top of page 3) 11,122,794 11,012,817 11,017,487

-2-
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MS-7
1 2 3 4 s

PURPOSE OF APPROPRIATION

(Continued)
Acct.

No.

WA.
No.

'Actual Actual
Expenditures

Prior

fear
(omit c*nts)

Selectmen's
Recommended

Budget

Budget Committee

Recommended U Not
Ensuing Fiscal || Recommended

fear II (omit cents)
(omit cents)

Prior

fear
(omit cents)

Sub-Totals (from page 2)
11,122,794

|
11,012,817 11,017,487

CULTURE AND RECREATION

4520 Parks and Recreation - 8 474.904 401.194 401.194
4550 Library 8 '16 526,045 573,669 573 r669
4583 Patriotic Purposes 8 9,000 9,000 9,000
4589 Other Culture and Recreation 8 19,912 22,073 22,073

|
CONSERVATION n

4612 Purchase of Natural Resources

4619 Other Conservation 8 10,883 13,000 13,000

REDEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

. •

DEBT SERVICE

471 1 Princ -long Term Bonds & Notes 8 1.471.266 1,439,535 1,439,535
4721 Int -Long Term Bonds & Notes 8 617,611 513,098 513,098
4723 Interest on TAN 8 50 15,000 15,000
Bond Registration 8 750 350 350

CAPITAL OUTLAY

4901 Land and Improvements

4902 Mach, Veh.. & Equip.

4903 Buildings

4909 Improvements Other than Bldgs

S*»#» AttHchmr»nt 5,409,41.1 fiSI ,847 7011,808 asn,nnn

OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT
4912 To Special Revenue Fund

4913 To Capital Projects Fund

4914 To Enterprise Fund

Sewer

-

Water —
Electric —

4915 To Capital Reserve Fund 8 497.000 638 f000 638,000
4916 To Trust and Agency Funds

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 20,159,628 15,289,583 15,351,214 350,000
' Enter in these cohjmns (he numbers which were revised and approved by DRA and which appear on the prior tax rate papers.

10% LIMITATION OF APPROPRIATIONS
(SEE RSA 32:18. 19 & 21)

Please disclose the following items (to be excluded from the 10% calculation)

$ _Q Recommended Amount of Collective Bargaining Cost Items. $ J| Amount of Mandatory Water & Waste
(RSA 32: 19). Treatment Facilities. (RSA 32:21).

RSA 273-A:1.IV '"Cost Item" means any benefit acquired through collective bargaining whose implementation requires an appropriation by the

legislative body of the public employer with which negotiations are being conducted."

* * Amounts Not Recommended by Selectmen * *

These amounts are not included in the recommended column.

Warrant Article #

10
$ Amount
350.000

Warrant Article # $ Amount

29



SOURCE OF REVENUE

Acct.
No. TAXES

WA.

Actual

(oiwlt onto) (omit cents)

MS-7
3 4

SstoiUnen's H Estimated
Budget RmmM

Ensuing Fiscal I Ensuing Fiscal
*e» fear

(omH cants) | (omW cants)

3120 Land Uss Changs Taxes

3180 Resident Taxes

3185 Yield Taxes A*sm -4.59JL 8.S00
3186 Payment In Lieu of Taxes 315.132 378.91? 378.9*5
3 1 89 Other Taxes (Specify Bank Slock Tax Amtg Q 58.363 ^8.363 58 r363
3190 Interest & Penalties on Delinquent Taxes 5S« r 100 558.100 558.100

Inventory Penalties

LICENSES, PERMITS AND FEES

3210 Business Licenses end Permits

3220 Motor vehicle Permrt Fees 1.600. POP XJJOJLQQIL 1.600.000
3230 Building Permits 97.9051 105.000 105.000
3290 Other Licenses. Permits & Fees JULfilll _1JUU883_ 101.893,

FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

3319 Other 69^0511 -52*627. _52*127_
FROM STATE

3351 Shared Revenue 642,8641 JB3JUMML 690.000
3353 Highway Block Grant 307,975 294.787 291.787
3354 Water Pollution Grants JJE8.751 J22JKB. JL22J19JL
3355 Housing and Community Development

3356 State & Federal Forest Land Reimbursement

3357 Flood Control Reimbursement

3359 Other (Including Railroad Tax) JU8M JJUOL 13.824
FROM OTHER GOVERNMENT

3379 Intergovernmental Revenues

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

3401 Income from Departments 4.079.890 3.780.817 I 3.780.817
3409 Other Charges

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

3501 Sale Pj Municipal Property _20JU50fl 25.000 25.000
3502 Interesl on Investments _225^50fl 210.500 I 210.500
3509 Other 51 .657 .212*142. 232.442

INTERFUND OPERATING TRANSFERS IN

3912 Special Revenue Fund

39 1 3 Capital Projects Fund

3914 Enterprise Fund

Water —
Electric

3915 Capital Reserve Fund 350.000
39 1 6 Trust and Agency Funds

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
3,OOP 3 f000

3934 Proc. from Long Term Notes & Bonds 4,9s»,nnn
General Fund Balance

Unreserved Fund Balance

Fund Balance Voted From Surplus

Fund Balance to be Retained

Fund Balance Remaining to Reduce Taxes

For Municipal Use

< $ >

13,452,702 8,235,870 8,585,870TOTAL REVENUES AND CREDITS

'Enter in this column the numbers which were revised and approved by DBA and which appear on the MS-4 form.

Total Appreciations 15.701, 214

Less: Amount of Estimated Revenues. Exclusive of Property Taxes

Amount of Taxes to be Raised (Exclusive of School and County Taxes)

BUDGET OF THE TOWN OF

8,585,870

7,115,3^

MERRIMACK N.H
-4
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SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE - NBA

(RSA 32:18, 19, t 32:21)

VERSION 01

Rev. 1993

LOCAL GOVERNMENTAL UNIT:
Town of Merrimack

FISCAL YEAR ENDING:
June 30, 1995

1 . Total recommended by Budget Com.

RECOMMENDED AMOUNT

15.351.2H*

LESS EXCLUSIONS:

2. Principle: Long-Tera Bonds I Notes 1,^39,535

3. Interest: Long-Tera Bonds t Notes
513.098

4. Capital Outlays Funded Froa Long-Tera

Bonds t Notes per RSA 33:8 t 33:7-b.

S. Mandatory Assessments

6. TOTAL EXCLUSIONS (Sua of rows 2-5)
1,952,633

7. AMOUNT RECOMMENDED LESS RECOMMENDED

EXCLUSION AMOUNTS (Line 1 less line 6>
13,398,581

8. Line 7 tiaes 1(K
1,339,858

THIS IS THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE INCREASE OTHER THAN COLLECTIVE BARGAINING ITEMS

:aba1
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Budget Message

To: Citizens of Merrimack, New Hampshire

From: Merrimack Board of Selectmen and
Richard S. Borden Jr., Town Manager

Subject: 1994-95 Annual Budget Request

Date: April 25, 1994

Pursuant to New Hampshire RSA 32:5, the proposed
Town of Merrimack budget for fiscal year July 1,

1994-June 30, 1995, is attached. In light of the

extremely difficult times, we have proposed a municipal

operating budget for next year that is less than the

current operating budget. It is felt that holding the

line, or even reducing the budget, is a top priority as

a result of the lack of growth in our tax base. In fact,

our total tax base has been declining as a result of tax

appeals that have reduced some major assessments.

There are many infrastructure needs that we would
like to address more aggressively; however, we all felt

it was necessary to forego all but the absolutely essential

work required this year.

Your department heads have all worked long and hard
to develop budgets that are very conservative in terms
of the bare minimum needs to carry out their operating

departments' functions. Throughout the various

departments no general wage increases have been
budgeted for our employees, both unaffiliated and
unionized groups. The police union has already settled

its contract with no general wage increase and the

other unions are still at the bargaining table.
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The following pie chart depicts the key areas of our
budgetary expenditures. Similarly, the revenue pie

chart portrays the town's revenues by major categories.

1994-95 OPERATING BUDGET BY OBJECT

Wages end benefits

$8,525,933 56.4%

wffifaZX^Ss^X] Road mntc & welff

lllp'ipq / $602,796 4.0%

Debt service \ r^^ij
$1,967,983 13.0% \|

Other l

$1,181,311 7.8%

i^P^ V Sewer /landfill oper
asBSSeâ S $731,547 4.8%

_^>^ Utilities.fuel.ins

$983,683 6.5%
Capital outlay

$1,131,929 7.5%

Operating Budget

You will note from the chart that, like all municipalities,

Merrimack has a significant amount of its budget
consumed by wages and benefits. As pointed out, we
have controlled this area by not budgeting for general

wage increases for any of our employees. Additionally,

by converting our health insurance plans to an HMO,
we have an annualized savings of $210,000. The savings

is a result of a major initiative by our employees.
Representatives of unionized and non-unionized groups

sat on an inhouse committee to evaluate alternate

proposals and agreed upon the Healthsource HMO plan,

which is generating tremendous savings. All these people

deserve our thanks and compliments for a fine effort

on behalf of our taxpayers.
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1. Personnel

As a result of the measures outlined above, total

personnel costs reduced by $147,074 from
$8,673,007 to a proposed $8,525,933, or a reduction

of 1.7%.

2. Capital Outlay

Our capital outlay increased from $956,413 to

a proposed $1,131,929, an increase of $175,516,
or 18.496. It should be noted here that our basic

capital outlay for equipment has been reduced.

The increase in the account is due to the $250,000
that has been included for a townwide property
revaluation. In our view, it is essential to revalue

the property on an equitable townwide basis.

3. Debt Service

Debt Service reduced from $2,089,677 to

$1,967,983, for a total reduction of $121,694,
or 5.8%. This is a result of bonds being paid up
and less interest being required to be applied

to the remaining principal balances.

4. Estimated Revenues

The chart depicts the breakdown of our revenues
by major categories. There is one significant

item that should be explained here. Total revenues
are proposed to decline some $5,000,000. In the

main, this is a result of the elimination of the

one-time cost of $4,950,000 for the sludge

composting facility. On the revenue side, everyone
should be reminded that the tax overlay account
will very likely have to be increased substantially

when we apply for our tax rate to cover tax
abatements and appeals.
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1994-95 ESTIMATED REVENUE BY SOURCE

Intergovernmental
$1,112,967 6.1%

Licenses & Permits
$1,806,893 98%

Property Tax
$9,707,621 52.9%

Other Taxes
$1,003,888 5.5%

Other Sources
$946,963 5.2%

User Charges
$3,780,817 20.6%

5. Warrant Articles

Warrant articles requiring funding have been
submitted as follows:

a) Article 8: $15,125,182, for general town
operations, recommended by the Budget
Committee.

b) Article 10: $350,000, for conducting a
complete reappraisal of real estate in the town,

by petition, not recommended by the Budget
Committee or the Board of Selectmen.

c) Article 11: $135,000, to establish a Sewer
Extension Capital Reserve Fund, recommended
by the Board of Selectmen and the Budget
Committee.

d) Article 12: $25,000, to establish a Sidewalk
and Bike Path Capital Reserve Fund, recommended
by the Board of Selectmen and the Budget
Committee.
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e) Article 13: $12,500, for capital improvements
to the senior citizens center, recommended by
the Board of Selectmen and the Budget Committee.

f) Article 14: $20,000, to establish a Bridge

Capital Reserve Fund, recommended by the Board
of Selectmen and the Budget Committee.

g) Article 15: $12,379, to set up a local area
network in the library, by petition, recommended
by the Board of Selectmen and the Budget
Committee.

h) Article 16: $11,153, to staff the library so

it can be open on Sunday afternoons from
mid-September until mid-June, by petition,

recommended by the Board of Selectmen and
the Budget Committee.

i) Article 17: $10,000, to establish a Capital

Reserve Fund for the replacement of the library

roof, by petition, recommended by the Board
of Selectmen and the Budget Committee.

Our annual proposed town budget will be reviewed in

detail and voted on during the business portion of the

town meeting on Thursday, May 12, at 7:00 p.m. in

the Mastricola Middle School All-Purpose Room. Your
elected and administrative officials ask your
cooperation, support and favorable consideration of

the budget request. If anyone has any questions

pertaining to the proposed budget, please feel free

to call anyone on the town hall staff, or any of the

selectmen or budget committee members.
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Annual Town Meeting

Merrimack, New Hampshire

First Session

May 11, 1993

Town Moderator Lynn Christensen opened the polls for voting at the Mastricola

Middle School All-Purpose Room on Baboosic Lake Road in Merrimack, New Hamp-

shire, at 7:00 AM., and announced that absentee ballots would be processed through-

out the day. Moderator Christensen closed the polls at 8:00 P.M. The following

were elected:

1 . Town Offices

Selectmen (3 years)

William R. "Bill" Cote

Library Trustees (3 years)

Ellen C. Dube
Christine Mauser

Trust Fund Trustee (3 years)

David L. Christensen

Budget Committee (3 years)

Stanley R. Heinrich

Charlotte M. Ring

Mitchell S. Twardosky

Lon S. Woods

2. School Offices

School Board (3 years)

"Chris" Ager

School Planning and Building Committee (3 years)

Michele S. Eberle

Christopher LaTerza
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Annual Town Meeting
Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire

Second Session

May 13, 1993

The second session of the 1993 Annual Town Meeting convened at 7:05 P.M. in the

All-Purpose Room of the Mastricola Middle School on Baboosic Lake Road in Mer-i

rimack, New Hampshire, with Town Moderator Lynn Christensen presiding. Mod-
erator Christensen led the Pledge of Allegiance. A moment of silence was observed

for former Town Manager Daniel C. Aver, who passed away on December 17, 1992. 1

The invocation was given by the Reverend Patricia Henking of the Faith Episcopal

Church. Moderator Christensen introduced Chairman of the Board of Selectmen

Robert Brundige, who introduced Board members Edward Silva, Leonard Worster,

Richard Dumont, John Francis, and Selectmen-elect William Cote. Chairman Brun-

dige expressed gratitude to Administrative Services Officer James Pitts and Execu-

tive Assistant Patricia Blaisdell for their assistance during a very difficult year. Chair-

man Brundige then presented a plaque to outgoing selectman John Francis. Admin-

istrative Service Officer James Pitts thanked all department heads and residents of

the town for their support during his tenure as Acting Town Manager. Moderator

Christensen introduced Richard S. Borden Jr. and welcomed him as Merrimack's

new Town Manager. Mr. Borden introduced his department heads. Budget Com-
mittee Chairman Tom Mahon introduced the members of his Committee. Modera-

tor Christensen announced the ground rules of this annual meeting, and proceeded

to the warrant articles.

ARTICLE 3. TO SEE IFTHE TOWN WILLVOTE TO RAISE AND APPRO-
PRIATE THE SUM OF FOUR MILLION NINE HUNDRED FIFTY THOU-
SAND DOLLARS ($4,950,000) FOR THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING
AN ORGANIC WASTE COMPOSTING FACILITY AT THE MERRIMACK
WASTEWATERTREATMENT PLANTANDTO RAISE SAIDSUM BYTHE
ISSUANCE OF BONDS OR SERIAL NOTES AND/OR BY PARTICIPATING
INTHE STATE OFNEW HAMPSHIRE POLLUTIONCONTROL REVOLV-
ING LOAN FUND IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTERS 33 AND 486 OF
THE NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED AND ANY
AMENDMENTS THERETO; TO AUTHORIZE THE BOARD OF SELECT-
MEN TO ISSUE, NEGOTIATE, SELL AND DELIVER SAID BONDS,
NOTES, AND LOAN AGREEMENTS AND TO DETERMINE THE RATE
OF INTEREST THEREON AND THE MATURITY AND OTHER TERMS
THEREOF; TO AUTHORIZE THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN TO APPLY

>

FOR, OBTAIN AND ACCEPT ANY GRANTS OF FEDERAL, STATE OR<

OTHER AID THAT MAY BECOME AVAILABLE IN CONNECTION WITH
THE AFORESAID PURPOSE; AND TO AUTHORIZE THE BOARD OF SE-

LECTMEN TO TAKE ANY OTHER ACTION OR TO PASS ANY OTHER}
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VOTE RELATIVE THERETO.

Moderator Lynn Christensen read Article 3 aloud. It was moved by Chairman of the

Board ofSelectmen Robert Brundige, and seconded by Selectman Richard Dumont,

to approve the article as read. Chairman Brundige then yielded the floor to Director

of Public Works Earle M. Chesley who showed a brief slide presentation on com-

posting to the audience, and explained the financing for this project, emphasizing

that it will have no impact on the property tax rate and that it is a very cost effective

solution to our town's sludge disposal problem. In fact, he stated that it would cost

considerably more to have our sludge trucked away. Questions were then taken from

the town meeting floor. Noah Mandell of Naticook Road spoke against the article,

expressing concern with chemicals and toxic substances that could be contained in

the compost. Robert Lynch of Raymond Drive inquired as to how this does not

affect the tax rate. DPW Director Chesley explained that the sewer is self-support-

ing through users fees, and the recent sewer rate increase was two-fold in that it also

addressed the cost of the composting facility. He added that this is one of the last

improvements that will need to be made to the treatment facility. Chuck Mower of

Depot Street, who is a member of the School Board and the Watershed Council,

spoke in support ofthe article. Nancy Toms, Chairman ofthe Merrimack Solid Waste

Advisory Committee also spoke in support ofthe article, as did Committee member
Ted Parmenter. Selectman-elect William Cote spoke in support of the article, call-

ing it a cost-effective solution , the alternative to which is much more expensive.

Thomas Mahon, Chairman of the Merrimack Budget Committee spoke in favor of

the article, which had been recommended by his Committee. Linda Theroux of

Patten Road spoke in favor of the article. Diane Miller of Hilton Drive and a mem-
ber ofthe Budget Committee spoke in favor of the article, stating that composting is

our best option because the end product in marketable. Dean Puzzo of Rainier Court

pointed out that one selectman did not support this article and he would like to

know why. Selectman Ed Silva stated that he did not support the article because he

felt that there were a lot of alternatives that were not brought to the Board's atten-

tion and studied; that we need to direct our attention to the moisture content of the

sludge; and we have to look at why that much compost exists at the treatment facil-

ity. Finally, he stated that the Board has set no direction as to what they will do if

this article is defeated. An unidentified voter asked where the odor goes. DPW Di-

rector Chesley replied that it is sent through a filter. Philip Hayes stated that he

heard a rumor that Anheuser-Busch was going to close down one or more of its brew-

eries, and wondered if anyone knew if Merrimack's facility would be affected. Rod
Hansen, the Plant Manager of Anheuser-Busch was present in the audience, and

confirmed that the Merrimack brewery would not be closed. An unidentified voter

asked that the question be called. Moderator Christensen called the question at 8:25

P.M., instructed the voters to use Ballot #1 on their pink perforated sheet of six

ballots, reminded the voters that a two-thirds vote was required to pass this article,

and the voting began. The polls remained open for one hour, until 9:30 P.M. The
results of the voting were as follows: 278 yes votes and 71 no votes. The Moderator
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stated that 234 yes votes were required for this article to pass and she declared that

Article #3 had carried in the affirmative.

ARTICLE 4. TO SEE IF THE TOWN WILL VOTE TO RAISE AND APPRO-
PRIATE THE SUM OF FIFTEEN MILLION ONE HUNDREDSEVENTEEN
THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED TWENTY-EIGHT DOLLARS ($15,117,128)

FOR GENERAL TOWN OPERATIONS AND CHARGES. (SEE BUDGET
DETAIL FOR MORE INFORMATION)

A motion was made by Budget Committee Chairman Thomas Mahon, seconded by ,

Budget Committee Vice Chairman Peter Karam, to approve Article 4 as read. Dean

Puzzo of Rainier Court questioned funding for a revaluation, asked what the plans

were for another revaluation, and what the impact will be. Chairman Brundige re-

plied that the town is accumulating funds because we are anticipating a revaluation.

Assessor Dominic D'Antoni explained that since the revaluation in 1989 there was a

decline in property values, and whether we have a full or partial revaluation will

depend on what happens in 1995. Selectman Silva stated that there would be a re-

valuation in 1995. Selectman Dumont stated that the Board is looking at a full town-

wide revaluation. Chairman Brundige added that the Board has not yet voted on

that, nor have they formally discussed it. The Moderator called the question on

Article 4 and the motion carried and was so declared.

ARTICLE 5. TO SEE IFTHE TOWN WILL VOTE TO RAISE AND APPRO-
PRIATE THE SUM OF NINETEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($19,000) FOR
THE PURPOSE OF CONSTRUCTING A SIDEWALK ALONG BISHOP
STREET AND MCELWAIN STREET, FROM MASTRICOLA MIDDLE
SCHOOLTOTHE HIGH SCHOOL. (BY PETITION) (RECOMMENDED BY
THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

A motion was made by petitioner Betty Overton of McElwain Street and duly sec-

onded, to approve this article as read. Mrs. Overton explained that the need for a

sidewalk on McElwain Street was for the safety of students walking to and from the

schools in the area. Bob Hamm, Chairman ofthe School Board, spoke in favor of the

article, as did Planning Board Chairman Nelson Disco and the Board of Selectmen.

Mr. LeFabvre of Bishop Street spoke against the article, stating that the street is too

narrow as it is, and sidewalks will make it even narrower. Mr. McFarland was also

opposed to it. Stanley Heinrich spoke in favor of the article and asked that the ques-

tion be called. Moderator Christensen called the question and the motion carried

and was so declared.

ARTICLE 6. TO SEE IFTHE TOWN WILL VOTE TO RAISE AND APPRO-
PRIATE THE SUM OF SEVENTY THREE THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED I

DOLLARS ($73,500)TO CONTINUE THE ASPHALTING OF PARKHURST
AND WOODWARD ROADS AS THEY MEET. (BY PETITION) (RECOM-
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; MENDED BY THE BUDGET COMMITTEE)

A motion was made by petitioner Lawrence Springstead of Parkhurst Road, sec-

onded by Stanley Heinrich, to approve this article as read. Mr. Springstead explained

that this unpaved road creates a lot of dust in the summer, and mud and potholes in

the winter; having it paved would make it easier for the residents. Selectman-elect

William Cote spoke in favor of this article, as did Bill Klein. James Woodward of

Dwire Street and John Gibson of Baboosic Lake Road felt that paving it will create

a speedway. Linda Wetherbee ofParkhurst Road, Stanley Heinrich, and Selectman

Brundige spoke in favor ofArticle 6. The question was called and the motion carried

in the affirmative and was so declared.

ARTICLE 7. TO SEE IF THE TOWN WILL VOTE, IN ACCORDANCE
WITH RSA 31:95-B, TO AUTHORIZE THE BOARD OF SELECTMEN TO
APPLY FOR, ACCEPT, AND EXPEND MONETARY GRANTS FROM
OTHERGOVERNMENTAL UNITS ORFROM PRIVATE SOURCESWHICH
BECOME AVAILABLE DURING THE FISCAL YEAR, PROVIDED THAT
SUCH GRANTSWILL BE USED FORPURPOSES FORWHICHTHETOWN
MAY LEGALLY APPROPRIATE MONEY AND THAT THE BOARD OF SE-

LECTMEN HOLD A RELATED PUBLIC HEARING PRIOR TO THE RE-

CEIPT AND EXPENDITURE OF SUCH GRANTS.

A motion was made by Selectman Dumont and seconded by Selectman Silva, to

approve Article 7 as read. Selectman Dumont explained that this is an annual house-

keeping article that authorizes the selectmen to approve the receipt and expendi-

ture of unanticipated funds after holding a public hearing relative to same. The
moderator called the question and the motion carried in the affirmative and was so

declared.

ARTICLE 8. TO SEE IFTHE TOWN WILL VOTE TO MODIFYCHAPTER
92 OF THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF MERRIMACK ENTITLED AMUSE-
MENT DEVICES, AS CURRENTLY WRITTEN AND SUBSTITUTING
THEREFOR THE FOLLOWING:

92-1 Definitions

Amusement Device - Any machine which, upon the insertion of a coin,

slug, token or similar object, may be operated by the public generally for

use as a game, entertainment or amusement, whether or not registering a

score. It shall include such devices as electronic games, pinball machines,

skill ball, mechanical grab machines and all games, operations or transac-

tions similar thereto under whatever name they may be designated. The
term does not include vending machines in which are not incorporated gam-

ing or amusement features, nor does the term include any coin operated

musical devices or rides.
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Person, Firm, Corporation or Association

Include any of those entities or combinations thereof owning an amuse-

ment device or maintaining an establishment where one ( 1 ) or more amuse-

ment devices are available for use by the public or having control over such

establishment.

92-2 Number of Devices Restricted

No person, firm, corporation or association shall display for public

patronage or keep for public operation any amusement devices without

first obtaining a license from the Board of Selectmen of Merrimack. Any

firm, person, corporation or association may request permission to keep for

public operation amusement devices by submitting an application to the

Merrimack Board of Selectmen; however, the total number may not ex-

ceed 25 amusement devices. The Selectmen shall hold a public hearing on

the application pursuant to RSA Chapter 43 and shall have the authority to

establish reasonable condition for the issuance of a license under this ordi-

nance as they may deem appropriate.

92-2.1 Pre-existing Uses

All persons that have lawfully displayed for public patronage or

kept for public operation five or less amusement devices at each separate

business or premise continuously for the twelve (12) months preceding the

effective date of this ordinance shall within thirty (30) days of the effective

date of this ordinance submit an application to the Merrimack Board of

Selectmen in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance to obtain a

license from the Board of Selectmen.

92-3 Gambling Devices Prohibited

Nothing in this ordinance shall in any way be construed to autho-

rize, license or permit any gambling or gambling devices not permitted by

state law.

92-4 License Denial

The Board of Selectmen may deny the application for a license

herein for good cause shown or on the basis of previous violations by the

applicant or their agents of the terms of this ordinance.

92-5 License Term

Any license issued pursuant to this ordinance shall expire on the

first day of July of each year and may be renewed only after compliance

with the provisions of this ordinance.

92-6 License Required

The application for an amusement device license shall, in addi-

tion to such information as may be required by the Board of Selectmen or

its designee, contain no less than the following:
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i a) the name and address of the applicant, and, if a firm, corporation, part-

nership or association, the principal officers thereof and their addresses;

b) A full description of the premises, including the character of the busi-

ness as carried on at such place;

c) a general description of the type of device or devices to be licensed,

including the number of proposed amusement devices and their location

on said premises.

. 92-7 Amusement Device Management Plan

Any application for an amusement device license shall contain a manage-

ment plan containing at least the following:

a) the actual hours of operation

b) the number of qualified employees to be present at all times

, c) a plan to control loitering and bicycle/motor vehicle parking in the vi-

cinity of the premises

d) a description of proposed operations to show proper control of noise,

glare, and overcrowding.

• e) providing for a designated area within the establishment where all amuse-

ment devices shall be located.

92-8 License Fee

The applicant, before being granted a license, shall pay a license fee of

fifty ($50.00) dollars per year, or any part thereof, for each device used or

played or exhibited for use or play. All license fees shall be payable in ad-

vance. In no case shall any portion of the license fee be repaid to the lic-

ensee.

92-9 Location Restrictions

No license shall be issued for operation of an amusement device within

five hundred (500) feet of any school, church, or youth activity center. All

amusement devices shall be kept and placed in plain view of any person or

persons who may frequent or be in any place of business where such de-

vices are kept or used.

92-10 Transfer of License

A license shall not be transferable from person to person, nor place to place,

and shall be useable only at the place and by the person designated on the

license.

92-10.1 Prohibited Practices

a) No person shall be awarded or receive any monetary prizes in connec-

tion with the use of an amusement device.

b) Consumption of alcoholic beverages in the designated amusement de-

vice area is prohibited.
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92-10.2 Inspections

The Chief of Police or his designee shall inspect or cause the inspection of

any establishment, place or building in which any amusement device or

devices are operated or set up for operation and to inspect, investigate and

test such devices as often as reasonably necessary, but no less than once a

year, to secure compliance with any ordinance provision or to detect viola-

tions thereof. It shall be the duty of the licensee, or the person in charge

of the premises to be inspected, to admit theChief of Police or his desig-

nee for the purpose of making the inspection at any reasonable time that

admission is requested.

92-11 Penalty

Any person, firm, corporation or association found to have violated this or-

dinance shall be guilty of a violation and, upon conviction thereof, shall be

subject to a penalty not to exceed one thousand ($1000.00) dollars.

92-12 Revocation or Suspension

A license issued under the provisions of this ordinance may be revoked or

suspended upon determination that a violation of this ordinance has been

committed by the license holder, his agent, or employee. Such revocation

or suspension shall be carried out by the Board ofSelectmen only after due

notice and hearing.

92-13 Separability

Each separate provision of this ordinance shall be deemed independent of

all other provisions herein, and it is further ordained that if any of the pro-

visions of this ordinance are found to be invalid by a court of competent

jurisdiction, all other provisions thereof shall remain valid and enforceable.

92-14 Effective Date and Duration

This ordinance shall take effect on July 1, 1993, and shall be in effect until

repealed or modified by an annual town meeting.

The Moderator did not read the article in its entirety due to its length, and an-

nounced the following changes that had been made to it since it had been printed in

the town report, as follows: Section 92-2.1 Remove "five or less" and insert "any";

and the addition of Sections 92-7 (e) and 92-10.1 (b). A motion was made by Select-

man Silva, seconded by Selectman Dumont, to approve Article 8 as presented. Se-

lectman Silva explained the reasons for the modifications; he felt that there were

problems that could arise that had to be addressed; that there should be a fee for

each device and there should be a limit to the number of devices allowed. He con-

cluded by saying that a lot of things came to light since the selectmen began issuing

expanded licenses. ChiefofPolice Joseph Devine voiced his support for these modi-

fications. John Segedy moved to amend Section 92.9 by adding the word "residence"

after the word "church." His motion to amend was seconded by Donald Botsch.

The Moderator called the question and the motion to amend passed. Mark Buda of
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Patten Road and Dennis Maglio of Brewster Street spoke in opposition to the ar-

ticle. Rosemary Gagne of Mayflower Drive made a motion to amend Section 92-9

by removing the words "youth activity center." Her motion to amend was duly sec-

onded. The Moderator called the question and the motion to amend failed. Jim Roy

of Belmont Drive felt that the amendment that was made previously in Section 92-

9 was not well thought out, as it would affect a lot establishments, including the

bowling alley, and he moved to reconsider. His motion was seconded by Selectman

Worster. The Moderator called the question and the motion passed. The Moderator

then called the question on Article 8 as it now stands; the motion carried in the

affirmative and was so declared.

ARTICLE 9. TO SEE IF THE TOWN WILL VOTE TO ADOPT A CONSER-
VATION LAND ORDINANCE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF RSA
31:39 (I) (A), TO REGULATE, PROTECTAND PRESERVE CONSERVATION
AREAS IN THE TOWN OF MERRIMACK, ORTAKE ANY OTHERACTION
IN RELATION THERETO.

Conservation Land Ordinance

1. No person may remain, stay or loiter in or on the premises prior to one

half hour before sunrise or after one-half hour past sunset, except under

the authorization of the Conservation Commission or its designated agent.

This provision shall in no way be intended to preclude authorized activi-

ties from occurring outside of the prescribed times.

2. No person shall make or kindle any fire on conservation lands without a

permit from the Fire Department.

3. No person shall bring or carry any glass containers on conservation land.

4. No person shall throw, leave or discard any trash, rubbish or garbage

except in containers, if provided for.

5. No person shall use, consume, carry or. bring any alcoholic beverages or

any unlawful drugs upon or within conservation land.

6. Use of vehicles:

a. No parking is allowed, except in designated areas.

b. No person shall drive, operate or maintain any off-highway recreational

vehicle as defined inN.H.R.S.A. 215A:1 (VI) on conservation land without

prior authorization of the Conservation Commission. "Off-highway recre-

ational vehicle" means any mechanically propelled vehicle used for plea-

sure or recreational purposes running on rubber tires, belts, cleats, tracks,

skis or cushion of air and dependent on the ground or surface for travel, or

other unimproved terrain whether covered by ice or snow or not, where the

operator sits in or on the vehicle.

c. No person shall drive, operate or maintain any motorized vehicle off the

roads and designated parking areas within the conservation area.
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d. Any off-highway recreational vehicle within the conservation area in

violation of Section 6 (b) will be subject to such penalties as are described in

RSA215-A(19).

7. No person shall bring or allow any domesticated animal to be on conser-

vation land, except on a leash, rein, or in a cage.

8. No person shall carry BB guns, pellet guns, or discharge firearms. No
hunting or trapping or other activities are permitted on the premises unless

authorized by reasons of wildlife management, preservation, or conserva-

tion practices.

9. No person shall remove or deface any building, equipment, tree, shrub I

or flower located on conservation land.

10. Any person violating the provisions of this chapter shall be guilty of a

violation and shall be subject to a penalty not to exceed one thousand dol-

lars ($1,000.00), such penalty to be used to improve or repair the conserva-

tion land area where the violations occurred.

The Moderator did not read the article in its entirety due to its length. No motion

was made to approve Article 9: thus the Moderator announced that it would be passed

over.

ARTICLE 10. TO SEE IF THE TOWN WILL VOTE TO MODIFY CHAP-
TER 142, SECTION 142-13 OF THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF MERRI-
MACK, ENTITLED PARKSAND RECREATION AREAS, TO READAS FOL-
LOWS, OR TO TAKE ANY OTHER ACTION RELATIVE THERETO:

§142-13 VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.
ANYPERSON VIOLATING THE PROVISIONS OF THIS CHAPTER SHALL
BE GUILTY OF A VIOLATION AND SHALL BE SUBJECTTO APENALTY
NOT TO EXCEED ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00), SUCH PEN-
ALTY TO BE USED TO IMPROVE OR REPAIR THE PUBLIC PARK AREA
WHERE THE VIOLATION OCCURRED

A motion was made by Selectman Francis, seconded by Selectman Brundige, to

approve this article as read. Selectman Francis explained that the words "and pay-

ment of restitution" had been removed from the present ordinance, based on town

counsel's advice. The Moderator called the question and the motion carried in the

affirmative.

ARTICLE 11. TO SEE IFTHE TOWN WILL VOTE TO HONORJOHNAND
KATHLEEN ZYLA BY DEDICATING AND NAMING THE PICNIC AREA
AT WASSERMAN PARK "THE JOHN AND KATHLEEN ZYLA PICNIC
AREA" OR TO TAKE ANY OTHER ACTION RELATIVE THERETO.
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A motion was made by Selectman Silva, seconded by Selectman Francis, to approve

this article as read. Selectman Silva stated that the Board of Selectmen hopes that

the voters will name this area of the Park after the Zylas in gratitude for what they

did for the town and to keep their memory alive. The Moderator called the question

and the motion carried in the affirmative.

ARTICLE 12. TO SEE IF THE TOWN WILL VOTE TO ADOPT REGULA-
TIONS GOVERNING THE ERECTIONANDMAINTENANCE OF POLITI-

CAL SIGNS ENDORSING THE CANDIDACY OF AN INDIVIDUAL EN-
TERED IN ANY TOWN, PRIMARY OR GENERAL ELECTION, AS FOL-
LOWS, OR TO TAKE ANY OTHER ACTION RELATIVE THERETO. (BY

PETITION)

1. No sign shall be posted sooner than forty-five (45) calendar days prior to

any election.

2. No sign shall be larger than twelve (12) square feet.

3. Each sign must be provided with its own support, posting of signs on

trees, utility poles, vehicular control standard (stop signs, traffic control

lights, etc.), public fences or public buildings is expressly prohibited.

4. No sign shall be posted on any publicly owned land or public property.

Persons or organizations posting signs must be able to produce written per-

mission from the landowner when requested by town police.

5. Each sign must carry the name and permanent address of the individual

or organization posting it. Such identification may appear on the back of

the sign, but must withstand normally anticipated weather effects.

6. Signs must be removed no later than ten (10) days after the town, pri-

mary or general election. All candidates in a primary must remove his/her

signs within the ten-day period. Successful primary candidates do not re-

quire new permission unless the sign is to be erected in a new location for

the general election, subject to the forty-five-day restriction.

7. Signs which have not been removed within the ten-day period follow-

ing an election will be removed by the town and the person or organization

identified in paragraph 5 as posting it will be subject to a fine of fifty dollars

($50.00) per sign. In the event the identity of the individual, fiscal agent or

organization posting the signs is obliterated, the fine will be assessed against

the candidate indicated by the sign.

8. Defacing, removing or tampering with signs erected in conformance with

this ordinance is a misdemeanor and punishable by a fine of one hundred

dollars ($100.00) per sign per offense.

9. The erection of said signs under this ordinance shall not relieve the

owner of the sign from responsibility for its erection and maintenance in a

safe manner and the town of Merrimack shall be held harmless from any

and all claims resulting from the existence of such signs. (By petition)
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The Moderator did not read the article in its entirety due to its length. No motion

was made to approve Article 12: thus the Moderator announced that it would be

passed over.

ARTICLE 13. TO SEE IF THE TOWN WILL VOTE TO HAVE THE 1993

INCOME FROM THE LIBRARY'S TRUST FUNDS PLACED INTO THE
LIBRARY TRUSTEES' SPECIAL ACCOUNT. (BY PETITION)

A motion was made by Library Trustee Patricia Heinrich and was duly seconded, to

approve this article as read. Mrs. Heinrich explained that this is the library's annual

housekeeping article. The Moderator called the question and the motion carried.

ARTICLE 14. TO SEE IF THE TOWN WILL VOTE TO AUTHORIZE THE
SELECTMEN TO BORROW MONEY IN ANTICIPATION OF TAXES FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR OR TO TAKE ANY OTHER ACTION RELATIVE
THERETO.

A motion was made by Selectman Worster, seconded by Selectman Silva, to ap-

prove this article as read. Selectman Brundige pointed out that the town has never

had to borrow in anticipation of taxes in the past; this article is passed annually as a

precaution. The Moderator called the question and the motion carried in the affir-

mative.

Finance Administrator Robert T. Levan presented the Moderator with the total

figure appropriated by the voters at this 1993 Town Meeting— $20, 159,628.00. This

Town Meeting was adjourned at 10:25 P.M.
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THE MINUTES OF THIS SPECIAL TOWN MEETING WERE
INADVERTENTLY OMITTED FROM THE 1991 TOWN REPORT.

Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire
Special Town Meeting

Tuesday, October 8, 1991
Town-Wide Sewer Extension Proposal

This special town meeting convened at 7:55 P.M. at the Mastricola Middle School

,

in the All-purpose room which was filled to capacity. The overflow was directed to

the gym, which was equipped with two-way audio and the slide and overhead pro-

jector presentations. Town Moderator Lynn Christensen presided. Assistant Mod-

erator Bill Klein had charge of the gym. A total of 1,148 voters were present. Mod-

erator Christensen called upon Chairman of the Board of Selectmen Richard Du-

mont to introduce the town officials seated on the stage, those being Selectmen

Edward J. Silva, John M. Francis, Kathy L. Wales and Robert W. Brundige; Town
Manager Daniel C. Ayer; Finance Administrator Robert T. Levan; Director ofPub-

lic Works Earle M. "Chip" Chesley; Underwood Engineer Jeff Clifford; and Town
Attorney Robert F. Bossie. Chairman of the Budget Committee Peter Karam then

introduced the members of his committee who were present and seated in the audi-

ence. Moderator Christensen announced the ground rules, explained the six-part

ballot, and proceeded to Article I.

article I. to see if the town will vote to raise and appro-
priate the sum of thirty-two million eight hundred one
thousand dollars ($32,801,000.00) for the purpose of con-
STRUCTING sewer line extensions and other associated
waste water system improvements, and to raise the said
sum bythe issuance of bonds or serial notes and/or by par-
TICIPATION IN the state waterpollution control revolv-
ing LOAN FUND IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTERS 33 AND 486 OF
THE NEW HAMPSHIRE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED 1990 AND
ANY AMENDMENTS THERETO; AND TO AUTHORIZE THE BOARD OF
SELECTMEN TO ISSUE AND NEGOTIATE SUCH BONDS, NOTES AND
LOAN AGREEMENTS, DETERMINE THE RATE OF INTEREST
THEREON, ANDTHE MATURITYAND OTHERTERMS THEREOF, AND
TAKE SUCH OTHER ACTIONS AS MAY BE NECESSARY TO EFFECTU-
ATE THE ISSUANCE, NEGOTIATION, SALE AND DELIVERY OF SUCH
DEBT INSTRUMENTS AS SHALL BE IN THE BEST INTEREST OF THE
TOWN OF MERRIMACK; ANDTOAUTHORIZE THE BOARD OF SELECT-
MEN TO CONTRACT FOR AND ACCEPT ANY GRANTS OF FEDERAL,
STATE OR PRIVATE AJDTHATMAY BECOME AVAILABLE IN CONNEC-
TION WITH THE AFORESAID PURPOSE AND PASS ANY VOTE RELAT-
ING THERETO. (VOTE BY BALLOT)
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A motion was made by Chairman Dumont and seconded by Selectman Brundige t(

approve Article I as read. Chairman Dumont thanked the voters for coming to thi:

special town meeting this evening, and announced that a brief presentation woulc

ensue prior to opening the meeting to questions and comments from the floor. Di

rector of Public Works Chip Chesley explained the project in general, how septu

systems work and how they fail, and that other alternatives were explored but ever}

I

study came to the conclusion that sewers are the solution to the problem. Under

I

wood Engineer Jeff Clifford then explained how information was gathered and en-

tered into a database and projects prioritized according to the number of septic fail-

1

ures, among other criteria. Finance Administrator Robert Levan then presented the

financial portion of the project, and informed the voters how much they could ex-1

pect to pay depending on their particular situations. Finally, Selectman Robert Brun-j

dige explained the Board's recently adopted Sewer Connection and Abatement!

Policy.

At this point, Moderator Christensen gave the floor to the voters. Paul Culley of 4

Valleyview Drive was the first to speak in opposition to this proposal. He felt that

the water quality in our lakes has been suspect for a long time, and did not hold]

much credence in any of the figures presented. Mike O'Brien of 8 Jade Road criti-

cized the Board's connection and abatement policy. Charles DeFranco was the only

voter to speak in favor of the project, calling it a long time coming, and requested

the Moderator to ask the voters to call the question. Moderator Christensen deter-

mined that there were four more voters standing at the mikes, and they would be

allowed to speak. John Segedy of Wheeler Street, and a long-time member of the

Planning Board, pointed out that this sewer extension proposal was never included

in the town's capital improvements program, and felt that the only effects on Ba-

boosic Lake are algae. He added that ifwe extend the sewers we will be picking up

residential density increases, and thus, bigger costs in our school taxes. Mike Lovejoy

of West Chamberlain Road demanded that the question be called immediately.

Robert Johnson of Christina Road asked what the cost of making the failed septic

systems work versus putting in sewers, and wondered if it couldn't be more prudent

to replace these failed systems with ones that work. Jeff Clifford responded, stating

that each system would have to be looked at individually to determine the cost of

replacement, and that would not address the groundwater and lake pollutions prob-

lems. John Gibson of Baboosic Lake Road asked if anyone could apply for an eco-

nomic abatement, and asked why the town didn't propose this plan a few years ago

when the economy was better. Selectman Wales replied that each individual who

applies for an abatement will be considered on their own circumstances. Manuel

Granchelli of Old Road Stated that this particular Board of Selectmen will not be

around in 1993 to give out abatements, and that the figures are not accurate, and

furthermore, in words reminiscent of Gone With The Wind, said that he doesn't give a

damn. Mr. Granchelli was the last voter to speak.

Moderator Christensen announced that there are two more warrant articles that must

be acted upon this evening ifArticle I passes. She then opened the polls for voting at t

106



9:10 P.M., and announced that they would remain open for one hour. At 10:10 P.M.

there being no one else in the polling place who wished to vote, Moderator Chris-

tensen closed the polls, and the counting of ballots began. The results were 249 yes

votes and 889 no votes. Article I failed and was so declared by Moderator Chris-

tensen. A motion was made by Selectman Wales and seconded by Chairman Du-

mont, to waive Articles II and III and adjourn this meeting. The motion passed

enthusiastically in the affirmative and was so declared by the Moderator. This spe-

cial town meeting adjourned at 10:20 P.M.
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TOWN OFFICERS
Representatives to the General Court

Frederick Ahrens Robert Kelley

Emma Dodge Robert L'Heureux

Dennis Fields Robert Milligan

Gary Greenberg Finlay Rothhaus

Board of Selectmen

Richard E. Dumont, Chairman Term expires 1995

Robert W. Brundige Term expires 1994

William R Cote Term expires 1996

Edward J. Silva Term expires 1994

Leonard C. Worster Term expires 1995

Town Manager
Richard S. Borden Jr.

Executive Assistant

Patricia A. Blaisdell

Assistant Town Manager
Dean E. Shankle Jr.

Finance Administrator
Robert T. Levan

Moderator
Lynn Christensen

Town Treasurer
Jean G. Weston

Town Clerk-Tax Collector
Betty J. Spence

Deputy Town Clerk-Tax Collector
Diane M. Pollock

Assessor

Dominic S. D'Antoni

Planning Director
Charles F. Watson

109



Acting Zoning Administrator

Jean G. Weston

Code Enforcement Officer

Joseph M. Comer

Ambulance Director

Norman V. Carr

Emergency Management director

Tony Pellegrino

Library Director

Elizabeth Levy

Director of Public Works
Earle M. Ghesley III

- Assistant Director of Public Works - WWTF -

Larry R. Spencer

Assistant Director of Public Works - Highway
John M. Starkey

Highway Superintendent

Bruce W. Moreau

Building & Grounds Maintenance
Philip F. Meschino

Equipment Maintenance
Rossiter R. Holt Jr.

Landfill Foreman
Steven S. Doumas

Ballot Inspectors

(terms expire November 1994)

Democrat Republican

Peggy Dwyer Adrienne Belote

Anne Goodridge David L. Christensen

Mary Moriarty Yvonne Hinckley

Joseph Morton Fern Jones

Ruth Morton Janet McKenna

Lucy Webster
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Budget Committee

Thomas J. Mahon, Chairman

Peter Karam, Vice Chairman

Michele Boutin

John Gibson

Martha Haynes

Stanley Heinrich

Diane Miller

Ben Niles

Betty Raymond

Charlotte Ring

Mitchell Twardosky

Lon Woods

Leonard Worster

Brenda Grady

Dan Bittel

Rita Carlton

Term expires 1995

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1995

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1995

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1995

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1996

Term expires1996

Ex officio member

Ex officio member

Ex officio member

Secretary

Gable TV Advisory Committee

John Eikenberry, Chairman

Aletheia Fischer

Wendy Higgins

Philip Hunt

Richard Dumont

Mary Jo Roberts

Dean Shankle

Craig Showers

Lloyd Tate

Conservation Commission

Tim Dutton, Chairman

Dawn Brown-Golub

Eber Currier

Gregory Kirby

Ted Parmenter

Anthony Pellegrino

Robert Siena

Arthur Swenson

William Cote

Linda Wilson

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1995

Term expires 1995

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1995

Ex officio member

Secretary
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District court

Gregory Michael

Lynn Killkelley

Jane DiMartino

Maureen Murphy

Phyllis Lottinger

Craig Liatsis

Special Justice

Clerk

Deputy Clerk

Account Clerk

Court Assistant II

Bailiff

Forest Fire Warden and
Deputy Fire Wardens

Clarence P. Worster, Warden

Martin Carrier

William Cashin

Joseph Comer

Charles Hall

Normand Pepin

Perley Rogers

Laurence Rothhaus

Dennis Smith

Robert Soucy

Gary Woodward

Howard Young

Highway Safety Committee

Joseph Devine, Chairman

Roger Bellemore

Norman Carr

Joseph Comer

Robert Hamm
Charles Hall

Rossiter Holt Jr.

Bruce Moreau

Willian Mulligan

Tony Pellegrino

Norman Pepin

Richard Todd

Robert Brundige

Robert L'Heureux

Historic District Commission

Douglas Dickinson Jr., Chairman

Jean Craigue

Andrea Fagan

James Poulin

Jan Schneider

Vesta Stenta

William Cote

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1995

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1995

Term expires 1996

Ex officio member

Library Trustees

Margaret Hamm, Chairman

Ellen Dube

Patricia Heinrich

Christine Mauser

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1995

Term expires 1996
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Linda Theroux

Richard Dumont

Term expires 1994

Ex officio member

Noise Ordinance Committee

John DiPietro, Chairman

Richard Dumont

Norma French

Ronald Ketchie

Dennis King

Roger Lawrence

Ron Stewart

Lee Walz

Brian Wood

Michael Zaharee

Parks and Recreation committee

Dru Movizzo, Chairman

Michael Lindsay, Secretary

Philip Dube

Laura Jaynes

Diane Pearce

John Francis

Rosemary Haigwood

Chuck Mower

Edward Silva

Term expires 1995

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1994

Senior Citizen Rep.

MYA Representative

Ex officio member

Ex officio member

Planning Board
Nelson Disco, Chairman

Richard Barry

Robert Boisvert

David Christensen

Arthur Gagnon

John Segedy

Edward Silva

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1995

Ex officio member

Solid Waste Advisory Committee

Nancy Toms, Chairman

Richard Duprey, Vice Chairman

Ted Parmenter, Secretary

Chip Chesley (DPW)

William Cote

Arthur Gagnon

David Hetue (CC)

Robert Kelley

Mark Maguire
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Supervisors of the Checklist

Donald Botsch

Barbara Condon

Ruth Liberty

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1998

Term expires 1996

Wasserman Park Master Plan committee

Patricia Marchal, Chairman

Steven Keach, Vice Chairman

Sybil Spence-Rocca, Recording Secretary

Doug Dickinson

John Gibson

Robert Milligan

Chris Petrovic

Tim Dutton, Conservation Commission representative

John Francis, Parks & Recreation Committee representative

Joshua Wasserman, Naticook Day Camp representative

Rona Wasserman, Naticook Day Camp representative

Richard Dumont, Ex officio member

Zoning Board of Adjustment

Charles Roberts, Chairman

Diane Adams

K. John Astil

Maurice Lindsay

David Sturm

Robert Hartel, alternate

Lon Woods, alternate

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1994

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1996

Term expires 1996
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Merrimack Ambulance Rescue Service —
1993 Annual Report

To the honorable Board of Selectmen and the citizens of the Town of Merrimack, I

herewith submit my report for the year 1993.

— Organization—

Director Norman Carr, EMT-A, PA-C

Ambulance Officer Michael Barb, PA-C

Asst. Amb. Officer Carolyn Lasker, EMT-I

Training Officer Francine Dupuis, EMT-P
Secretary/P.I. Off. Craig Peterson, EMT-I

In 1993 your ambulance service responded to 930 requests for emergency medical

aid. This represents a 3.8% decrease from 1992 requests and reflects the economic

impact that 1993 has had on the demographics of our community. Pre-hospital emer-

gency services continued to be provided by a unique combination of town employ-

ees and volunteers, sometimes augmented by fire department rescue personnel or

nearby ambulance services under mutual aid agreements.

676 patients were treated and transported to medical care facilities. Careful evalua-

tion at the scene resulted in no necessary patient transportation in 28% of responses.

Trauma accounted for 286 of the patients transported and 11% required Advanced

Life Support level of care. 380 patients were treated and transported for non-trauma

related problems; 45% required A.L.S. care.

Merrimack Ambulance Rescue Service utilizes two van type ambulances which are

appropriately licensed by the State ofNew Hampshire and are equipped for A.L.S.

care. While much of our equipment and supplies are furnished through the town

budget, the M.A.R.S. auxiliary remains active in soliciting funds for the purchase of

additional items and training materials. We gratefully acknowledge those individu-

als and businesses who contribute to the auxiliary resources and the dedicated aux-

iliary members who collect and administer those funds.

We are proud of the team approach through which emergency medical services are

provided for Merrimack. Carefully coordinated activities are the key to our response

capabilities. The prompt, professional dispatch from the communication center sets

our team into action. First responders from both the ambulance service and the fire

department go directly to the scene and render life saving care as soon as possible.

Police support provides safety enroute and at the scene while personnel respond

with one of your ambulances for additional care and transportation. Simultaneously,

other team members remain alerted should a second need arise.

Training is a primary concern for your ambulance service. Each team trains under

their team leader one evening per week. The latest methods are introduced and
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their team leader one evening per week. The latest methods are introduced and

practiced by each to improve efficiency in this coordinated effort. Training and as-!

sessment is under the direction of the Training Officer.

Under our Constitution and Bylaws, officers are selected by secret ballot annually. I

am pleased to say that the above listed officers, the membership volunteers and the

full time employees have discharged their duties in the most professional manner

and that M.A.R.S. remains fully prepared to continue to provide the best Emer-

gency pre-hospital care available.

1993 Active M.A.R.S. Members

Ansdell, M. EMT-I

Ansdell, P. MD
Arnold T. EMT-P
Bachand, C. EMT-D
Bachand, M. EMT-A
Bachand, S. EMT-D
Barb, M. PA-C

Barb, R. YO
Bertrand, D. EMT-P
Burns, B. Yo

Carr, N. EMT-A;PA-C

Chaput, N. EMT-P
Chaput, S. YO
Colby, D. EMT-A

Damon, E. EMT-I

Dupuis, F. EMT-P
Feres, D/ EMT-A
Friedrichs, J. EMT-D
Heinrich, S. EMT-D
Hemmerly, T. YO
Hewitt, M. EMT-D
Hunt, M. EMT-EOA
Hutchinson, T. YO
Kaveckas, J. YO
Kimball, S. Observer

Lasker, C, EMT-I

Lasker, TC. EMT-I

Leahy, R. EMT-D
McGough, T. EMT-I

Nickerson D. EMT-P
Peterson C. EMT-I

Peterson, K. EMT-I
Pfeffier, M. YO
Porembski, C. EMT-A
Ross, R. EMT-A
Shack, w. EMT-D
Traurig, P. EMT-I
Traurig, S. EMT-I

Waris, D. EMT-D
Watson, S. EMT-A
White, J. EMT-P
Whitehead, D. EMT-D
Wrobel, D. EMT-D
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====== Assessing Department =^=
1993 Annual Report

The period January 1, 1993 through December 31, 1993 was a year that all property

assessments were reduced 30 percent by the Assessing Department. This was done

to adjust for real estate values that had declined significantly since 1989 due to the

economic recession. In addition, the Assessing Department has noticed a general

stabilizing of market values for some property types during the past year.

The Assessor has recommended to the selectmen that the town should re-value all

property assessments for the April 1, 1995 tax year. This would be seven years since

the 100 percent property assessments were completely updated and installed.

The computer software system recommended by the Assessing Department, would

allow for all assessment values to be adjusted on a one or two year time period. This

would eliminate any major swings of property assessments from one class of prop-

erty to another class. Also, this would adjust all assessments to reflect current mar-

ket values on a more timely basis.

A recent court ruling by the State Supreme Court against the Town of Gilford, has

altered the assessing practice of extending long time periods between assessment

updates. Towns and cities that frequently update all assessments to reflect current

market values will find court decisions favoring the Community in a fair and just

manner.

In summary, the only way to keep yearly abatement requests at a minimum and

taxpayers accepting the town's assessment values will be to maintain all property

classes at current market values. This practice will prove to be a cost saving for all

property owners and will be defensible in supporting assessment values before the

courts.

Much too often, employees working on the day to day scene seldom receive recog-

nition for their efforts and dedication demanded by their positions. To the office

staff of Anne L. Whitney, Barbara A. Condon and Cathy A. Orff, a sincere thanks,

for meeting the hectic work load and challenges during the past year.

Respectfully submitted,

Dominic S. D'Antoni,

Assessor

117



;^= Merrimack Cable TV Advisory Committee —
:

Annual Report for 1993

The Merrimack Cable TV Advisory Committee (MCtvAC) was formed by the Board

ofSelectmen in late Fall, 1991. The Board ofSelectmen requested that the commit-

tee:

1. Review the current cable TV franchise agreement and make recommendations

for improvement;

2. Present ordinances for cable TV regulations;

3. Review complaints received by the Board of Selectmen and make recommen-

dations;

4. Assist in lobbying efforts for state and federal regulations;

5. Explore expansion of the system;

6. Evaluate present and future services;

7. Develop the capability of televising public meeting.

The committee has moved forward in many of these areas during the past year.

Survey

Early in the year the MCtvAC finalized development of a cable TV service survey

which was sent to the residents of Merrimack. Of the approximately 9500 surveys

sent out, nearly 10% were returned. The return rate was exceptional for this type of

survey and shows that cable TV is an important issue for the residents of Merri-

mack.

The data that was collected from the survey was analyzed and a set of recommenda-

tions drafted as to ways that the Merrimack cable TV system could be improved. A
report, which included both the survey data and recommendations, was presented

to the Board of Selectmen in December.

The survey report continues to provide data and information for both the MCtvAC
and Board of Selectmen to act on.

PEG Sub-committees

During the summer, the MCtvAC formed 3 sub-committees whose purpose was to

poll local organizations (Public, Education, and Government) to determine what

future requirements will be needed in terms of cable access. The information col-

lected from these sub-committees will be used in franchise renewal process sched-

ule for 1997.

Currently, the Government access sub-committee has completed its purpose after

polling all of the government offices within the community. The Public and Educa-

tional access sub-committees are currently underway collecting the information

needed. All of the sub-committees plan to be completed early in 1994 at which time

a report will be presented to the Board of Selectmen.
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Resident Communication Sub-committee

In the Fall, a communication sub-committee was formed to address the needs of the

residents. Many residents are understandably confused with the current cable TV
regulations and policy changes. The committee's purpose is to get the answers to

the community's most pressing questions and try to answer them.

The sub-committee is currently researching both the questions and the answers.

The results should be seen in 1994.

Respectfully Submitted,

John Eikenberry, Chairman

Aletheia Fischer

Wendy Higgins

Philip Hunt

Michael McNerney

Mary Jo Roberts

Craig Showers

Lloyd Tate
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— Code Enforcement Division —
1993 Annual Report

This past year has been a very busy one for the department. Construction continues

on residential subdivions with the added increase to permits and inspections. We
are near the same level of permits issued as in the year 1986.

Permits for 1993 numbered 969 continuing a steady increase with a total valuation

of $15,165,406. with total fees collected $107,300.

The Code Enforcement Division is made up of dedicated employees to serve the

Town and include Assistant Building Inspector George Couture, Fire Inspector

Charles Chalk, Office Manager Sally Raymond and Lena Cook.

I want to thank all Town Departments and boards for their continued cooperation

and assistance during the past year.

Respectfully,

Joseph M. Comer,

Assistant Fire Chief/

Code Enforcement Officer

— Permits Issued 1993—
Single family dwellings 123

Residential garages and carports 23

Additions to single family 483

Commercial buildings 2

Additions to commercial 50

Industrial buildings 1

Additions to industrial 12

Swimming pools 40

Miscellaneous permits (electrical,

plumbing TV dishes, temporary trailers, etc) 254

Demolitions

(barns, sheds, garages, houses, etc) 2

Oil burners 45

Storage tanks 6

Septic systems (new and repairs) 78

Signs 44
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Statistics

Incoming phone calls 15,487

Persons assisted at counter 13,305

Inspections requested 2,470

Inspections performed 2,701

Complaints investigated 92

Year
Building Permits

Issued Single Family

1987 987 117

1988 881 103

1989 711 56

1990 733 62

1991 777 53

1992 869 119

1993 969 123
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^^^^ Merrimack Conservation Commission 1

1993 Annual Report

The role of the Conservation Commission is to inventory natural resources, make
recommendations on dredge and fill permits to the state Wetlands Board, review

projects that impact wetlands, acquire open space and wetlands for preservation and

educate the public on conservation practices.

The Commission had a major change in our membership, adding three new mem-
bers. Our commission now has backgrounds ranging from amateur environmental-

ists to environmental engineering, law and geology. We all have an interest in pre-

serving passive open spaces and studying wetlands. In August, John Mitchell re-

signed and we will miss his knowledge of forestry and dedication to conservation

practices.

The Commission, along with the State Wetlands Board, held a wetlands identifica-

tion class for town employees and the Merrimack Village District. Attendees stated

this class was very informative and helpful. A meeting with the Planning and Zon-

ing boards was held to discuss how each board operates and how we can help each

other. A meeting of the Southern New Hampshire Conservation Commissions was

held in Merrimack with a workshop on identifying wetlands.

Keith Boyer, a Merrimack High School sophomore, was sponsored to attend a week

at the NH Society for Protection of Forests Conservation Camp. He participated in

workshops about forestry practices, soils identification, wildlife studies and group

building activities. Keith presented a report to the Commission on his participation

and said that he learned a great deal. As in the past, the Commission will continue to

send a student from the high school to this camp.

In 1993 the Commission reviewed six applications for permiting dredge and filling

of wetlands. Four permits were approved, with specific restrictions applied to them

while two applications were denied.

Again, in 1993 the Commission co-sponsored canoe trips on the Merrimack and

Souhegan rivers. The canoe trips are run by the Merrimack River Watershed Coun-

cil. The trips were very well attended and continue to grow in attendance.

1993 saw the completion of the Merrimack River boat ramp located at the end of

Depot Street. The following deserve recognition for a job well done; the Depart-

ment of Public Works, town management, Board of Selectmen and others involved.

John Callahan approched the Conservation Commission and town of Merrimack

with a donation of Blueberry Island, located in Naticook Lake. This property is

attached to the Wasserman Park undeveloped area and set aside for passive recre-

ation.
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— Merrimack Fire Department —
1993 Annual Report

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen and the citizens of Merrimack, I herewith

submit my report of the activities ofyour Fire Department for the period from Janu-

ary 1, 1993 through December 31, 1993.

The year 1993 has been a very stable year for your Fire Department. Incidents at

1,202 were just slightly less than the 1992 total of 1,206. The dollar loss of$198,559

was $24,2878 less than 1992. Training continues to cope with the concerns of haz-

ardous materials and other non fire related emergencies, as well as ongoing basic

firefighter training.

Major efforts to educate the young to the dangers of fire are being addressed by our

Fire Prevention Division and the public school programs continue to be a great suc-

cess story.

Local 2904 has also been a great help with their annual fire safety newspaper sent to

everyone in town.

All of our fire officers and firefighters are to be congratulated for their continued

efforts to make Merrimack a safer community to live in.

Public Safety is a team effort and Merrimack has an excellent team from Code En-

forcement, Fire Suppression, Emergency Medical, Ambulance Rescue Service to-

gether with the Police Department and Communications Division. All these work-

ing together make Merrimack a great place to live and work in.

Respectfully submitted,

Chief Charles Q.Hall

Merrimack Fire Dept.

1993 Fire Activity Report

Structure Fire 38

Outside of Structure Fire 4

Vehicle Fire 25

Tree, Brush, Grass 29

Refuse Fire 4

Steam Rupture 1

Air, Gas Rupture 3

Over Press. Not Classified 1

Emergency Medical 311

Lock-in 1

Search 1
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Extrication 5

Rescue Call /Not Classified 2

Spill Leak w/no Ignition 23

Excessive Heat 1

Power Line Down 15

Arching Shorting Electrical Equip. 40

Hazardous Condition Standby 5

Service Call 11

Lock-Out 56

Water Evacuation 12

Smoke Odor Removal 3

Animal Rescue 2

Assist Police 104

Unauthorized Burning 7

Cover Assignment 21

Service Call Not Classified 19

Good Intent 21

Smoke Scare 73

Controlled Burning 25

Vicinity Alarm 1

Steam, Other Gas Mistaken For 4

Good Intent not Classified 37

Malicious, Mischevious False 15

Bomb Scare, No Bomb 3

System Malfunction 149

Unintentional 127

False Call Not Classified Above 1

Type of Situation not Classified 2

Inspections

New Building Inspections 17

Plan Reviews 18

Certificates of Occupancy 148

Places of Assembly 23

Schools 4

Day Care 3

Foster Homes 28

Health Care 4

Residential Single Family 28

Residential Multi-Family 3

124



Business Occupancies 37

Mercantiles 17

Industrial Plants 6

Storage Occupancies 4

Vacant Buildings 1

Fire Hazards 6

Wood Stoves 19

Oil Burners 55

Pellet Stoves/Heaters/Other 8

Underground Storage Tanks 1

Above Ground Storage Tanks 3

Other Inspections 6

Investigations 19

Kerosene Permits Issued 8

Burning Permits Issued 1,127

Business Phone Galls 7,942
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Fire Department

Emergency Numbers
911

424-2222

Fire Department

Business Numbers
424-3690

424-4704

Present Members of Your Fire Department

Permanent

Chief C. Hall

Asst. Chief J. Comer

Deputy Chief H. Young

Fire Inspector C. Chalk

Captain L. Rothhaus

Captain J. Hall

Captain D. Smith

Captain W. Cashin

Lt. R. Todd

Lt. C. Smith

Lt. D. Parenti

Lt. R. Hansen

N. Pepin

W. Perkins

M. Akerstrom

S. Allison

C. Nadeau, Secretary

D. Belanger

J. Belanger

D. Trepaney

C. Nelsen

D. Duda

R. Pierson

G. Regan

S. Simpson

D.Joki

B. Cornelius

N. Carr, Jr.

G. Beland

T. Kennedy

R. Barrows

M. Bechard

G. Woodward, Mechanic

Call Firefighters

Dep. Chief M. Carrier

Lt. Jack Higgins

Lt. T. Chmielewski

R. Blanchette

J. Beaumont

W. Crenshaw

R. Foster

J. Hall

P. Norwalt (Chaplain)

E. Higgins

M. Hunt

J. Marcel

M. Marcel

H. Martin

P. Rogers

C.Worster (FireWarden)

P. Henking (Chaplain)
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Cover Assignment Direct Response

January 1 4

February 9

March 3 7

April 2 8

May 1 4

June 3

July 1 2

August 3 9

September 2

October 1 9

November 5 9

December 4 8

-Mutual Aid Calls Received 1993
January 5

February 1

March 1 2

April 5

May 1 2

June 2

July 2

August 4

September 3

October 4

November 1 1

December 4
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Report of the Fire Prevention Bureau

Again this year the Merrimack Fire Department has tried to reach more people to

present a proactive approach to fire prevention. The month of October saw close to

1,000 children receive fire safety education in both the schools and at the fire sta-

tion.

This year also saw the introduction of our first "Open House". This day long event

featured the "Jaws of Life", hands on extinguisher training, fire sprinkler demon-

strations, videos and firefighter skills. This event was visited by 200 people, many

ofwhom requested we do this every year.

Other programs included residential and commercial inspections, adult education

and fire investigations. Those things have given our town a fire safety record that we
can all be proud of.

Respectfully submitted,

Charles Chalk

Fire Inspector
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= Forest Fire Warden and State Forest Ranger =
1993 Annual Report

During Calendar Year 1993, the State of New Hampshire experienced an average

number of wildfires. The three leading causes of these wildfires were campfires left

unattended, unsupervised children and debris fires that escaped control. All of these

fires are preventable, but ONLY with your help!

Please help your town and state forest fire officials with forest fire prevention. New
Hampshire State Law (RSA 224:27 II) requires that, "No person, firm or corporation

shall kindle or cause to be kindled any fire or burn or cause to be burned any mate-

rial in the open, except when the ground is covered with snow, without first obtain-

ing a written fire permit from the Forest Fire Warden of the town where the burning

is to be done."

Violations of RSA 224:27 II and the other burning laws of the State ofNew Hamp-
shire are misdemeanors punishable by fines of up to $1,000 and /or a year in jail and

you are also liable for all fire suppression costs.

The State ofNew Hampshire, Division of Forests and Lands assisted many towns

in wildland fire suppression during 1993 and participated in many fire prevention

programs. This year, the nation is celebrating Smokey Bear's 50th anniversary. The
State ofNew Hampshire Forest Protection Bureau will be working with many com-

munities to spread the fire prevention message - "Remember. . .Only YOU can pre-

vent forest fires. Fire prevention is the most cost effective fire suppression tool.

Please be careful around fires and help us and our communities have a fire safe year.

"REMEMBER... SMOKEY HAS FOR FIFTY YEARS!"

Forest Fire Statistics - 1993

State District

Number of Fires 545 219

Acres Burned 224 78

Respectfully submitted,

Bryan C. Nowell,

Forest Ranger

Clarence Worster,

Forest Fire Warden
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^^^^^^^ Health Department i^=i^^^=
1993 Annual Report

The final month of 1993 brought the The Town of Merrimack its first confirmed

case of rabies. Surrounding communities had already experienced confirmed cases

so it was not a surprise when the virus struck here. All cats and dogs are required by

state law to be vaccinated and vaccinations must be kept current. Because of the

danger of rabies, we strongly urge every one to avoid contact with all wild animals

and even domestic animals if you are unsure of their vaccination status.

The United States Environmental Protection Agency continued the remediation

efforts at New Hampshire Plating and has held informational public meetings to

advise the public of its activities. Consideration was given to demolishing the build-

ing and to continue with further clean up of the site.

Seven foster care and day care inspections were conducted down just slightly from

the eleven of 1992.

Septic systems were again a major activity. Sixty systems were installed for newly

constructed dwellings, there were also 25 newly designed systems for homes where

the old system had failed. Twenty-seven systems were replaced "in kind", that is,

new designs were not required. The 112 septic systems installed were down 26 from

the 138 installed last year.

Test pits/perc tests were down slightly from 1992 (186) with 138 observed this year.

Laboratory analyses conducted at the Merrimack Waste Water Treatment Facility

were up significantly this year. Sixty-five individual bacteria tests were performed

from 22 sites. These included 7 private wells, 2 swales, Horseshoe Pond, the pool

and beach at Wasserman Park, the pool at the YMCA, and 8 possible failed septic

systems. Twenty-two non-bacterial tests were also performed. This was nearly 3

times the twenty-three tests performed in 1992.

Routine food service inspections were also conducted at our licensed facilities. We
issued 16 temporary food licenses and 98 licenses for permanent locations.

At the request of the Planning Board we were present at 7 soils redefinitions in

contrast to none performed in 1992.

We have also interacted frequently with the Conservation Commission and have

continued our activities with the building division as our functions frequently over-lap.

As usual we have enjoyed excellent support and communication with Code En-

forcement Officer, Joseph Comer and Building Inspector, George Couture. Sally

Raymond and Lena Cook ofCode Enforcement and Inspection continue to provide

excellent support to the Health Department.

Respectfully Submitted,

Nancy E. Bailey

Health Officer/Sanitarian
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Merrimack Historic District Commission =
1993 Annual Report

The Merrimack Historic District Commission has completed its third full year of

operations since its inception in October of 1990. It looks forward to the fourth year

as Commission members work on the completion of the town wide historic struc-

ture survey activity.

At this time, the Commission has four members and three active alternates. The
Board of Selectmen advertisement for new alternate members to join the Commis-

sion was successful in 1993 when two alternates joined the group.

The charter of the Commission is to conduct a historic resource survey of the town

of Merrimack. This survey will ultimately take into account any structure, property

or landmark that pre-dates the 1940 era. An assessment will be made for each parcel

as to its significance and contribution to the character and history of the community.

The outcome of the survey could be the nomination and establishment of historic

districts that would be recognized at the state and federal levels of Government.

The survey strategy for 1993 was changed from previous years. It was decided to

focus our attention to the main corridors, most notably the section of D.W. Highway

from the Thortons' Ferry to Reeds Ferry. This is because of the higher potential of

road improvement or changes along this corridor. Members performed their survey

activities in small groups of two or three when favorable weather conditions and

time of day existed. As in the past, each parcel was photographed and the field data

sheets filled out. Once the data sheets were compiled, the Nashua Regional Plan-

ning Commission (NRPC) entered the data into their GIS mapping computer as a

model for the 'Mapping' program.

The Commission has had the expert assistance of several key community and pro-

fessional persons. The Commission wishes to thank Mr. Bob Brundige for his lead-

ership role during the first two years. In 1993, Selectman Mr. Bill Cote joined the

Commission as liaison between the Board of Selectman and the Commission. Mr.

Charles Watson, Town Planner, has continued to serve the Commission well with

his invaluable expertise in overall town planning. Lisa Mausolf of the NRPC has

also continued to play an integral part in the overall process and operation of the group.

Shared interest and input from the Merrimack Historical Society has continued to

be very helpful. We also thank Pat Blaisdell, office administrator, for her timely and

very effective support to the Commission.

In December, after the election of officers, the membership consisted ofVesta Stenta,

chair; Jim Poulin, vice-chair; Doug Dickinson as secretary and Jan Schnieder. Andrea

Fagan and Jean Craigue continue to be active and participating alternate members.

Respectfully submitted,

Doug Dickinson, Commission secretary
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Merrimack Public Library

1993 Annual Report

Continued growth and changes have marked 1993 at your public library. Maggie

Marshall resigned as Library Director and I was hired effective May 24. Maggie had

provided strong leadership and commitment to the Library, its board, staff and com-

munity for over nine years. I am very pleased to have been selected to carry on in

this great tradition and feel fortunate that Maggie did the job so well before me.

I would like to thank the Board of Library Trustees, the Library staff, those who
work in all departments for the Town of Merrimack, and you, our customers, who
make up the library community for making me feel very welcome. I look forward to

working with you as we explore new ways to provide for your rapidly changing and

growing information needs.

Your Library, along with eight other libraries in the Greater Manchester Interlibrary

Cooperative Library System (GMILCS), began changing to a new automated sys-

tem in the the fall of 1993. At times, this process has disrupted the way you expect

us to do business and we apologize for that. Dynix, the new system, moves us into

the mainstream of the information age and eventually will allow you to dial into the

on-line public access catalog (OPAC) from your PC at home.

Children's programming continued at its usual busy pace with a third evening

storytime added in the fall. We began to assess the possibility of storytimes for two

year olds which we expect to begin in 1994. We began a new initiative in adult

programming with a five session book discussion/lecture series entitled, "AWoman's

Place," partially funded by a grant from the New Hampshire Humanities Council.

Those attending this popular fall program are serving as the nucleus for a monthly

book discussion group led by Library staff.

Construction work on the Library's space at the Adult Community Center was com-

pleted and less frequently used materials are now shelved there for retrieval as re-

quested. While this extra shelving eases our overcrowded condition, it is only a stop-

gap measure for our serious space crisis.

Soon we will be asking you what you want the Library to be in the future as we

develop a community vision to begin to pursue.

Respectfully submitted,

Elizabeth Levy, Director
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Library Staff

Elizabeth Levy Library Director

Technical Services Department

Joyce Purinton Head of Technical Services

Darcy LaBrosse Library Aide

Kathy Starr Library Aide

Adult Services Department

Janet D. Angus Head of Adult Services

Circulation Staff

Madeline Bennett Library Aide

Denise Collett Library Aide

Patricia Daniels Library Aide

Patricia Flynn Library Aide

Mary Lee Gilmore Library Aide

Benita Knight Library Aide

Jane Loughlin Library Aide

Carol Marcus Library Aide

Patricia Tancill Library Aide

David Kenson Page

Janet Segedy Page

Reference Staff

Dianne Hathaway Head of Reference Services

Diane Arrato-Gavrish Interlibrary Loan Librarian

Sandra Harter Reference Aide

Children's Department

Beverly Little Head of Children's Services

Margaret Cobban Library Aide

Pauline Cot Library Aide

Brenda Shattuck. Page

Custodial Services

Ralph Schofield Joan Vadney

Volunteers

Edith Bullard Jane Cooper
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Library Resources

Number of Volumes as of 1/1/93

Number of Volumes added:

Adult Fiction

Adult Non-Fiction

Children's Fiction

Children's Non-Fiction

Easy Books

Total Number of Volumes Added

Total Number of Volumes Discarded

Total Number of Volumes as of 12/31/93

Number of Recordings Owned

Number of Art Prints Owned

Number of Magazine Subscriptions

Number of Newspaper Subscriptions

Number of Microfiche

Number of Videocassettes

Number of Audiocassettes

62,312

1,532

1,801

422

573

406

4,734

1,164

65,882

75

123

220

15

29,768

888

733

Statistical Report

Circulation

Adult Fiction

Adult Non-Fiction

Large Print

Young Adult

Paperbacks

Children's Fiction

Children's Non-Fiction

Easy Books

Periodicals

Sound Recordings

Video Recordings

Museum Passes

Other

TOTAL

37,554

44,056

2,329

6,856

5,886

11,274

17,106

50,033

11,699

8,524

6,806

194

16,535

218,852
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Merrimack Library Trustees

1993 Annual Report

1993 marked the Library's 100 year milestone and the Trustees celebrated by hold-

ing several special events beginning with the Centennial Open House and ending

with a Victorian Tea. During the year the Library saw the end of the Directorship of

Margaret Marshall who left to raise her family. Maggie had been the Director for ten

years and had successfully shepherded the Library's growth in automation, collec-

tion development and circulation.

After an extensive search, the Trustees hired Elizabeth Levy, from the Cambridge,

Massachusetts Library System, as the new Director. The Trustees are very pleased

that she is managing the Library and want to encourage all Merrimack residents to

visit the Library and meet Elizabeth if they have not already had the opportunity to

do so.

The Library's circulation growth increased another 5.4% in 1993, clearly impressing

upon the Trustees the continued need for expansion planning. All areas of the

Library's facilities and materials had increased usage and the Trustees want to say a

special thanks to the Library staff for their support in working with the increased

numbers of patrons and materials. The staff should also be commended for their

flexibility and patience during the long transition from the old automated system to

the new Dynix system.

For their continued support of the Library's activities, the Trustees want to thank

all the town's Library users. A special invitation is given to those in town who haven't

yet discovered what the Library offers to come and browse and meet the staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Margaret Hamm, Chairperson

Patricia Heinrich, Treasurer

Ellen Dube
Christine Mauser
Linda Theroux

135



Trustees Accounts
Fiscal Year 1992-1993

SPECIAL
Balance as of July 1, 1992 2,347.01

Receipts

Book Sale 1,038.40

Hospitality 119.06

Interest 4.98

Programs 160.00

Trust Funds 3,671.87

Watson 862.40

Misc. 101.26

Homework Hotline 2,782.92

Trans, from Beulah Acct. 1,507.00

+ 10,249.89

Disbursements

Building & Grounds 1,507.00

Furniture/Equipment 142.98

Hospitality 1,142.95

Pay Phone 607.42

Programs 1,041.15

Watson 1,151.42

Misc. 117.06

Homework Hot Phone 357.60

Homework Hotline 2,782.92

Centennial 764.87

-(9,615.37)

Balance as 6/30/93 2,981.53

FINES
Balance as of July 1, 1992 1,336.68

Receipts

Food Pantry 682.19

Fines 10,948.91

Copy Machine/Comp. 1,304.55

Reimb. PC. 887.44

Non-Resident Fees 75.00

Interest 7.28

Gifts 1,050.00

*Misc. 1,035.84

Homework Hotline Trans. 3,043.67

Disbursements

Bindery 2,601.10

Centennial 85.41

Materials 9,781.13

Supplies 752.42

Automation 136.91

+ 19,034.33
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Equipment 1,008.29

*Misc. 723.25

Food Pantry 682.19

Homework Hotline 12.50

-15,783.20

Balance as of 6/30/93 4,587.81

*Includes $600 to open new account

FINES - SAVINGS
Balance as of 6/30/93 7,200.69

BEULAH $3,000 CD
Interest Income 1992 37.94

WATSON $25,000 CD
Interest Income 1992 874.52

BEULAH SAVINGS
Balance as of 6/30/93 308.22

Respectfully submitted,

Margaret Hamm, Chairperson Ellen Dube Christine Mauser

Patricia Heinrich, Treasurer Linda Theroux
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1993 Annual Report

Nashua Regional Planning Commission

While this past year saw us continuing to increase and improve our services to mem-
ber communities, 1993 was also a year of considerable organizational change. First,

to enhance local representation and to better respond to the increased responsibili-

ties and opportunities resulting from new federal transportation legislation, the Com-
mission was expanded to include at least one selectman from each of our towns, and

a new quarterly meeting schedule was established. Also, our long standing organiza-

tional objective of making the agency's offices physically accessible to all of our

constituents will be achieved by the beginning of the new year with major renova-

tions being undertaken in cooperation with our building owners.

Among our most significant accomplishments of the year was the Merrimack wet-

lands inventory and mapping project. We also began work with the Merrimack Vil-

lage District on a wellhead protection program; and we provided assistance to the

Conservation Commission in reviving the town's Heritage Trail Committee, and to

the Historic District Commission in conducting an historic resources survey. Our

transportation staff conducted a vehicle classification study on Route #3, and they

reviewed the town's requirements for traffic impact analyses. I offer a briefsummary of

our other notable accomplishments of 1993:

Planning Board Training

In addition to another evening workshop aimed at the needs of our local planning

board members but open to all interested parties in the region - in 1993 we held a

very well attended session entitled "Bridging the Boards: The Role of the Select-

men in Land Use Planning and Enforcement"- we also produced or second plan-

ning board training video on erosion and sedimentation control and made copies

available for circulation.

Regional Transportation Plan

Integrating a variety of existing planning documents with very recent data collec-

tion and analysis - exhaustive traffic and household survey data, a thorough inven-

tory of existing conditions, plus the calibration of a sophisticated transportation model

used for future projections - we completed the development of a comprehensive

transportation plan for the region.

Data Services

With the arrival of additional U.S. Census information, and in our role as a Regional

Data Center for the Bureau of the Census, we responded to a broad spectrum of

information requests. In addition, we prepared a completely revised edition of our

very popular Regional Data Profile.

Souhegan River

The first task in a comprehensive multi-year program focused on the Souhegan River

and its watershed was accomplished as a detailed corridor study including data col-
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lection and analysis of land use, zoning and natural resources was completed. Also,

interested individuals and organizations within the Souhegan Valley were identi-

fied, and an all day workshop was conducted to define the key issues, uses and

values of the river and its watershed. Information on soils, topography, wetlands and

floodplains was added to our Geographic Information System database.

Merrimack River

We continued our participation in the Merrimack River Initiative, a joint undertak-

ing involving local, regional state representatives from both New Hampshire and

Massachusetts as well as federal agency participation in an effort to improve re-

source protection results throughout the river's two state watershed. One very suc-

cessful project of this past year was the design of an intermunicipal and interstate

hazardous material emergency response communication network that involved lo-

cal public safety officials from both New Hampshire and Massachusetts.

Major Transportation Projects

We continued to work with local state and federal officials to spur the implementa-

tion of this region's most significant highway projects including the Everett Turn-

pike widening, the Circumferential Highway and the Route 101A Bypass. NRPC
also contributed to the preparation of the environmental impact statements for both

the Circumferential and 101A, and we encouraged and coordinated public partici-

pation for the projects.

Solid Waste

In pursuit of a long range intermunicipal solution to the problem of solid waste dis-

posal, we continued to work with both the regional Solid Waste Management Dis-

trict and the City of Nashua to investigate the feasibility of an integrated waste

management project for the region. We also prepared an updated summary of the

district's solid waste management plan.

Household Hazardous Waste Collection

In conjunction with the Solid Waste Management District, our staff conducted two

very successful events: a Spring "paint only" collection in Nashua and a comprehen-

sive collection at four sites around the region in the Fall. Of particular note, we
worked with the N.H. Department of Environmental Services and the City ofNashua

in securing a grant from the Environmental Protection Agency for the establish-

ment of the state's first permanent facility for the regular collection of household

hazardous wastes to serve all of our communities.

Traffic Count Program

With automatic counters at over 120 locations, we maintained a regional traffic count

system to provide the most accurate and current data to meet the needs of both

public agencies and private businesses. Peak hour turning movement counts were

also conducted at 43 locations, trend analyses were done for all locations where multi-

year counts were available and a summary report was produced.
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Regional Economic Development

NRPC continued to provide staff support to the Greater Nashua Center for Eco-

nomic Development. Among its accomplishments in 1993 was the establishment of

a revolving loan fund to assist local small businesses in obtaining much needed start up

and expansion financing.

Commuter Survey and Newsletter

With the cooperation of the region's major employers, we administered a survey of

both management and employees to inventory existing commuter assistance pro-

grams and to determine interest in establishing new ones. We also began publica-

tion of a quarterly newsletter on transportation alternatives distributed to employ-

ers, municipalities and institutions.

Flood Plain Management

In conjunction with the N.H. Office of Emergency Management, we provided as-

sistance to a number of communities participating in the National Flood Insurance

Program including assessments of flood prone areas, reviews of current regulations

and suggested revisions to existing ordinances.

I want to close by adding a note of thanks and recognition to our Commissioners

from Merrimack: Ed Silva and Jean Weston; and by expressing my gratitude for the

cooperation and support that we have received from Dick Borden and all of

Merrimack's town officials.

Respectfully submitted,

Don E. Zizzi

Executive Director
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;== Parks and Recreation =^=i^=
1993 Annual Report

It has been another productive and successful year for the Parks and Recreation

Department. Major accomplishments in 1993 were:

Dedication of new ballfield at Veteran's Memorial Park in the memory of

SP. 4 Richard N. Rivard, a Merrimack resident who was killed in Vietnam

while serving his country in 1968. Richard was only 22 years old. A poi-

gnant moment took place after the dedication when Richard's brother threw

out the first ball to begin the MYA little league game.

The first Children's Theatre Festival in the memory of Debbi Wasserman

Bilowit was held on June 12 and proud relatives from as far away as Califor-

nia were among the standing room only crowd.

The acquisition of the island in Naticook Lake as a gift from the Callahan

family of Hollis, NH. The island will be known as "Blueberry Island".

The completion of the Wasserman Park Master Plan, adopted by the Board

of Selectmen to be part of the Town Master Plan. This plan is an indis-

pensable tool for the development of Wasserman Park. Thank you to all

the members of the Wasserman Park Master Plan Committee.

Tennis court renovation at Wasserman Park has begun. Three courts will

be completed by June 1994.

Expansion ofVeteran's Park has begun. We will be adding two little league

fields and a soccer playing area to the east side of the Park.

Our first "Holiday Parade" was a fabulous success. Thank you to the Mer-

rimack Chamber of Commerce and the P&R Committee.

Our second annual "Haunted Hayride" again had an extremely large turn

out, so we must plan for bigger and better in 1994. Thank you to the Mer-

rimack Community Theatre and MY ACT.

The Town will be dedicating a picnic area at Wasserman Park in the memory

of John and Kathleen Zyla in the Spring of 1994.

Our first Easter Egg Hunt at Wasserman Park was a success. Thank you to

Norwood Realty of Merrimack for sponsoring such a wonderful event. We
look forward to working with you again.

All of our Summer programs were filled to capacity. Many private busi-

nesses and public organizations used the Park facilities for their programs

and outings.

Department goals for the coming year include, but are not limited to:

Advertising and promoting Wasserman Park

Development of recreational field space
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Meet the recreational needs of the entire community

Maintain a good working relationship with the MYA, schools, our senior

citizens and all other community organizations.

Respectfully submitted,

Michael A. Housman,

Operations Administrative Supervisor

Sybil S. Rocca, Facilities Coordinator

— Parks and Recreation Department
Michael A. Housman, Operations Administrative Supervisor

Sybil S. Rocca, Facilities Coordinator

Perley "Barney" Rogers, Maintenance Supervisor

Thomas Hudon, Maintenance I

Stephen Curtis, Maintenance I

Parks and Recreation Committee
Drucilla Movizzo, Chairman

Michael Lindsay, Secretary

Phillip Dube
Laura Jaynes

Diane Pearce

John Francis, Senior Citizen Representative

Rosemary Haigwood, MYA Representative

Charles Mower, School Board Representative

Edward Silva, Selectman Representative
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-- Merrimack Planning Board —
1993 Annual Report

The Merrimack Planning Board held 34 publicly advertised meetings during 1993,

for a total of 175 individual hearings. The Board acted on applications for 32 resi-

dential projects, 23 commercial projects, and 16 industrial projects. The Board held

other hearings on long-range planning items including the Master Plan, the Zoning

Ordinance, the Capital Improvement Program, the Nashua-Hudson Circumferen-

tial Highway, and the Manchester Airport Access Highway. There were 18 concep-

tual discussions at which the Board gave advice to citizens. The remainder involved

workshops on administrative matters, departmental budgets, litigation, possible re-

organization of staff offices, and the annual election of officers.

Public hearings resulted in approval or re-approval for 18 conventional subdivision

lots and 28 non-residential site plans. The Board approved 4 surety bonds for road

and sewer construction, approved reductions in 2, released 13, and called 3. One
new residential subdivision has been bonded.

This marks the fourth consecutive year in which the total number of building per-

mits issued has increased over the previous year. The Town issued 969 building

permits this year, a 36% increase over the 711 issued in 1989. The previous high was

1,486 in 1984. This year the Town issued 121 building permits for new, single-

family dwellings, the largest number of such permits in the last seven years.

The Planning Board considered three matters of long-range planning importance:

1) the Board concluded its work with the Nashua Regional Planning Commission

by adopting on May 25, 1993 the updated version of the Town's Master Plan

including a new Future Land Use map;

2) the Board reviewed, held a public hearing, and made a recommendation con-

cerning the Capital Improvement Program, a 6-year budgeting effort to bring to

the attention of the citizens all major capital expenditures which may be pro-

posed for upcoming budget years; and

3) The Board held several discussions and met with the Town Manager to assist in

the development of a reorganization plan for the operation of the Planning De-

partment.

The Board met in joint session with the Zoning Board of Adjustment and the Con-

servation Commission to work out procedural matters designed to enhance the op-

eration of each board's work; the Board assisted in the execution of an Eagle Project

for Boy Scout Adam Hill, a member of local Troop 654; the Board reviewed the

1994-95 Planning Department budget submittal; and the Board made several rec-

ommendations to the Selectmen regarding the disposition ofcertain tax-deeded prop-

erties. After considering several possible changes to the Zoning Ordinance, the Board

decided it was not necessary to submit any further changes to the voters at Town
Meeting. During the latter part of the year, the Planning Director presented to the
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Board a series of tax parcel map versions of the Zoning Maps; by year end, the Board

had met three times to review these clarified maps and may recommend further

changes in 1994 to make these maps easier to read.

Planning Department staff have made substantial progress in the conversion of all

Planning Board, Zoning Board of Adjustment, and building permit files from name
to tax parcel number. In addition, all approved subdivision and site plans have been

entered into a database. This effort has become necessary to more effectively file

and retrieve data related to over 9,500 parcels of land in the Town. Networking of

the computer capability of the department is planned for early in 1994.

The State Department of Transportation began construction on the Gamp Sargent

Road Bypass this year after about 12 years of planning by Town and State officials.

This two-mile segment of road will connect the western end of FE Everett Turn-

pike Interchange 10 (Industrial Drive) with Route 101A (Amherst Street at

Pennichuck Square). Completion of this vital road link is expected by early 1996.

The Planning Board continued to work with the NH Department of Transporta-

tion, the Legislative Delegation, the Board of Selectmen, and other Town groups.

The Board has closely followed the State Department of Transportation's efforts to

redesign the northern terminus of the Nashua-Hudson Circumferential Highway. It

appears that the preferred design will protect wetlands, preserve the Nashua Fish

and Game Club target ranges, and enhance Merrimack's economic development

posture if federal permits are granted and construction commences. Reconstruction

of the Greeley Street Interchange (Exit 11) by the NH DOT was completed during

1993.

The Depot Street car-top boat access point to the Merrimack River was completed

during the late fall. The Town purchased 1.1 acres of land from the Guilford Trans-

portation Company (owners of the railroad). The Town has now added to its list of

fine recreational sites a gently sloping, granite-walled boat ramp; extensive clearing

was done to expose a beautiful view of the Merrimack River. In addition, drainage

which was causing severe erosion, is now in a closed system and is discharged di-

rectly to the river. It is expected that a celebration of this new facility will take place

in the spring of 1994.

Edward Silva continued in his appointment as the Selectmen's representative to the

Planning Board. Nelson Disco was re-elected Chairman and John Segedywas re-elected

Secretary at the annual reorganization meeting which took place on May 25, 1993.

The Board also wishes to thank its staff, Charles Watson, Planning Director; Jean

Weston, Acting Zoning Administrator and Secretary to the Board, and Evelyn Gillis,

Bond Manager, for their capable assistance during the year.

Respectfully submitted,

Nelson R. Disco, Chairman
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Expiration

Members of the Board Date of Term

Nelson R. Disco, Chairman April 1996

John J. Segedy, Secretary April 1995

Arthur L. Gagnon April 1996

Richard W. Barry April 1994

David L. Christensen May 1994

Robert J. Boisvert May 1994

Edward J. Silva May 1994
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i=^^^i; Merrimack Police Department -

1993 Annual Report

The 1993 Annual Report of the Merrimack Police Department is proudly presented

to the citizens of the Town of Merrimack. This publication identifies the dedicated

men and women who serve the Merrimack community day-in and day-out, describes

many of the tasks which your Police Department/Communication Center is called

upon to perform and illustrates some of the most notable events of the past twelve

months.

Accomplishments are many but I would be remiss if I did not point out that in 1988,

Cannon Associates compiled a detailed study of the space needs of the town and the

Police Department/Communication Center in particular. It indicated that your Po-

lice Department/Communications Center at the present time occupies 6,400 square

feet, of which 4,500 square feet is usable space. As we near the end of the twentieth

century, consideration must be given to assessing and increasing the space needs of

the Police Department, in that our workload and function requirements of law en-

forcement are forever changing and we will be remiss if we do not address space

needs so that we may continue to better serve the public and citizens ofour community.

The continued assistance we have received from the Town Manager, Board of Se-

lectmen and other town departments have provided us with the support we need in

order to properly serve and protect the citizens of Merrimack.

It has been a pleasure serving you again this year.

Respectfully submitted:

Joseph R. Devine

Chief of Police

Table of Organization

Chief of Police

Joseph R. Devine

Patrol
Deputy Chief William Mulligan - Patrol Commander

Lt. Robert Ritchie - Shift Supervisor

Lt. Paul Stavenger - Shift Supervisor

Lt. Michael Milligan - Shift Supervisor

Sgt. Lawrence Westholm - Asst. Shift Supervisor

Sgt. Michael Dudash - Asst. Shift Supervisor

Sgt. Mark Doyle - Asst. Shift Supervisor
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Off. Brian Boulay Off. John Maille

Off. Timothy Connell Off. Christopher Moreny

Off. Richard Desmond Off. Michael Murray

Off. Daniel Edmonds Off. Scott Park

Off. Dennis Foley Off. Paul Poirier

Off. Dean Killkelley Off. Carl Scott

Off. Walter Kwiecinski Off. Kenneth Stimson

Off. Ronald LeVierge Off. Paul Trepaney

Criminal Investigation Unit

Det/Lt. William Miller - Unit Commander

Det. James Hughes

Det. Peter Albert

Det. Theodore Curtis

Juv/Det. Ronald Ketchie

Administrative Service Division

Lt. Thomas Iverson Jr. - Department Prosecutor & Department Training Officer

Off. Bradford Cross - Community Service Officer

Carol Yule - Secretary to the Chief

Barbara Mitchell - Secretary to the Detective Unit

Joan Vasco - Records

Judy York - Records

Kathleen Hart - Records

Animal Control Unit

Maureen Minton - Animal Control Officer

Willard Brown - Part/time Animal Control Officer

Special Police Officers

S/O Alan Doty S/O Scott Kurzweil

S/O Lawrence Doty S/O William McGowan

S/O John Dudash S/O Edward Pane

S/O Arthur Dunn S/O Denise Roy

S/O Joseph Goodridge S/O Eric Sobel

147



Patrol Division Activity and Service for 1993

During 1993 your police department responded to a total of 1 1,350 requests for ser-

vice.

Requests for Service by Beats: 1993 1992

Beat #1 2,569 2,524

Beat#2 4,447 4,165

Beat #3 2,828 2,850

Beat #4 1,506 1,503

11,350 11,042

Requests for Service by Time of Day

0700- 1500 Hours 4,643 4,540

1500 -2300 Hours 4,443 4,415

2300 - 0700 Hours 2,264 2,087

11,350 11,042

Other Police Activity

Ambulance Assists 690 682

Bomb Threats 2 4

Fire Department Assists 635 684

Animal Complaints 1,146 812

Bank Escorts 39 47

Missing Persons 79 58

House Checks 455 559

Unsecured Premises 274 152

Good Morning Calls 2,082 1,972

Motor Vehicle Lockouts 346 173

Bank Checks 72 119

Burgular Alarms 768 689
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Part #2 Offenses

1993 1992

<*$* C> ^ <^ of </

1000

i 1100

Forgery &
Counterfeiting

Fraud

2

29

2

16

1200 Embezzlement

1300

j

1400

Possessing Stolen

Property

Criminal Mischief

Over $100

Under $100

9

308

89

219

9

67

10

57

1500

;
1600

Weapons - Carrying

& Possessing

Prostitution

2 2

j

1700 Sex Offenses 30 8

1800 Narcotic Offenses 48 47

!
1900 Gambling Offenses

2000 Offenses Against

Family and Children

12 2

!
2100 OUIL

(Under the influence

of intox. liquor)

74 74

2200

2300

Liquor Law
Violations

Intoxication

37

44

37

44

2400 Disorderly Conduct 12 12

2600 Other Offenses 259 138

866 458 12

Total Part #1 & Part #2 = 966 or 57%

10 2

22 10

5 4

289 32 3

99 27 3

190 5

3 3

30 2 4

43 43

7 3 1

57 56

79 79

44 44

18 14

225 211

832 508
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Traffic Accident and Traffic Enforcement Summary
1992

93

373

52

518

1,835

30

191

14

56

90

5,396

701

8,313

Accident Summary 1993

Fatal Accidents 1

Personal Injury Accidents 75

Investigated Property Damage Accidents 368

Non-Investigated Accidents 62

506

Enforcement Summary
Motor Vehicle Summons 2,433

Summons Issued at Accidents 35

Summons Issued With Reports 208

O.U.I.L. Arrests at Accidents 9

O.U.I.L. Arrests (non-accident) 74

Parking Enforcement 47

Traffic Warnings Issued 5,367

D.E. Tags Issued 807

8,980

AlMTMAT PONTROT OFFT/^T:t>,cnil iivir\Ly ^•wix i jtvwl v-Tr

Animal Complaints 1,146

Cruelty Reports 9

Bites Reported 28

Abates Served 19

Running at large 175

Nuisance Offense 25

Menace Offense 12

Vicious Offense 5

Summons Served 96

Stray Farm Animals 11

Wild Life Calls 259

Dogs Impounded 114

Dogs Released to Owners 105

Dogs Adopted 5

Dogs 10-2/Taken to N.H.S. 5

for Cremation

Dogs Released to N.H.S. 4

Cats Impounded 20

Cats Released to Owner 7

Cats Adopted 5

Cats Released to Kitty Angels

Cats 10-2 Taken to N.H.S.
For Cremation 55

Cats Released to N.H.S. 4

812

9

28

13

160

21

2

10

29

7

159

129

120

10

5

3

7

2

3

38

11
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Prosecutor's Report For 1993

Motor Vehicle Activity Town Ordinance State

Violations

Speed 31 1667

Uninspected 172

Unregistered 80

Financial Responsibility 12

Revocation and Suspension 87

Driving while Intoxicated 86

No Valid License 103

Stop Sign 33

Traffic Light 171

Solid Line 38

Fuel User Permit 10

School Bus Violations 13

Change of Address 10

Parking Violations 12

Reckless Operation 31

Miscellaneous Violations 189

Criminal Activity

Criminal Trespass 18

Bad Checks 4

Sex Offenses 4

Criminal Mischief 13

Assault and Reckless Conduct 56

Animal Complaints 46

Resisting Arrest 12

1993 Juvenile Cases

January 9

February 6

March 13

April 22

May 14

June 23

July 13

August 13

September 18

October 22

November 15

December 24
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Divisions join together in recognizing drug activities whre they are not obvious and together

they have demonstrated great success in our fight against drugs within our community

during 1993.

Activity for our N.I.U. during 1993 in conjunction with our Patrol Division was as follows:

January

(1) a. Possession of a controlled drug

b. Transportation of a controlled drug

(1) a. Possession of a controlled drug

b. Transportation of a controlled drug

Total incidents - 2

February

( 1 ) a. Possession of a controlled drug

b. Transportation of a controlled drug

(1) a. Possession of a controlled drug

Total incidents - 2

March

April

May

June

(1) a. Possession of a controlled drug

Total incidents - 1

(1) a. Possession of a controlled drug

Total incidents - 2

(1) a. Possession of a controlled drug

Total incidents - 3

(1) a. Possession of a controlled drug

Total incidents - 1

Total incidents between January and June 1993 - 11 Misdemeanors

July

(1

)

a. Possession of a controlled drug

b. One count of destruction of evidence

(2) a. Possession of a narcotic drug, cocaine

b. Possession with intent to distribute a narcotic drug, cocaine

c. Sale of a narcotic drug, cocaine

Total incidents -13

August

(1) a. Possession of a controlled drug

(1) a. Possession of a controlled drug with intent to distribute

Total incidents - 2

September

(4) a. Possession of a controlled drug

Total incidents - 4
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1993 Juvenile Cases

types of gases

04 Aggravated Assault 1

05 Burglary; Breaking and Entering 1

1

06 Larceny - Theft (Except Auto Theft) 18

07 Motor Vehicle Theft 1

08 Assaults (Except Aggravated Assault) 19

13 Stolen Property; Buying, Receiving, Poss. 4

14 Vandalism 18

15 Weapons 1

17 Sexual Assault/Indecent Exposure 1

18 Drugs; Poss, Sales, Manufacturing 4

22 Liquor Law Violations 12

23 Intoxication 4

24 Disorderly Conduct 6

26 All Other Offenses (Except Traffic) 35

28 Uncontrollable 4

29 Runaways 52

34 Motor Vehicle (Under Age of 16) 1

Age Groups No. ofJuveniles

9 years of age 1

10 years of age

1

1

years of age 6

12 years of age 10

13 years of age 29

14 years of age 36

15 years of age 45

16 years of age 58

17 years of age 54

Juveniles Involved

Male - 175 Female - 64

Residence

Local New Hampshire (other) Out of State

180 52 7

Disposition

1. Handled within Department and released - 131

2. Referred to Juvenile Court - 103

3. Referred to Welfare Agency -

1

4. Referred to Other Police Agency - 4

Narcotics Unit (N.I.U.)

Today, drugs are the primary threat to our community and the prevalent method of

distribution takes place on the street. Our Narcotics Unit in conjunction with our Patrol
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D.A.R.E. Program

The D.A.R.E. Program has been implemented within the Merrimack school sys-

tem, benefiting grades two, four and the entire core class of the sixth grade.

Our program provides information, direction, decision making skills and promotes

high self-esteem and motivation to stay drug free.

The area of instruction is to give the students the talents to identify emergencies,

have knowledge of stranger awareness, recognizing the dangers and misuse of drugs

and the ability to say no and tell others to be aware of the consequences.

The D.A.R.E. program has reached over three thousand school-age children since it

started in 1989.

Community Service

The Community Service section is staffed by one officer. His functions are many

but his main responsibility is to serve the Merrimack Community. He does this in

many different ways through programs that are available to the community.

Available Community Service Programs:

Neighborhood Crime Watch

Stranger Awareness

Child Abuse

Theft & Shoplifting

Home & Business Security Surveys

Drug & Alcohol Abuse

Driving Under the Influence

Operation House Check

Good Morning Program

Rape Awareness/Defense

Bicycle Safety

School Bus Safety

Highway Safety

Emergency Response & Liability

Baby-sitter Safety

Halloween Safety

Station Tours

Operation Identification

Child Safety Seat Lending

(Kiwanis sponsored)

Programs Requested by the Citizens of Merrimack in 1993 Include:

St. James Kindergarten

A.C.T. Kindergarten

P.T.A. Kindergarten

So. Merrimack Christian Kindergarten

Toll House Preschool

Kidd's Inn Preschool

Children's World Preschool

Hilton Drive Crimewatch

Merrimack High School

Merrimack Middle School

Mastricola Elementary School

Grace Baptist School

Boy Scouts

Girl Scouts

Tiger Cub Scouts

Project Safeguard

Other Activities

Board of Directors Merrimack Action Committee

Board of Directors Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

Advisory Committee; Project Safeguard
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Police Coordinator Merrimack Crimeline Inc.

Merrimack Communications Center

Supervisor

Paul J. Bolieau

Dispatchers

Joseph Anello JohnSpence

Judy Decato Chester Zajac

Michele Dudash

In case of emergency:

If your telephone exchange begins with 424 or 429 dial 9-1-1

All others dial 424-2222

For business dial: 424-3774 or 424-2378

Communications Center Activity During 1993

Telephone calls placed 10,632

Telephone calls received 61,490

Radio Transmissions 321,160

Burglar Alarms Answered 768

Good Morning Calls 2,081

During 1993 the Communications Center saw increases in some areas ofour activity

and slight decreases in other areas. 1993 was an eventful year in that several storms

tested the Communications Center's ability to handle crisis situations. We had nec-

essary training for our dispatchers with a goal to increase training during 1994. We
have worked very closely with other departments in order to greatly enhance our

radio communications for all Town departments. In closing we would like to thank

all the department and division heads, the Town Manager and the Board of Select-

men for their continued support in making the Merrimack Communications Center

one of the best in the state.
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— Department of Public Works —

1993 Annual Report

During the past year, the Town reached several significant milestones. Of particular

importance, we began constructing a new in-vessel composting system this Octo-

ber. This state-of-the-art facility will serve to meet the Town's needs to manage the

biosolids produced at our Wastewater Treatment Facility and produce a high qual-

ity compost which can be used for agricultural, and horticultural applications. The
Department appreciates the confidence and commitment the Town exhibited at last

year's Town Meeting to vote this project forward.

A second significant milestone reached is recycling over two million pounds of ma-

terial at our recycling facility. This is an increase often percent over last year, and

when coupled with other materials recycled at the landfill (tires, white goods, cloth-

ing, antifreeze and batteries), the Town has recycled almost sixteen hundred tons of

materials this past year.

While reaching these milestones, there were a number of other improvements made

to our infrastructure. We reconstructed Lyons Road, Parkhurst Road, and Wood-

ward Road, constructed a sidewalk along McElwain Street, constructed the Depot

Street River Access, paved Route 3 from Elm Street to Church Street, and built a

number of spot drainage improvements throughout Town. Perhaps, one of the more

intense challenges faced by the Department personnel was the "Blizzard of 93" in

March. Everybody in Town pitched-in and together we got through it.

This past year was also unfortuantely marked by a period of sadness with the pass-

ing away of Bill Drohan. Bill had worked for the Town for eight years and was well

respected by all of his fellow employees. A family man, Bill always had an encouraging

word. We will miss him.

There are challenges ahead of us as well. The days we can rely on our landfill for

solid waste disposal are limited. When the landfill closes, we will be faced with two

new costs: (1) the cost of closing the landfill to State and Federal standards, and (2)

the cost of disposing of waste at a licensed facility. Both of these costs are signifi-

cant, and that's why it is important now to do everythin possible to reduce the amount

of solid waste we produce. Remember, reduce, recycle, compost. . . then throw what's

left away.

Significant accomplishments listed by each Division are listed below:

Administration/Engineering

• Technical advisor to Nashua Regional Planning Commission, Nashua Area Re-

gional Transportation Committee, and Nashua Regional Solid Waste District.

• Coordinated with New Hampshire Department ofTransportation regarding con-

struction of the Camp Sargent By-Pass, design of the Nashua-Hudson Circum-

ferential Highway, and planning for N.H. 101A By-Pass.
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• Designed and administered construction of the Depot Street River Access boat

launch.

• Technical advisor to the Merrimack Solid Waste Advisory Committee.

• Coordinated with the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services and

Environmental Protection Agency regarding theNew Hampshire Plating Superfund

site.

• Continued negotiations with the New Hampshire Department of Environmen-

tal Services regarding Landfill closure.

• Initiated a computer based drainage inventory system.

|» Initiated a Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition system at the Wastewater

Treatment Facility.

• Designed improvements to Baboosic Lake Road.

Highway Division

Reconstructed Woodward Road and Parkhurst Road.

Reconstructed Lyons Road including drainage and parking improvements.

Constructed McElwain Street sidewalk.

Constructed Knollwood Drive Extension including drainage improvements.

Constructed drainage improvements on Bradford Drive.

Assisted pavement overlay of Route 3 from Elm Street to Church Street.

Completed centerline pavement markings on all arterial and collector roads in-

cluding stop bars and crosswalks.

Continued cracksealing on major arterial roadways.

Swept all Town streets.

Maintained all Town cemeteries.

Assisted in constructing Depot Street River Access project.

Responded to over 700 Service Requests.

Performed snow and ice removal operations for twenty winter storms.

Solid Waste and Recycling Division

• Increased recycling by ten percent at the Recycling Facility.

• Recycled almost 1600 tons of material including glass, cardboard, newsprint, plas-

tics, aluminum cans, tin cans, magazines, mixed office paper, scrap metal, oil,

antifreeze, batteries, tires and white goods.

• Continued yard waste windrow composting program which recycles typically about

seventeen percent of the residential waste stream.

• Hosted a Household Hazardous Waste Collection Day.

• Continued extended service hours during daylight savings time.
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• Performed public education programs, and published newsletters.

Equipment Maintenance Division —
• Continued to maintain, repair and service Town owned fleet trucks, equipment,

and cars including Merrimack Village District fleet.

• Volunteered time to build Police D.A.R.E. vehicle.

• Assisted during winter snow and ice storms.

• Continued State inspections and emissions testing of all Town owned vehicles.

• Assisted the Highway Division, Solid Waste Division, Police Department and

the Merrimack Village District in purchasing equipment and vehicles.

Buildings & Grounds Division

• Continued to administer community service program in conjunction with Merri-

mack District Court and Probation Department.

• Maintenance of Library and municipal complex grounds.

• Painted various offices in the Police Department, east wing and west wing of

TownHall.

• Performed various plantings.

Wastewater Division

• The Wastewater Treatment Facility collected and treated approximately 1.17

billion gallons of wastewater with 98 percent removal for biochemical oxygen

demand and suspended solids. The facility also received and treated approxi-

mately 3.28 million gallons of septage.

• Continued reduced ammonia and phosphoric acid consumption through improved

effluent monitoring.

• Replaced heating system at various remote buildings at treatment facility and

pumping stations to further reduce energy costs.

• Continue training program for hazardous material response including develop-

ment of chemical release response plan and participation in Local Emergency

Planning Committee.

• Continue computer based Collector System Inventory and Maintenance Sched-

ule.

• Initiated engineering evaluation of instrumentation and process control to fur-

ther reduce or maintain operating expenses.

• Laboratory continued with State of N.H. certification program.

Compost Division

• Began construction of an enclosed organic waste composting facility at the Mer-

rimack Wastewater Treatment Facility.

• Continue to receive approval from Massachusetts Department of Environmental

Protection to market stockpiles of compost and current production of compost.

158



• Produced approximatley 24,000 cubic yards of compost; screened and marketed

approximatley 1,800 cubic yards of compost.

In closing, we look forward to serving the Town in the upcoming years and appreci-

ate the support and commitment the Town has provided this past year.

Respectfully submitted,

Earle M. Chesley, P.E.

Director ofPublic Works & Engineering
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Merrimack Department of Public Works

Director of Public Works & Engineering

Earle M. Chesley, P.E.

Secretary

Rebecca Starkey

Highway Division

Assistant Director of Public Works
John M. Starkey

Highway Superintendent

Bruce Moreau

Highway Foremen
Joe Tomolonis

Boyd E. Trask

Robert Brooks, Equipment. Oper. Ill

Robert Burley, Equip. Oper. I

*William Drohan, Equip. Oper. II

Bruce Evans, Equip. Oper. I

Steven Gallagher, Equip. Oper. I

Lawrence Gay, Equip. Oper. II

William Gilbody, Equip. Oper. I

Leonard Heath, Equip. Oper. I

Donald Larouche, Equip. Oper.

Richard Letellier, Equip. Oper.

Robert Lovering, Equip. Oper.

Dennis Maglio, Equip. Oper.

Joseph Maguire, Equip. Oper. II

John Ramos, Equip. Oper.

Dennis Soucy, Equip. Oper.

Jeff Strong, Equip. Oper. I

Robert Sullivan, Equip. Oper.

* Deceased 5/14/93

Dispatcher

Sandra Lawlor

Secretary

Suzanne Gerow

Equipment Maintenance Division

Equipment Maintenance Superintendent

Rossiter R. Holt, Jr.

Ronald Bergeron, Mechanic II

Brian Friolet, Mechanic II

James Graham, Mechanic II

Sam Walker, Mechanic I
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Solid Waste Division

Solid Waste Foreman
Steven Doumas

Scale Operator/Secretary

Marjorie Allgaier

Kenneth Mason, Equip. Oper. Ill Earl Dubois, Equip. Oper. Ill

John Murray, Recycling Attendant Eric Streeper, Recycling Attendant

Building Grounds & Maintenance Division

Custodian Maintenance Supervisor

Philip Meschino

Part-time Custodians

James Marty

Steven Cook

Daniel Ketchie

Wastewater Division

Assistant Director of Public WorksAVastewater Division

Larry R. Spencer

Chief Operator

James E. Taylor

Assistant Chief Operator

Wayne Johnson

Maintenance Manager
Lee Vogel

Sewer Inspector

Donald A. Hamel

Laboratory Manager
Sharan Facteau

Industrial Wastewater Pretreatment Manager
Roger Descoteaux

Secretary

Becky Sullivan

Richard Blanchard, Operator II/Lab. Technician

Cecil Peters, Operator II

James Fogg, Operator II

James Davala, Operator I

Thaddeus Gill, Operator I

David Lyons, Operator I

William Adams, Operator I

David Evans, Operator I

Donald Doucerte, Mechanic II

Robert MacGrath, Mechanic II

James Dwire, Mechanic II

Lindsay Wilson, Mechanic II

Stephen Garczynski, Mechanic I

David Blaine, Operator I
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Compost Division

Compost Foreman
James Butler

Wilfred Patrick, Equipment Operator II

***Christopher Zoukis, Equipment Operator II

*** (seasonal)
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—
Board of Selectmen - 1993 Annual Report =

!At long last, it seems that Southern New Hampshire is finally starting to come out of

,a deep and protracted economic recession. All indications are that the recovery will

be steady, but extremely slow. Merrimack and other communities in the region,

therefore, will continue to experience a large backlog of uncollected taxes. Your

Board ofSelectmen and administrative staff have been attempting to cope with both

sides of the financial ledger simultaneously. Cost economies, by necessity, have

been effected while, at the same time, we have had to deal with a shortfall in tax

; receipts as a result of the non-payment of taxes by businesses and some residential

.properties. The shortfall in revenues has been exacerbated by the large number of

tax appeals that have been taken since the 1989 revaluation.

Financial

It was necessary to curtail all but essential spending during the last two months of

the fiscal year in order to complete the year without incurring a deficit. You can be

assured that we will continue to monitor carefully the expenditure of all tax dollars

to be certain that we are operating as economically as possible, especially during

these difficult financial times.

Recreation

Several years ago, additional recreation opportunities were one of the major needs

that was identified in town. Your Selectmen embarked on a policy to meet the ob-

jective of providing more and better recreation opportunities with the purchase of

Wasserman Park. Each year over the last several years we have made steady im-

provements to the facilities at Wasserman Park. At the close of the fiscal year, work

was progressing on the rebuilding of two of the tennis courts and it is proposed to

finance the rebuilding of the remaining three, along with the basketball courts dur-

ing the fiscal 1993-94 year. Minor improvements continue to be made at our other

recreation facilities through the cooperation of the Parks & Recreation committee,

working with the Merrimack Youth Association and other volunteers.

Cable TV

The Cable-TV Advisory Committee, your Board of Selectmen and administrative

staff have all spent a great deal of time monitoring the services provided by our local

cable-TV operator, the Americable group. The Cable TV Advisory Committee has

compiled a comprehensive report addressing many citizen complaints and concerns

with the service. Additionally, we have joined with several other regional towns and

will be working together as we approach the timeframe for renegotiating a cable-TV

franchise. Substantial time and effort is being committed to monitoring and, hope-

fully, upgrading the level of cable-TV services provided to our citizens.

Public Works

The final work was completed on the Greeley Street, Exit 11, interchange. The

new interchange is a major improvement in the traffic flow and should help us in our
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efforts to attract new business and industry.

1) Camp Sargent Road Bypass. The contract was signed and work commenced on

this badly-needed project at the close of the fiscal year.

2) Recycling. The recycling effort at the town Landfill continues to be outstanding

with over two million pounds of recyclable materials being diverted from the

wastestream. With only a very limited life left in our landfill, it is extremely impor-

tant that we continue to remove as much material as possible from our wastestream.

Recycling not only saves money, but extends the life of the landfill. The coopera-

tion of our citizens in this regard is very much appreciated.

Near the close of the fiscal year Richard S. Borden Jr. was hired as town manager to

take over from Acting Town Manager James Pitts. Shortly thereafter, Mr. Pitts ac-

cepted the position of city Manager in Franklin and left the town's employ. It has

been a difficult two years with the loss of former manager Dan Ayer after an ex-

tended illness. Many difficult administrative and financial issues continue to face

the town and we are confident that everyone will work hard together to make steady

progress in the effective handling of Merrimack's affairs.

The Board of Selectmen wishes to publicly acknowledge with grateful appreciation

the efforts of "the dedicated employees of the town, the volunteers who serve on

our various boards and commissions, and the many community-spirited citizens who
come forward to work on special projects or to offer their help and support. The
efforts and the positive attitudes of our citizens help make Merrimack an outstand-

ing community.

Finally, please remember your Board of Selectmen conducts open, public meetings

on the first and third Thursday of each month, along with special meetings and

public hearings as required. Citizens are cordially invited to attend our meetings

and take an active role in your town's government. We encourage and welcome your

input on any issue of concern at any time.

Respectfully submitted,

MERRIMACK BOARD OF SELECTMEN
Richard E. Dumont, Chairman

Edward J. Silva, Vice Chairman

Robert W. Brundige

Leonard C. Worster

William R. Cote
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= Merrimack Solid Waste Advisory Committee =
1993 Annual Report

The Merrimack Solid Waste Advisory Committee met monthly during 1993. Our

Goals were to investigate various recycling and waste management alternatives, find

la solution to the car tire problem at the landfill, volunteer at the Recycling center to

find trouble spots and help eliminate them, and consider the closure for the landfill.

The Solid Waste Advisory Committee was invited by the Selectman to accompany

them to Bennington Vermont to visit their new operating composting center. The

Solid Waste Advisory Committee agreed it was the best solution to handling leaf

and lawn grass as well as gray material eliminating a large portion of material from

(landfills. International Processing System presented a similar plan for Merrimack

and the Selectman and Solid Waste Committee decided to present it to the town for

approval. We had the ground breaking for our own composting center on December

15, 1993.

We have received several letters asking if we could have a swap of good articles at

the landfill. Richard Duprey put together a list of possible things that we thought

;
could be considered. This list was forwarded to Chip Chesley Director of Depart-

ment of Public Works and he reduced it to objects that would be safe. Mr. Chesley

'

is now checking on the many issues that have to be settled before an operation like

this could be implemented. If approved, an area will be set aside for people to bring

articles they no longer need but hate to throw away. Then people could go and

collect articles they need. This eliminates adding to the landfill.

In 1992 the Committee recognized Can's for Kids for taking more out of the landfill

by putting bins over the Merrimack area to collect aluminum cans. 1993 had three

winners, Anheuser-Busch, Inc. in the large business group, Anni Etilli's restaurant

for the medium sized, and Woodbury condominium recycling association for the

private sector. They were presented with a trophy and certificate, the trophies will

be recycled this year to new winners of the award. Any business is eligible and forms

are in the foyer of the town hall. Our Awareness Sub Committee evaluates the en-

tries by visiting the places to see their recycling process. The 1994 Contest opened

in January and the entry forms are located in Town Hall foyer.

We were asked by the Chamber ofCommerce to participate in the MerrimackTown

Showcase '93 at the Ramada Hotel. We had an exhibit of recycled objects. Two liter

soda bottles are recycled into the fuzz on tennis balls, Dish detergent bottles into

more detergent bottles, and plastic into plastic wood that is used in construction.

We hope to participate again in Showcase '94 where we will put on a different dis-

play showing more recycled materials. We enjoyed meeting many people, hearing

their concerns and ideas. We are actively looking into the concerns they mentioned.

Approximately 35,000 tires were prevented from our landfill by being collected and

shredded. A trailer was added to collect and prevent additional tires from being

added to our landfill. Our next goal is to come up with a solution on the larger pile in

the lagoon area.
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We took turns working at the recycling center on Saturdays. One of the problems we
noticed was the amount of time taken in recycling. If you separate prior to arrival

you can get through the recycling faster, also using other days to recycle will help

cut down time. Also, we recommend that children four and under stay in cars for

their safety. At that age they are usually too short to be seen if they venture between

cars in line at the recycling center.

We distributed flyers at the 4th of July town festivities about the landfill, and it's

status. We had several suggestions offered to us at that time, to make recycling man-

datory, to recycle Styrofoam, and yogurt cups. One thing we need to remind every-

one is not all plastics are recycled. We recycle what we have markets for.

We attended Seminars on business and private Composting and Recycling with in

the state. It was interesting to see the different ways things can be recycled and

composted in the farm areas and city recycling.

We are putting tips on recycling in the Village Crier. Please watch for them monthly.

We are now discussing closure and what will be the alternative.

A Recycling booklet is being put together by the Solid Waste Advisory committee

on recycling of where to and what you can recycle. We hope to mail this out to all

households in Merrimack. We are accepting advertising to help pay for this book. If

interested please call and ask about the add costs, that can be given to you by any of

the following people. Nancy Toms, 429-8460, Richard Duprey, 424-9678 and Mark

Maguire, 424-2653. W7

e will send out a form explaining ad size and costs of the ads.

Your Solid Waste Advisory Committee. Nancy Toms, Richard Duprey, Ted Par-

menter, Pete Gagnon, ChipChesley Public Works Department, Mark Maguire, Bill

Cote, Selectman, Robert Kelly, and Bob L'Heureux. Our Meetings are the second

Thursday of every month, 7:30 P.M. in the Town Hall, and open to the public.
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Town Manager 1993 Annual Report

As most of our townsfolk realize, I was appointed Town Manager effective April 25,

1993. At the close of the fiscal year on June 30, 1993, I had only been on the job a

little more than two months.

Merrimack faced many difficult challenges, not the least of which was extremely

tight economic times. Shortly after coming on board, I realized that we were very close

to running out of funds to finish the fiscal year. During my first month on the job, I froze

all spending except for essential items in an effort to curtail costs and prevent us from

incurring a deficit. We did, in fact, finish the fiscal year with a surplus of $78, 795.

In June, Administrative Services Officer Jim Pitts, who served as Acting Town Man-

ager prior to my hire, left the town's employ to become City Manager in Franklin.

At the close of the fiscal year, work was underway to re-evaluate and restructure the

position before recruiting for a replacement.

Negotiations were underway with the Police Union to resolve a new contract for the

next three or four years. Preliminary talks were also initiated with our three other unions.

In May of 1993, the voters approved a $5 million appropriation for a new sludge

composting facility to compost the many tons of sludge generated weekly at the

Wastewater Treatment Facility. We then proceeded to finalize the contract in prepa-

ration for putting the badly-needed facility out to bid.

At the close of the fiscal year, we were faced with many difficult tax appeals, mainly

from commercial and industrial firms who were appealing their 1989, 1990, 1991

and 1992 taxes. We undertook extensive work with our town attorneys in defending

these appeals and attempting to negotiate settlements. Progress was being made in

our attempts to settle some major cases. Tax appeals were, and continue to be, a very

significant financial problem for the Town of Merrimack as they have the potential of

several million dollars of lost tax revenues to the town, including interest and legal fees.

As we closed out the fiscal year, we were faced with continuing negotiations with

three unions, extensive time being committed to tax appeals, road repair work and

many smaller special projects. We then set up our operations for the new fiscal year

and proceeded with work on organizational and procedural changes that needed to

be implemented to allow us to operate as efficiently as possible.

Let me say that Merrimack is a very enjoyable place to live and work and I look forward

to meeting and working with many of you during fiscal 1994 and into the future. Any

citizen who has comments, suggestions or ideas is welcome to stop in at Town Hall to

see me or call at any time. In closing, let me also thank our Board of Selectmen, mem-
bers ofthe various boards and commissions, and the members ofour capable administra-

tive staffwho have all worked very hard to assist me in getting started here in Merrimack.

Respectfully Submitted,

Richard S. Borden Jr. Town Manager

167



^^^^^^^ Welfare Department ;=^==s=
1993 Annual Report

With the completion of serving my first full year as the Merrimack Welfare Admin-

istrator, I have discovered that being involved in welfare is far greater than just pro-

viding financial assistance, but also providing a sense of direction, security, compas-

sion and hope. These ideals will continue to flourish as I maintain an atmosphere of

optimism in assisting the need of our community.

As our economy continues to provide hard times, the Merrimack Job Pool continues

to grow. There are approximately 240 members who are currently seeking full time

permanent employment. In comparison with last years numbers there are an addi-

tional 20 members, even though some members have found job placements. Al-

though the job Pool is administered by volunteers we are able to maintain opera-

tional hours of Tuesday to Friday, 9:00 A.M. to 1:00 P.M. located at Town Hall.

A special THANKS to Chic and Rona Wasserman for making it possible for less

fortunate children to attend camp. Through the welfare program, we were able to

put smiles on four children as they attended a two week camp session at Naticook

Day Camp during the summer.

During this year the Abbie Griffin Fund was able to assist many residents with out-

standing hospital bills. The Fund paid $13,996.00 to local hospitals on behalf of 13

residents who applied for the help. Any resident having financial problems may
submit a request for assistance with their hospital bills during the month ofNovem-
ber. There will be an ad in the local papers during November or call Cindy McGuire

at Town Hall for more information.

The expenditures for fiscal year 1992-93 were under budget of$164,225 by $28,392,

and revenues of $24,285. With a current budget of $161,970 for fiscal year 1993-94,

we have expended 23%, representing less than a quarter at the end of December.

Even though the clientele continued to average from 25 to 30 per month, we have

been able to provide assistance through the use of other grants that have been made

available, thus reducing our expenditures.

Hillsborough Community Action Program provided fuel assistance to 126 house-

holds or 340 people in Merrimack last winter with an estimated cost of $52,000.

This represents 2% of Merrimack's population and an increase of 24% from the

previous winter. In addition, the welfare office expended $4,041. to PSNH for 32

clients, $743. to Energy North for 3 clients and $1,561. to Rochettes Oil for 16 cli-

ents. The Merrimack Crisis Fund also assisted 8 residents totalling $887.27 towards

their heating source.

As we continue to move forward in this economy, welfare reform and federally funded

programs will be explored. We will continue to concentrate on legislation, the es-

tablishing of new laws, and programs that will best benefit our community.

Respectfully Submitted,

Cynthia McGuire, Welfare Administrator
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- Zoning Board of Adjustment -

1993 Annual Report

The Zoning Board of Adjustment held twelve public hearings from January 1, 1993

to December 31, 1993. Fifty-two cases were reviewed as compared to seventy-four

in 1992. One-halfof the cases reviewed and granted in 1993 dealt with setback prob-

lems some of which were existing structures prior to the enactment of regulations

and some constituted encroachments.

Four special exceptions were granted for accessory dwelling units in single family

dwellings. Six variances were granted for lots with less than the required lot area,

two variances were granted to allow auto repair in the Aquifer Conservation Dis-

trict, four special exceptions were granted to allow restaurant use in the Limited

Commercial Zone, and two sign variances were granted.

This year C.R. Porembski chose not to be re-appointed to the Board, Lea Ann Sarette,

Past Chairperson also resigned, and Bruce Nightingale resigned while relocating to

Massachusetts. The Board membership has changed with David Sturm, John Astill,

and Diane Adams being appointed full members of the Board and Robert Hartel

appointed as an alternate Board member. Charles Roberts was elected Chairman

and David Sturm was elected Vice-Chairman.

Jean Weston is serving as Acting Zoning Administrator and Rita Carlton provides

clerical support as the recorder of minutes ofthe Zoning Board ofAdjustment meet-

ings.

Special recognition must be given to Bruce Nightingale and Chuck Porembski for

the many years of service on the Board. Also the Board recognizes the services and

hard work contributed by Lea Ann Sarette, our former Chairperson.

Respectfully submitted by the members

of the Zoning Board of Adjustment:

Charles L. Roberts, Chairman

David G. Sturm, Vice Chairman

Maurice P. Lindsay

K. John Astill

Diane M. Adams

Lon S. Woods, Alternate

Robert J. Hartel, Alternate
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TnwiM Ct fri<::'s Report —

June 30, 1993
Collections:

Auto Registrations $1,639,268.00

Bad Check Handling Fees 880.00

Certified Copies 2,352.00

Civil Forfeitures 1,405.00

Dog Licenses 7,523.00

Marriage Licenses 7,400.00

Miscellaneous Receipts 1,008.71

Cash Over 179.25

Parking Fines 558.60

Cash Short (141.45)

Title Applications 8,910.00

Town Agent Fees 40,962.00

U.C.C. Filings 9,571.70

Voter Checklist .00

Total Collections $1,719,876.81

Total Remitted to Treasurer

Summary of Amrt (LANCE RlLLTNC

$1,719,876.81

Period Ending June 30, 1993

— DR—
Uncollected at 6/30/92 $33,024.94

Billed 7/1/92 thru 6/30/93 $66,465.89

TOTAL DEBITS $99,490.83

—GR—
Collected and Remitted $42,919.50

Write-Offs $10,669.06

Uncollected at 6/30/93 $45,902.27

TOTAL CREDITS $99,490.83
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Tax Collector's Report
Summary of Tax Accounts

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993

Levies of

Uncollected Taxes

—

1993 1992 Prior

Beginning of Fiscal Year.

Property Taxes $5,926,620.42

Resident Taxes

Land Use Change Tax 61,371.00

Yield Taxes 580.00

Sewer Rents 67,410.00

Hydrant Tax 5,195.00

Commercial Sewer 10,807.58

In Lieu of Taxes 185,189.00

Taxes Committed to Collector.

Property Taxes 14,927,899.00 15,027,635.00

Resident Taxes

National Bank Stock

Land Use Change Tax 5,462.00 114,356.00

Yield Taxes 676.00 13,336.00 3,068.00

Sewer Rent 211,888.50 174,300.00

Hydrant Taxes 22,558.00 27,906.00

Commercial Sewer 170,168.49 23,423.40

In Lieu of Taxes 173,731.00 188,064.00

Added Taxes:

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

Sewer Rents

Overpayments:

a/c Property Taxes 14,726.99 48,246.66

a/c Resident Taxes

a/c Sewer Rents 517.50 982.50

a/c Commercial Sewer 1,610.10 22.50

a/c Hydrant Tax 21.00 14.00

Interest Collected on

Delinquent Taxes 1.22 91,199.01 2,693.89

Penalties Collected on

Property Taxes 2,702.00
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Resident Taxes

Other Taxes

December Property Tax
Prepayments:

Prepayments Applied
from Prior Fiscal Year

Total Debits

1993

552.00

Levies of

1992

274.00

99.00-

Prior

$15,358,033.21 $22,045,109.18 $101,966.37

Remitted to Treasurer During
Fiscal Year.

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

Land Use Change Tax

Yield Taxes

Sewer Rents

National Bank Stock

Hydrant Tax

Commercial Sewer

In Lieu of Taxes

Prepayments

Interest on Taxes

Penalties on Taxes

Discount Allowed:

Abatements Allowed:

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

Yield Taxes

Sewer Rents

Hydrant Tax

Commercial Sewer

Land Use Change Tax

Tax Liens Executed:

Deeded to Town During Year:

Uncollected Taxes End of

Fiscal Year:

Property Taxes

Resident Taxes

National Bank Stock

Land Use Change Tax

9,228,284.75 19,342,019.67

5,462.00 114,356.00 56,371.00

7,251.00 3,648.00

143,079.00 229,012.50

10,762.00 30,822.00

128,150.69 33,701.57

1,879.00 373,253.00

20,091.00 880.34

1.22 91,199.01

2,976.00

2,693.89

5,694,802.24

30,330.79

4,065.00

180.00

22.50 45.00

5,000.00

,648,099.82 506.91
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Levies of

1992 1991 Prior

Yield Taxes 676.00 2,020.00

Sewer Rents 69,327.00

Hydrant Tax 11,817.00

Commercial Sewer 40,470.86

In Lieu of Taxes 171,852.00

$15,358,033.21Total Credits $22,045,109.18 $101,966.37

Summary of Tax Lien Accounts
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1993

Balance of Unredeemed Taxes
of Fiscal Year:

Taxes Sold/Executed to Town
During Fiscal Year:

Subsequent Taxes Paid:

Overpayments:

Interest Collected After

Sale/Lien Executions:

Redemption Cost:

Total Debits

Remittance to Treasurer

During Fiscal Year:

Redemptions

Interest and Cost

after Sale

Abatements During Year:

Deeded to Town During Year:

Unredeemed Taxes End of Year:

Total Credits

$1,595,085.31 $1,095,789.21

$1,788,426.47

723.60

727.30

8.00

77,991.06

12,339.91

759.79

262,378.89

14,975.50

$1,789,150.07 $1,686,151.58 $1,373,903.39

797,756.47

277,354.39

3,812.34

294,980.19

$1,789,150.07 $1,686,151.58 $1,373,903.39

77,313.26 709,713.17

723.60 90,330.97

2,722.82 2,756.19

1,708,390.39 883,351.25
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Marriages Registered in the Town of Merrimack, NH
Year Ending December 31, 1993

Date Groom's Name Residence Bride's Name Residence

Jan

Feb.

Mar.

April

May

1

1

15

16

22

29

10

14

14

20

21

27

27

12

20

20

26

27

27

3

4

17

23

24

24

24

25

25

30

1

1

1

1

1

2

15

15

15

15

15

19

21

21

Claude Howard Jr.

Thomas C. Rose

Judson S. Haight

Michael D. Quick Jr.

Robert A. Wells

Jack S. Rossiter

Merrimack Christine A. Cullity

Merrimack Rachel A. Caron

Merrimack Eleanor M. Silva

Burlington,VT Stephanie M. Debono

Candia Sheila Fixman

Merrimack Sondra L. Wise

Daniel R. Curfman Merrimack

Harlan E. Pierce Milford

Donald J. Voniderstine Milford

Michael P. Maliar Merrimack

James J. Paul Merrimack

Denis L. Lavoie Merrimack

David E. Pilcher Nashua

Roy L. Weeks

Aaron T. Flint

Phillip N. Malatras

Lee F. Higham

Scott D. Gay

Bryan A. Smith

Jason S. Greenleaf

Dennis M. Lambert, Jr.

James F. Powers, Jr.

Lode J. Van Beusekom

Robert M. Lapage

Joseph S. Litman

Jonathan F. Shari

Lawrence E. Hill

James C. Smith

Bruce W. Pollock

Marvin A. King

John B. Manning

James P. O'Meara

David S. Sodders

David A Trepaney

James R. Napolitano

Steven A. Arenburg

James F. Donohue, Jr.

Gordon L. Kirk

Kurtis L. Kitner

Denis J. Laurendeau

Fredric D. Leipziger

Mark K. Arsenault

Willard J. Dubois

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Nashua

Merrimack

Bedford

Lowell, MA
Merrimack

Hudson

Villa Rica, GA
Deny
Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Manchester

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Milford

Merrimack

Merrimack

Sharon C. Ward
Frances E. Kirby

Alison G. Airoldi

Donna M. Oinonen

Melanie A. Hazelton

Carol A. Osga

Lisa M. Therrien

Susan L. Adams

Kim R. Vigneau

Marie A. Barnard

Maureen D. Marcotte

Kelley A. McClary

Kelly M. Torrice

Dawn M. Parent

Christy M. Hadley

Patricia M. Difonzo

Sharon B. Kirwin

Lisa M. Parenteau

Kimberly I. Todd
Aimee G. Mailloux

Louise M. Fontaine

Sally A. Labrie

Diane M. Dalphonse

Vileena A. Laronde

Laura L. Miner

Suzanne R. Lavorgna

Jane E. Harman

Carol T. L'Hussier

Ellen J. Haney

Elizabeth J. Troscianiec

Jody D. Ouellette

DianneM. Bangs

Patricia L. Wallace

Jacalyn K. Briggs

Linda I. Paquin

Katherine A. Smith

Martha A. Fields

Merrimack

Merrimack

Nashua

Colchester, VT
Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Manchester

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Lowell, MA
Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Nashua

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Passadumkeag, ME
Nashua

Merrimack

Merrimack

Bedford

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack
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Date Groom's Name Residence Bride's Name Residence

May 22 William C. Bracket* Merrimack Lisa M. Ruhl Merrimack

22 David E. Giguere Nashua Bobbie-Jo Marquis Merrimack

22 James R. Michalowski Milford Stephanie M. DeSteuben Merrimack

22 James P. St. Laurent, Jir. Merrimack Lea M. Thornton Candia

22 Peter A. Tufts Merrimack Judith A. Kwitkiwski Merrimack

22 Robert J. Wallace Merrimack Dawn A. Hildebrandt Merrimack

28 Jonh F. Cotter Cranston, R.I. Lynda M. Berard Coventry RI

29 Eric A. Bentz Epsom Laurie A. Post Merrimack

29 Arthur D. Gagnon Merrimack Lisa A. Nichols Merrimack

29 Michael R. Mayopoulos Owasso, OK Floris A. Colwell Merrimack

29 Owen F. McDonald Bedford, MA Kimberley W. Dimes Bedford, MA
29 Thomas E. Walker, Jr. Jefferson Heidi L. Hayes Merrimack

29 Michael P. Zayac Bedford Nicole L. Kane Merrimack

June 1 Abraham H. Gershnow Merrimack Jeanne M. Schibener Merrimack

5 Paul R. Ford Derby, CT Jennifer D. Bourque Derby, CT
5 Daniel F. Guenthner Merrimack Stacy A. Moskal Merrimack

5 John E. Hale Waldorf, MD Sue A. Lalmond Merrimack

5 John B. Stewart Manchester Susan L. O'Neil Merrimack

6 Dan Gebow Merrimack Diana L. Roscoe Stoneham, MA
6 Scott R. Hill Merrimack Kelly C. Molan Manchester

12 Robert J. Chambers, Jr. Merrimack Nancy A. Hill Merrimack

12 Abram P. Dancy Merrimack Leigh E. Harrison Merrimack

12 Shaun J. Foley Merrimack Margaret G. Cerchiaro Merrimack

12 Roger L. St. Germain Amherst Sandra K. Haas Merrimack

19 Jeffrey C. Patnaude Merrimack Patricia F. O'Connell Nashua

19 Christopher P. Aucoin Merrimack Tracy A. Key Merrimack

19 Erik J. Higgins Merrimack Samantha J. Doverspike Merrimack

20 Scott R. Libby Merrimack Laurie McPherson Merrimack

23 Louis R. Lund Merrimack Susan J. Guay Merrimack

23 John A. Racana Merrimack Marilyn C. Landry Merrimack

25 Robert I. Scotland England Belinda L. Watts Merrimack

26 Jon W. Arris Merrimack Lisa J. Girard Merrimack

26 Ronald A. Bates Worcester, MA Michele M. Beauvais Worcester, MA
26 Vernon J. Chartrand Merrimack Linda L. Lemieux Townsend, MA
26 Walter N. Fleming Merrimack Cynthia B. Wood Merrimack

26 Mark W. Pfeifer Merrimack Laurie A. Panciocco Nashua

27 Philip C. Liddell Merrimack Michelle D. Dyson Merrimack

July 3 Richard J. Varricchio Merrimack Kimberly L. Nute Merrimack

10 Daniel D. Buckson Merrimack Darlene Leakeas Merrimack

10 Kenneth W. Johnson Merrimack Carolyn J. Steeves Merrimack

10 Steven H. Mack Merrimack Lynda M. Whitney Merrimack

16 Harry W. Armbrust Robbinsdale,MNGladys Nyrop Robbinsdale, MN
16 Brian R. Goulet Merrimack Tracie L. Tuttle Merrimack

16 Robert P. Richards Merrimack Beryl A. Adams Nashua

17 Christopher J. Lee Merrimack Gail P. Oneil Merrimack

17 Michael A. Manchini Merrimack Katherine M. Davidson Merrimack

17 Frederick H. Morse Merrimack Judith J. Eriksen Merrimack

17 David H. Tarbox Merrimack Deborah A. Littlefield Merrimack
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Date Groom's Name Residence Bride's Name Residence

July 17 Anthony R. Zanella Schenectady,NY Nancy J. Housman Scotia, NY
18 Derek S. Chase Merrimack Sherry D. Blais Nashua

23 Louis D. Tanzilli Lowell, MA Kimberly D. Roy Lowell, MA
24 Jeffrey J. Zissulis Merrimack Michelle Y. Collard Nashua

25 Francis R. Hayes Merrimack Vrisiis Williams Merrimack

26 Charles E. Morgan Merrimack Joan M. Morgan Merrimack

31 Gerald F. Daly Merrimack Debbie M. Beaulieu Merrimack

31 Robert H. Figler Jr. Merrimack Lea A. Thomas Merrimack

31 John G. Poirier Merrimack Debra A. Hause Merrimack

31 Robert W. Shields Merrimack Rachel T. L'Heureux Merrimack

31 Daren P. Venne Merrimack Wendy E. Bishop Merrimack

Aug. 7 Emile J. Ethier Merrimack Kimberly J. Hansbury Merrimack

7 Christopher Foret Merrimack Allison R. Smith WoodlandHills,CA

7 David R. Freel Merrimack Sue A. Dugan Merrimack

8 Howard S. Muscott Merrimack Amy J. Shuster Merrimack

13 Robert D. Lietz Merrimack Rebecca L. Titley Merrimack

13 John L. Stanley Merrimack Lorraine D. Lippe Dracut, MA
14 Philip H. Carpentiere Jr . Lyndeboro Sherry A. Vance Merrimack

14 William N. Fajans Merrimack Patricia L. Green Merrimack

14 William W. Johnston Merrimack Paula Ricard Merrimack

14 Thomas O. Kershaw Jr. Merrimack Jacqueline M. Dion Merrimack

14 Kenneth G. Vallancourt St.Petersbuig,FL Denise I. Goulet Merrimack

16 Timothy J. Bourassa Manchester Patricia M. Szymanowski Merrimack

20 David S. Bonner Merrimack Heather M. Barry Merrimack

21 Kevin M. Carlson Merrimack Kristen M. Beland Merrimack

21 Robert G. Johnson Merrimack Kimberly A. Pearce Merrimack

21 Alan C. Legerlotz Merrimack Wendy J. Herman Merrimack

21 James A. Theriault Merrimack Alyn L. Nicoson Merrimack

22 Dana A. Harbeck Merrimack Jodi K. Opsteegh Merrimack

28 Stephen J. Marchesano Merrimack Susan L. Burns Merrimack

29 Phia Moua Merrimack Ka Yang Merrimack

Sept. 4 Aaron N. Duarte Merrimack Jeannie L. Engelhart Nashua

4 Dean R. Killkelley Merrimack Joanne R. Lapointe Manchester

4 Herbert M. Storms Merrimack Joan D. Dusling Merrimack

8 John P. Jones Worcester, MA Brenna M. Borrows Worcester, MA
10 Richard C. Berube Merrimack Fiona L. Petrie Mississauga, Can.

11 John P. Brasier Jr. Deny Dorothy M. Stone Merrimack

11 Samuel H. Cannamucio Merrimack Erin L. Adams Merrimack

11 John D. Tucker Jr. Merrimack Bibi D. Bernier Merrimack

17 Patrick J. Lawrence Manchester M. Lisa Clark Merrimack

18 Daniel R. Hahnl Merrimack Carol A. Gallant Merrimack

18 Todd H. Harral Merrimack Susan E. Tuttle Merrimack

18 Warren M. Ledoux Merrimack Sara A. Yule Merrimack

18 Phillip A. Reiter Manassas, VA Lori A. Ford Manassas, VA
19 Joseph Pascual Central Islip, NY Suzanne Ring Merrimack

25 Steven F. Flagg Reading, MA Jennifer Luke Merrimack

25 Jeffrey P. Miller Merrimack Lynda S. Jasinski Merrimack

26 Herbert D. Martin Merrimack Eileen A. McGahey Merrimack
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Date Groom's Name Residence Bride's Name Residence

2

2

2

2

2

2

2

3

9

9

9

9

10

16

16

23

30

30

5

5

6

9

11

12

13

16

20

20

26

26

27

4

9

10

12

18

18

18

30

30

31

Bertrand A. Clos Jr. Merrimack

John F. Fothergill Brookline

Peter M. Gerbino Nashua

Frank W. Hill Merrimack

Thomas C. Latham Merrimack

Bruce P. Osier Merrimack

Philip D. Worster Merrimack

Harold A. Brodell Merrimack

Stephen G. Bouchard Merrimack

Michael T. Hennas Merrimack

Eric B. Carlson Merrimack

Donald E. Ohda Weare

Christopher B. AndersonMerrimack

Albert J. Caraccio Merrimack

Stephen A. Crawford Merrimack

Jeffrey Sousa Merrimack

Dennis H. Fields Merrimack

Dwayne E. Marrotte Manchester

James A. Murray Sr.

Kevin J. Petrin

William S. Bachilas

James S. Anderson

Charles W. Blitzer

Michael D. Hannagan

Christopher L. Kinsella

Anibal A. Pires Jr.

Philip R. Dubois

Michael J. Masella

Joseph A. Snotherly

Robert A. Struble

Norman R. Roy

Steven D. Patterson

Brent M. Abrahams

Kenneth S. Mazerolle

Daniel P. Snow

Lance R. Farquhar

John N. Fuller

Stephen A. Mast

John F. McCracken

Scott Pellerin

Robert T. Choquette

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Nashua

Merrimack

Salem

Manchester

Merrimack

Nashua

Merrimack

Valrico, FL
Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Mont Vernon

Merrimack

Merrimack

Manchester

Merrimack

Danielle A Gallant

Donna J. Andersson

Debra A. Dillinger

Emelienne M. Gibbons

Stacy R. Hillman

Anne M. Johnson

Kristin P. Frosheiser

Margaret A. Scavone

Patricia J. James

Michele J. Bouvier

Deborah M. Tedeschi

Pamela J. Stevens

Susan C. Schmidt

Michelle D. Spaulding

Laura C. Fournier

Shawna M. Renoux

Rose-Delima Flanders

Michelle M. Enis

Bonnie M. Evans

Susan A. Labonte

Amy J. Duval

Carolyn B. Speer

Tracy S. Donker

Samantha M. Howard

Kelly A. Russell

Mary J. Wylie

Geneva M. Kitchen

Michelle D. Demers

Carol A. April

Kathleen M. Earnshaw

Angele C. Bourgeault

Pamela J. Newkirk

Elizabeth G. Starke

Lourdes A. Tejada

Violet I. Rackliff

Josephine B. Wisseh

Maria I. Salazar

Linda M. Menz
Jane F. Bush

Leise S. Vandole

Mary-Ann A. Margaritis

Merrimack

Chelmsford, MA
Merrimack

Wilton

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Hudson

Nashua

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Hollis

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Ithaca, NY
Merrimack

Merrimack

Valrico, FL
Merrimack

Coleraine, Can.

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Nashua

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack

Merrimack
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Deaths Registered in the Town of Merrimack, NH
Year Ending December 31, 1993

Date Place of Death Name of Deceased

Jan. 1 Manchester George Raymond Rivet

5 Manchester Robert W. Gentleman

5 Nashua James Frank Largy

13 Nashua Viola M. Demanche

15 Merrimack Nancy Marie Hennas

20 Nashua Goldie L. Mallar

21 Lebanon Kathleen Johnson

23 Merrimack Rainer G. Westhoff

29 Manchester Constance Polichronopoulos

Feb. 10 Merrimack Timothy Earl Dwyer

19 Nashua Lena Eva Leblanc

22 Manchester Theresa M. Jones

27 Nashua Mary Donnelly

27 Nashua Willard Charles Edward Lajoie

28 Manchester Roger J. Fradette

Mar. 2 Merrimack Paul Carter Lincoln

2 Nashua Francis M. Malloy

6 Manchester Frank L. Dornik

6 Nashua Justin M. Foster

8 Merrimack Dennis M. Kulsick

10 Nashua Helen A. Herlihy

11 Nashua Ruth A. Brown

11 Merrimack Christine Louise Landry

11 Manchester Dorothy Louise Lozeau

12 Nashua Alice M. Fortin

12 Manchester Marion Helen Streeper

15 Nashua Allen L. Crandlemere

15 Merrimack Erik Cameron Marshall

16 Merrimack Helen Frances Reynolds

31 Merrimack Rita Mary Broad

Apr. 23 Nashua Rosa Margaret Reber

May 2 Manchester Walter Hartley Lohnes

6 Merrimack Raymond A. Houle

14 Nashua Evelyn F. Archbold

29 Merrimack Ronald Alvah Clair

30 Merrimack Michael Francis Victor

June 28 Nashua Ethel Jansen
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Dati Place of Death Name of Deceased

June 28 Merrimack Michael James Parmenter

July 21 Merrimack Bernard Edmund Grant

21 Nashua Sherman D. Peterson

25 Nashua Floyd H. Heath

25 Nashua Arlene Hughes

28 Merrimack Jacqueline Alva Bellavance

31 Nashua Raymond W. Gould

Aug. 5 Merrimack Loretta C. Shea

9 Merrimack Bernadette Ferguson

16 Merrimack Marilyn Hookailo

18 Nashua Richard Edward Fogerty

28 Nashua Helga Jean Williams

Sept. 9 Nashua Raymond A. McCracken Jr.

11 Manchester Gerald D. Gyganowski

14 Nashua Alice L. Smith

15 Nashua Harvey S. Corkum

17 Nashua Dorothy Lillian Mercier

19 Merrimack Roland E. Soucy

Oct. 1 Manchester Roy M. Wyatt

5 Nashua Eva M. Gamache

8 Nashua Thomas William Gannon

8 Bedford Clifford M. Hummel
15 Manchester Marilyn J. Hayward

16 Nashua Richard Francis Perry

24 Nashua Edson L. Ayer

29 Goffstown Ernestine Therrien

Nov. 4 Merrimack James Patrick Stone Jr.

10 Manchester Charles F. Morrill

11 Manchester Donald R. Dwyer

12 Nashua Edith Mary Wood
16 Nashua Colby Robert Golemo

17 Manchester Earle Orrin Nichols

23 Nashua John J. Zwirble

29 Nashua Ruth I. Hazen

Dec. 6 Merrimack James V. Beairsto

14 Nashua Maurice Stobo Mitchell Blair

18 Nashua Daniel Erwin Fitch

26 Goffstown Mary Hart

28 Merrimack Carl Heinrich
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Treasurer's Report
Pooled Cash Account

Balance - July 1, 1992

Receipts:

General Government

Fire Protection Area

Assessing

Fire

Police

Ambulance

Public Works Administration

Highway

Solid Waste Disposal

Sewer

Planning and Zoning

Parks and Recreation

Equipment Maintenance

Code Enforcement

Town Clerk/Tax Collector

Welfare

Health

Interest on deposits and investments

Federal and state aid

Private grants

Transfers from trust funds

Expense reimbursements

Bond proceeds

Performance bonds and deposits

Lease proceeds

Total receipts

Total cash available

Less selectmen's orders paid

Balance - June 30, 1993

$9,184,935.54

488,576.54

41,638.96

2,588.31

432.00

233,432.36

42,927.50

1,552.00

868.77

419,721.21

1,971.912.10

21,748.05

18,374.70

7,000.00

109,443.50

32,923,543.45

23,565.09

16,882.47

234,247.91

1,203,319.50

58,173.56

47,576.49

101,677.38

1,100,000.00

314,305.63

63,303.27

39,446,810.75

48,631,746.29

40,618,834.71

$8,012,911.58
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The cash in each fund is pooled for investment purposes. Interest earned on

pooled deposits and investments is allocated to each fund on the basis of its

relative average monthly equity in the pooled account. Fund equities in

pooled cash at June 30, 1993 and interest earned by each fund during the year

then ended are as follows:

Fund

General Fund

Sewer

Cable Television

Fire Protection Area

Solid Waste Disposal

DARE
Veterans Memorial Park

Camp Sargent Road By-Pass

Incinerator

Road Improvements

Conservation - 80 Acres

Conservation - Special

Total

Interest Eauitv

$196,311.81 $7,536,325.01

226.62 0.00

4.66 8,166.16

497.06 23,476.90

730.78 0.00

63.57 6,612.23

1991.33 6,252.19

16,791.89 0.00

85.17 85.17

18,515.12 410,701.64

183.39 6,019.82

646.51 15,272.46

$234,247.91 $8,012,911.58
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Long-Term Debt Principal and Interest Payment Schedules

$1,110,000 1975 Incinerator Bonds

6.5% Interest - State Guaranteed

Year
Interest

September 1

Principal
September 1

Interest
March 1 Total

1993-94 5,362.50 55,000.00 3,575.00 63,937.50

1994-95 3,575.00 55,000.00 1,787.50 60,363.50

1995-96 1,787.50 55,000.00 0.00 56,787.50

10,725.00 165,000.00 5,362.50 181,087.50

$2,750,000 1977 Sewer Line Extension Bonds

4.875% Interest - State Guaranteed

Year
Interest
August 1

Principal
August 1

Interest
February 1 Total

1993-94 15,233.75 125,000.00 12,188.00 152,421.75

1994-95 12,187.00 125,000.00 9,141.00 146,328.00

1995-96 6,093.50 125,000.00 6,094.00 140,234.25

1997-98 3,046.75 125,000.00 3,047.00 134,140.75

45,701.25 625,000.00 30,470.00 701,171.25

$2,250,000 1980 Sewer Line Extension Bonds

7.12% Interest - State Guaranteed

Year
Interest
July 1

Principal
July 1

Interest
January 1 Total

1993-94 32,256.68 110,000.00 29,260.00 171,516.68

1994-95 29,260.00 110,000.00 25,272.50 164,532.50

1995-96 25,272.50 110,000.00 21,230.00 156,502.50

1996-97 21,230.00 110,000.00 17,132.50 148,362.50

1997-98 17,132.50 110,000.00 12,952.50 140,085.00

1998-99 12,952.50 110,000.00 8,690.00 131,642.50

1999-2000 8,690.00 110,000.00 4,372.50 123,062.50

2000-2001 4,372.50 110,000.00 0.00 114,372.50

151,166.68 880,000.00 118,910.00 1,150,076.68
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$3,000,000 1985 Road Improvement Bonds

7.5% - 7.7% Interest

Year
Interest
August 1

Principal
February 1

Interest
February 1 Total

1993-94 22,950.00 300,000.00 22,950.00 345,900.00

1994-95 11,550.00 300,000.00 11,550.00 323,100.00

34,500.00 600,000.00 34,500.00 669,000.00

$3,000,000 1987 Road Improvement Bonds

5.40% - 7.25% Interest

Year
Interest
July 15

Principal
July 15

Interest
January 15 Total

1993-94 57,172.50 330,000.00 46,282.50 433,455.00

1994-95 46,282.50 330,000.00 35,062.50 411,345.00

1995-96 35,062.50 330,000.00 23,595.00 388,657.50

1996-97 23,595.00 330,000.00 11,962.50 365,557.50

1997-98 11,962.50 330,000.00 0.00 341,962.50

174,075.00 1,650.000.00 116,902.50 1,940,977.50

$3,500,000 1988 Sewer Line Extension Bonds

6.95% - 7.05% Interest

Year
Interest
July 15

Principal
July 15

Interest
January 15 Total

1993-94

1994-95

1995-96

5,287.50

3,525.00

1,762.50

10,575.00

50,000.00

50,000.00

50,000.00

150,000.00

3,525.00

1,762.50

0.00

58,812.50

55,287.50

51,762.50

165,862.505,287.50
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$1,550,000 1989 Gamp Naticook Bonds

9.5% Interest

Year
Interest
July 2

Principal
January 2

Interest
January 2 Total

1993-94 65,684.00 66,632.00 65,684.00 198,000.00

1994-95 62,519.00 72,962.00 65,519.00 198,000.00

1995-96 59,054.00 79,892.00 59,054.00 198,000.00

1996-97 55,259.00 87,482.00 55,259.50 198,000.00

1997-98 51,103.00 95,794.00 51,103.00 198,000.00

1998-99 46,553.00 104,894.00 46,553.00 198,000.00

1999-2000 41,571.00 114,858.00 41,571.00 198,000.00

2000-2001 36,115.00 125,770.00 36,115.00 198,000.00

2001-2002 30,141.00 137,718.00 30,141.00 198,000.00

2002-2003 23,599.00 150,802.00 23,599.00 198,000.00

2003-2004 16,436.00 165,128.00 16,436.00 198,000.00

2004-2005 8,593.00 180,896.00 8,593.00 198,000.00

496,627.00 1,382,828.00 496,627.00 2,376,082.00

$1,550,000 1989 Gamp Naticook Bonds

9.5% Interest

Year
Principal
March 31

Interest
March 31 Total

1993-94 42,973.93 21,092.56 64,066.49

1994-95 46,546.84 17,519.65 64,066.49

1995-96 50,416.82 13,649.67 64,066.49

1996-97 54,608.54 9,457.95 64,066.49

1997-98 59,148.79 4,917.70 64,066.49

253,694.92 66,637.53 320,332.45

$121,393 1991 Computer/Telephone System Lease/Purchase Agreement

8.4393% Interest

Principal Interest
Year March 31 March 31 Total

1993.94 43,783.37 3,695.00 47,478.37
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$906,500 1991 Aeration System Lease/Purchase Agreement
8.0699% Interest

Year
Principal
March 15

Interest
March 15 Total

1993-94 72,838.99 62,685.47 135,524.46

1994-95 78,717.38 56,807.08 135,524.46

1995-96 85,070.18 50,454.28 135,524.46

1996-97 91,935.68 43,588.78 135,524.46

1997-98 99,355.25 36,169.21 135,524.46

1998-99 107,373.60 28,150.86 135,524.46

1999-2000 116,039.07 19,485.39 135,524.46

2000-01 125,403.90 10,120.56 135,524.46

776,734.05 307,461.63 1,084,195.68

$121,393 1991 Computer/Telephone System Lease/Purchase Agreement
8.4393% Interest

Year
Principal
June 6

Interest
June 6 Total

1993-94 15,038.21 2,648.31 17,686.52

1994-95 16,308.64 1,377.88 17,686.52

31,346.85 4,026.19 35,373.04

$1,460,000 1991 Road Improvement Bonds

6.5% Interest

Year
Interest

August 15
Principal
August 15

Interest
February 15 Total

1993-94 42,575.00 150,000.00 37,700.00 230,275.00

1994-95 37,700.00 145,000.00 32,987.50 215,687.50

1995-96 32,987.50 145,000.00 28,275.00 206,262.50

1996-97 28,275.00 145,000.00 23,562.50 196,837.50

1997-98 23,562.50 145,000.00 18,850.00 187,412.50

1998-99 18,850.00 145,000.00 14,137.50 177,987.50

1999-2000 14,137.50 145,000.00 9,425.00 168,562.50

2000-2001 9,425.00 145,000.00 4,712.50 159,137.50

2001-2002 4,712.50 145,000.00 0.00 149,712.50

212,225.00 1,310,000.00 169,650.00 1,691,875.00
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$1,100,000 1992 Road Improvement Bonds

5.0% - 5.4% Interest

Year
Interest

January 15
Principal
January 15

Interest
July 15 Total

1993-94 28,105.00 110,000.00 31,696.19 169,801.19

1994-95 25,355.00 110,000.00 25,355.00 160,710.00

1995-96 ' 22,605.00 110,000.00 22,605.00 155,210.00

1996-97 19,855.00 110,000.00 19,855.50 149,710.00

1997-98 17,105.00 110,000.00 17,105.00 144,210.00

1998-99 14,355.00 110,000.00 14,355.00 138,710.00

1999-2000 11,550.00 110,000.00 11,550.00 133,100.00

2000-01 8,745.00 110,000.00 8,745.00 127,490.00

2001-02 5,885.00 110,000.00 5,885.00 121,770.00

2002-03 2,970.00 110,000.00 2,970.00 115,940.00

156,530.00 1,100,000.00 160,121.19 1,416,651.19

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE

Year Principal Interest Total

1993-94

1994-95

1995-96

1996-97

1997-98

1998-99

1999-2000

2000-01

2001-02

2002-03

2003-04

2004-05

Total

1,471,266.50

1,439,534.86

1,140,379.00

1,054,026.22

1,074,298.04

577,267.60

595,897.07

616,173.90

392,718.00

260,802.00

165,128.00

180,896.00

617,608.96

513,095.61

412,628.70

338,172.73

265,009.66

204,596.86

162,352.39

118,350.56

76,764.50

53,138.00

32,872.00

17,186.00

2,088,875.46

1,952,630.47

1,553,007.70

1,392,198.95

1,339,307.70

781,864.46

758,249.46

734,524.46

469,482.50

313,940.00

198,000.00

198,082.00

8,968,387.19 2,811,775.97 11,780,163.16
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June, 30 1993

Town Hall:

Land and buildings 1,231,867

Furniture and equipment 627,812

Library:

Land and buildings 530,071

Furniture and equipment 166,034

Police Department:

Land and buildings 86,900

Equipment 865,391

Ambulance 259,089

Fire Department:

Land and buildings 95,802

Equipment 1,014,342

Landfill 936,383

Parks, commons, and playgrounds 2,622,359

Highway Department:

Land and buildings 259,170

Equipment 1,661,247

Emergency Management equipment 47,206

Sewer plant and facilities 32,189,007

Land and buildings acquired through Tax Collector's deeds:

Robin Lane 6C/302, 6C/303, 6C/316, 6C/317 2,940

Turkey Hill Road 4C/233 9,710

Burt Street 5C/270 5,590

Old Blood Road 5B/231, 5B/009 10,400

Valleyview Drive 5C/142 4,850

Valleyview Drive 5C/137 4,940

Valleyview Drive 5G/138-K4 lots) 12,940

Valleyview Drive 5C/150 4,880

Brewster Street 6D/188-1 5,640

Rita Street 6D/1 63 7,580

Weston Street 6D/391-2 14,230

Ingham Road 3C/030-1 220

Lawrence Road 7B/001 690

Mayhew Road 6A-2/092-01 550

MayhewRoad6A-2/110 132

Pearson Road 7D/1 66-2 235
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Longa Road 6A-2/1 28 200

Bedford Road 6D/233-1 455

Woodhaven Circle 6D/052 2,840

Pine Trial Road 6A-2/025 34

Newton Street 4C/352 25

Jebb Road 6A-2/158 2,581

Daniel Webster Highway 6E-2002 12,963

South Grater Road 5A/009 28, 702

Greenwood Drive 6A-1/097 166

Cobblestone Place 6A/085-02 4,674

Cobblestone Place 6A/085-04 4, 745

Cobblestone Place 6A/085-03 4,655

Carter Road 6A-2/087 549

Carter Road 6A-2/088 5,422

Donald Road 6A-1/133 263

Amherst Road 3A/051 994

Wilson Hill Road 5A/066 1

Greenfield Drive 7D/197 731

Sunnydale Drive 5D-3/093 1,025

Greenfield Drive 7D/198 725

Cottonwood Lane 3D/025-EB-04 1,878

Cross Street 4C/157 810

Riverside Drive 4B/077-1 402

Greenfield Drive 7D/196 718

Waterville Drive 7D/1 29 532

Belmont Drive 6D/286 1 , 753

Daniel Webster Highway 7E/056 313

Davis Road 6D/429-1 14

Northwood Drive 4C/1 16 254

Turkey Hill Road 4C/142 756

Greenfield Drive 7D/236 725

Total 42,758,112
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1993 Summary Inventory of Valuation

Land 426,457707

Buildings 707,115,680

Public utilities:

Water 1,553,000

Gas 2,101,100

Electric 9,817,600

Total valuation before exemption 1,147,045,087

Exemptions allowed:

Blind 60,000

Elderly 5,882,600

Disabled servicemen 133,000

Total exemptions allowed 6,075,600

Net valuation on which tax rate is based 1,140,969,487

Net Assessed Valuation History

1993A 1,140,969,487

1992 1,634,805,805

1991 1,631,537,851

1990 1,623,054,803

1989 B 1,609,532,654

1988 628,790,284

1987 590,884,826

1986 536,460,879

1985 476,434,301

1984 433,028,396

1983 403,180,435

1982 388,767,938

1981 363,434,663

1980 359,864,537

1979 348,566,138

A - Reflects general 30% valuation reduction

B - Reflects property revaluation
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s= Statements of Appropriations, =
Estimated Revenues,

and Property Tax Assessed For1993

Appropriations

Election and voter registration

Property revaluation

Legal expense

Planning and zoning

General government building maintenance

Historic preservation

Other general government

Police

Ambulance

Fire

Communications

Code enforcement

Emergency management

Fire protection area

Highways and streets

Equipment Maintenance

Public works administration

Solid waste disposal

Sewer

Public health

Direct welfare assistance

Parks and recreation

Library

Patriotic purposes

Cable television

Conservation

Principal - long - term bonds and lease obligations

Interest - long - term bonds and lease obligations

Interest - tax anticipation notes

Bond registration

Capital outlay

Transfer to capital reserve funds

Total appropriations

$10,280

181,195

78,900

219,716

134,488

2,607

866,396

2,283,609

254,982

1,956,494

248,024

116,415

5,534

44,974

1,660,592

245,073

124,798

391,560

2,266,297

106,539

163,070

493,114

526,045

9,000

11,912

10,883

1,471,266

617,611

50

750

5,160,454

497,000

$20,159,628
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Tax Rate History

A - Reflects general 30% valuation reduction

B - Reflects property revaluation

Year School Municipal Gountv Total

1993A 18.98 7.44 2.39 28.81

1992 12.61 4.22 1.61 18.44

1991 12.71 4.14 1.59 18.44

1990 11.24 4.15 1.54 16.93

1989B 11.46 4.16 1.37 16.99

1988 27.63 8.61 2.39 38.63

1987 23.77 7.42 2.99 34.18

1986 22.92 6.59 2.14 31.65

1985 22.19 5.61 2.05 29.85

1984 21.83 5.35 1.97 29.15

1983 21.10 6.39 1.99 29.48

1982 19.90 6.70 1.60 28.20

1981 20.90 6.70 1.40 29.00

1980 19.00 6.20 1.30 26.50

1979 16.90 6.40 1.20 24.50
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Vachon, Clukay & Co., pc

Certified Public Accountants

45 Market Street

Manchester. New Hampshire 03101

(603) 62? 7070

August 18, 1993

Town Manager and Finance Director

Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire

In planning and performing our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the

Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire for the year ended June 30, 1993, we considered the

Town's internal control structure to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the general purpose financial statements and not to provide assurance

on the internal control structure.

However, during our audit we became aware of several matters that are opportunities

for strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. The memorandum that accompa-
nies this letter summarizes our comments and suggestions regarding those matters. We previ-

ously reported on the Town's internal control structure in our report dated August 18. 1993.

This letter does not affect that report or our report on the general purpose financial statements

dated August 18, 1993.

Sincerely,

V^OlLtf&ft
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Town Manager and Finance Director

August 18, 1993

PAYROLL FORMS

Employment Eligibility Forms

Observation:

We previously reported that the Town does not consistently obtain 1-9 forms (Employment
Eligibility Verification Forms) for part-time employees hired during the year. During the

current audit, we noted that 1-9 forms were still not obtained for part-time employees. Our
sample selected for testing contained eight part-time employees, none of which had completed
1-9 forms.

Implication:

The 1-9 forms became effective on November 5, 1986. These forms, which are required by
federal regulations, must be completed for any person hired after that date. Although the

Town is obtaining these forms for full-time employees, the 1-9 form does not distinguish

between full-time and part-time employees. Therefore, the Town is still not in complete
compliance with the requirement.

Recommendation:

We again recommend that the Town obtain the 1-9 form as part of the hiring procedures.
Although the employees may be temporary, the forms must be obtained and retained by the

Town as proof of eligibility for employment. The Town may consider establishing a file for

all temporary employees where these forms may be available and retained for the required

number of years.

Town Response:

A procedure, which prevents the compensation of a new hire without the completion of an 1-9

form, has been implemented.

PURCHASE ORDERS

Observation:

The Town has adopted a purchase order policy requiring all items greater than $50 be accom-
panied by a purchase order. As part of our audit procedures, we tested compliance with the

Town's purchase order policy. We were unable to locate purchase orders for several items
tested in our sample.

Implication:

The purchase order system provides management with a means of controlling expenditures.
The purchase order serves as an authorization that a purchase may be made and that an appro-
priation exists.

Recommendation:

The Town may consider increasing the purchase order limit as many purchases are above the
current $50 limit. An amount that is less restrictive may enable the department heads to

213



Town Manager and Finance Director

August 18. 1993

complete the purchase orders without disrupting the daily operations of the department. As the

Town has adopted a purchase order policy, it should be enforced to insure that the departments
comply with the policy.

Town Response:

An increase in the expenditure amount precipitating the issuance of a purchase order will be
seriously considered. Measures will be taken to ensure that all expenditures are in strict

compliance with the purchase order policy.

TAX OVERPAYMENT REFUNDS

Observation:

We noted that the Town currently refunds all tax overpayments collected, regardless of the

amount. According to New Hampshire State Law, RSA 80:57 (Refund of Overpayments), no
refund is required for tax overpayments of $5.00 or less, unless the taxpayer submits a written

request for the refund within sixty days of the overpayment.

Implication:

The Town may be creating more work and additional costs, such as preparing the check and
postage, than the refund warrants. By eliminating such disb

some of the time required to account for these overpayments.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Town adopt a policy in accordance with RSA 80:57, whereby no
refund of tax overpayments of $5.00 or less will be made unless written notice is received

from the taxpayer. These overpayments may be included as interest and costs for accounting

purposes. This will eliminate unnecessary paperwork for insignificant overpayment amounts.

Town Response:

If a careful study of all related factors discloses no material problems, the recommended policy

will be promptly implemented.

LIBRARY BANK RECONCILIATIONS

Observation:

We were unable to locate a formal bank reconciliation for the library checking account. We
were informed that the bank balance is reconciled to the checkbook balance, but the bank
reconciliations are not kept as part of the accounting records.

Implication:

Without formal written bank reconciliations, there is no documentation that the procedure was
done. The bank reconciliation serves as a means of detecting errors or omissions. We were
able to reconcile the library cash accounts with an immaterial variance.
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Recommendation:

We recommend that formal bank reconciliation be kept as part of the accounting records. The
bank reconciliation may be done on the back of the bank statement and therefore will be avail-

able for the audit.

Town Response:

Monthly bank reconciliations are now being maintained by the Library.

TOWN CLERK COMPUTER PROGRAM

Observation:

During the year, the Town Clerk office began using a computer program for automobile regis-

trations. The program allows the permit fee to be automatically computed based on list price,

months and mileage which is entered into the computer. We noted that the field which con-

tains the total permit fee is not protected in any way and may be altered.

Implication:

The lack of protection on this field allows any amount to be entered for a permit fee. To
insure that the proper fee is being charged and not being altered, this field should be protected.

Recommendation:

We recommend that this field be protected so that the total permit fee cannot be easily altered.

The program may be written so that a specific code is necessary to override this field.

Town Response:

This problem has since been rectified.

ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES AND POLICIES MANUAL

Observation:

We previously reported that the Town does not currently have a formal accounting procedures
and policies manual. The Town has still not developed a procedures and policies manual.

Implication:

The purpose of a procedures manual is to reduce the occurrence of a breakdown in daily opera-
tions should there be a failure in the system. The procedures and policies manual will provide
the necessary information for the internal controls to continue to work as designed.

Recommendation:

The Town may consider developing an accounting procedures and policies manual to insure
that the daily operations will continue.
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Town's Response:

It is recognized that a manual of accounting policies and procedures is important to internal

accounting controls. Such a manual will be developed in the near future.

GENERAL FIXED ASSET ACCOUNT GROUP

Observation:

As noted in prior years, the Town does not maintain its investment in general fixed assets.

Implication:

Generally accepted accounting principles require that the Town record general fixed assets in

the General Fixed Asset Account Group. The inventory of property and equipment enhances
the controls over the fixed assets of the Town.

Recommendation:

We recommend that the Town complete its inventory of fixed assets so they may be included

in the general purpose financial statements. Once the inventory is completed, a policy regard-

ing the capitalization of fixed assets should be adopted so the records may be maintained
throughout the year.

Town's Response:

Fixed asset accounting for the Sewer Fund was completed several years ago, and progress has

been made in recent years in inventorying other fixed assets of the Town. It is expected that a

computerized, fixed assets accounting system will be in place by June 30, 1994.
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Vachon, Clukay & Co., pc

Certified Public Accountants

45 Market Street

Mnnrhester. Now Hampshire 03101

(603)622 '070

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Selectmen and Town Manager
Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying general purpose financial statements of the Town of

Merrimack, New Hampshire as of and for the year ended June 30, 1993. These general

purpose financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of Merrimack, New Hamp-
shire's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these general purpose
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and
the provisions of Office of Management and Budget Circular A-128, "Audits of State and
Local Governments." Those standards and OMB Circular A-128 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements.

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall general purpose financial statement presenta-

tion. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

The general purpose financial statements referred to above do not include the financial

statements of the General Fixed Asset Account Group which should be included to conform
with generally accepted accounting principles. The amount that should be included is not

known.

As described in Note 1, the Town has recognized tax revenues of $1,653,675 which
were not received in cash within sixty days of year end as is required by generally accepted

accounting principles (GASB Interpretation 3). Town Officials believe, and we concur, that

the application of this accounting principle, which would result in a decrease in the General
Fund balance to ($1,272,767), would give a misleading impression of the Town's ability to

meet its current and future obligations.

In our opinion, except for the omission of the financial statements described in the third

paragraph, the general purpose financial statements referred to in the first paragraph present

fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the fund types and account groups of

the Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire as of June 30, 1993 and the results of its operations

and the cash flows of its non-expendable and pension trust fund types for the year then ended
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.

August 18, 1993
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EXHIBIT B
TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

All Governmental and Similar Trust Fund Types

For the Year Ended June 30. 1993

Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental revenues

Charges for services

Miscellaneous revenues

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Current

General government

Public safety

Highways and streets

Health and welfare

Sanitation

Culture and recreation

Capital outlay

Debt service:

Principal of debt

Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Proceeds from debt financing

Operating transfers in

Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing

Sources (Uses)

Fiduciary Totals

Governmental Fund Types Fund Types (Memorandui

For the Year
TiOnly^

s Ended

Special Capital Expendable June 30 ,

General Revenue Projects Trust 1993 199?

$6,147,432 $157,646 $6,405,078 $6,703,429

1.834,203 375 1.834378 1.702,973

1,105,540 69351 $70,815 1.245.906 1,176,025

501.820 2,730342 3.232,162 3,045,904

778,350 42,469 43,098 $48,612 912,529 818.250

10.367,345 3,100383 113.913 48,612 13,630,253 13.446,581

1365,231 1365,231 1,446,253

4,688,739 59.208 26,420 4,774367 4,458,210

1,926,414 1.926.414 2,030356

234368 682 235.250 337,057

2379399 2,379399 2,632.832

875,771 115,605 991376 937,680

436,095 94,146 1,456,641 286,263 2,273,145 1362,803

895,093 447,075 1342.168 1,174,588

431,703 205,057

3301372

8,014

1,464,655

644,774

16.132,324

704,749

11,053,614 312,683 15.284,528

(686,269) (200,989) (1350,742) (264,071) (2302,071) (1,837,947)

1,100,000 1.100,000 1.460,000

67,513 424,138 491,651 989,507

(174,138) (250,000) (67313) (491.651) (989,507)

(174,138) (182,487) 1,032,487 424,138 1.100,000 1,460,000

Excess of Revenues and Other

Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balances - July 1 as

restated (Note 9)

Fund Balances — June 30

(860,407) (383,476) (318,255) 160,067 (1,402,071) (377,947)

1,241315 609393 697,510 1,570,178 4,118,596 4,524343

$380,908 $226,117 $379,255 $1,730,245 $2,716325 $4,146,596

See notes to financialstatements
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EXHIBITD
TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances

All Non-Fjrpcndable and Pension Trust Funds
For the Year Fndcd June 30. 1993

Operating Revenues:
Contributions

Investment income
Other operating revenue

Operating Expenses:

Contractual services

Operating Income

Non- Operating Income (Expense):

Bequests
Gain (loss) on investment transactions

'Total Non -Operating Income (Expense)

Net Income
Fund Balances - Jury 1 as restated (Note 9)
Fund Balances - June 30

EXHIBIT E
TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement of Cash Flows

All Non -Expendable and Pension Trust Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 1993

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Cash received from trust investments

Cash contributions received

Other miscellaneous cash receipts

Cash paid to suppliers

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non Capital Financing Activities:

Bequests

Net Cash Provided by Non Capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:

Net (increase) decrease in investment securities

Gain (loss) on investment transactions

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and
Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, July I

Gish and Cash Equivalents, June 30

Reconciliation of Net Operating Income to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Net Operating Income

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Change in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) Decrease in due from other funds
(Decrease) in accounts payable

Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
Net Cash Provided

Sec notes to financial statements

Non —
Expendable

Trust

$70329

J*5,423

Pension

$114,750
55,999

Totals

(Memorandum Only)
For the Years Ended June 30,

1993 1992

105.752 170.749

51.954 43.099

53.798 127,650

1,200

(8.282)

(7.0821

2,719

2,719

46.716 130,369

1,009,056 691,317

$1.055.772 ~1821.6§6~

$114,750

126,328
-"»5,423

ZT76£°j_

95,053

181.448

$68,274

137,803

206,077^

144.903

61.174

1.200

.(5,563)

.(4,363)

177,085

1.700373
"ST377.458"

1J75_
1.175

62.349

1.638,024

! 1 .700.373.

Non-
Expendable

Trust

Pension

Trust

Totals

(Memorandum Only)
For the Years E.ndcd June 30,

1993 1992

$70,329

35,423

(53,564)

52,188

$53,722

59,716

5.584

(43,099)

75,923

$124,051

59,716

41,007

(96,663)

128,111

$131,335

136.144

7.181

(201.902)

72J583

U00 1,200

1,200 1,200

12,783

(8,282)

4.501

114,066

2,719

1 16\785

126,849

(5.563)

121,286

(50,870)

1J75
_(49,695J

57,889

256,879

$314,768

192,708

238,021

$430,729
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$53,798 $127,650 $181,448 $61,174
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NOTE 1-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire conform to generally

accepted accounting principles for local governmental units, except as indicated hereinafter.

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies:

Financial Reporting Entity

The Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire (the "Town") was incorporated in 1746. The Town
operates under the Town Meeting/Town Manager form of government and performs local

governmental functions authorized by State law.

The accompanying financial statements of the Town present the financial position of the var-

ious fund types and account groups, the results of operations of the various fund types, and the

cash flows for non -expendable and pension trust funds.

The financial statements include those of the departments governed by the Board of Selectmen

and other officials with financial responsibility. The Town has no other organizational units

which meet criteria for inclusion in the financial statements as defined by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of
which is a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a

separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund balance, reve-

nues, and expenditures/expenses. Accordingly interfund receivables and payables have not
been eliminated. The various funds are summarized by type in the financial statements. The
memorandum totals included in the financial statements are presented only for informational
purposes and are not intended to represent the financial position, results of operations or the

cash flows of the Town as a whole.

Individual funds and account groups summarized in the financial statements are classified as
follows:

Governmental Funds

General Fund - used to account for all revenues and expenditures which are not accounted for

in other funds or account groups.

Special Revenue Funds - used to account for specific restricted revenues and expenditures for

various purposes. The following funds have been accounted for as Special Revenue Funds:

Sewer Operating Fund Solid Waste Disposal Fund
Library Fine Fund Naticook Day Camp Fund
Fire Protection Area Fund Cable Television Fund
DARE Fund
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Capital Projects Funds - used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition

or construction of major capital facilities and equipment. The Town accounts for the follow-

ing construction projects in its Capital Projects Funds.

Incinerator Fund Veteran's Memorial Park Fund
Road Pavement Management Fund Camp Sargent Road Fund

Fiduciary Funds

Assets held by the Town in a fiduciary capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organi-

zations, and other governmental units, and/or other funds for various purposes and taxes col-

lected for other governmental units. Receipts and expenditures of each fund are governed by
statutes, local law, or the terms of the gift.

Trust Funds - Expendable Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as

governmental funds. The non-expendable funds are accounted for and reported as proprietary

funds since capital maintenance is critical. These include non-expendable and pension trust

funds.

Agency Funds - The Town collects taxes for Merrimack School District and Hillsborough

County, both independent governmental units, which are remitted to them as required by law.

These funds are accounted for as agency funds. Other agency funds account for the deferred

compensation plan assets and school agency funds.

Account Groups

Account groups are not funds; they do not reflect available financial resources and related

liabilities, but are accounting records of general fixed assets and general long-term obligations,

respectively. The following is a description of the account groups of the Town.

General Fixed Asset Account Group - The Town does not record the acquisition of fixed assets

in the General Fixed Asset Account Group, as required by generally accepted accounting
principles. Fixed assets acquired or constructed for general government services are recorded

as expenditures in the fund making the expenditure. Funds used to acquire general fixed assets

and/or debt service payments on borrowings in connection therewith are accounted for as

expenditures in the year payments are made.

General Long-Term Debt Account Group - used to record the outstanding long-term obligations

of the Town.

Basis of Accounting

The accrual basis is used for the non-expendable and pension trust funds. The measurement
focus of these funds is determination of net income, financial position and cash flows ("capital

maintenance" focus).

Governmental funds utilize the modified accrual basis whereby revenues are recorded when
susceptible to accrual, i.e., both measurable and available. Available means collectible within

the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.

Expenditures, other than interest on long-term debt, are recorded when the liability is incurred,

if measurable.
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In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and
contractual requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There
are, however, essentially two types of revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the

specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the Town, therefore, revenues

are recognized based upon the expenditures recorded. In the other, monies are virtually unre-

stricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with

prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of

receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

Licenses and permits, charges for services, and miscellaneous revenues (except investment

earnings) are recorded as revenues when received in cash because they are generally not

measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded as earned, since they are

measurable and available. (See Property Taxes for property tax accrual policy.)

During the course of normal operations, the Town has transactions between funds, including

expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct assets, and service debt.

The accompanying governmental and fiduciary funds financial statements reflect such transac-

tions as transfers. Non-expendable trust funds report these transactions as revenues and ex-

penses.

Total columns on the accompanying financial statements are captioned "Memorandum Only"
to indicate that they are intended to facilitate financial analysis, lnterfund eliminations have
not been made at arriving at the data and it is not intended to present financial position, results

of operations or changes in financial position in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles.

Budgetary Data

The budget represents departmental appropriations as authorized by annual or special Town
meetings. The Selectmen may transfer funds between operating categories as they deem
necessary. The Town adopts its budget under regulations of the New Hampshire Department
of Revenue Administration which differ somewhat from generally accepted accounting princi-

ples in that the focus is on the entire governmental unit rather than on the basis of fund types.

Special revenue fund budgets are adopted only for funds under the control of the Board of
Selectmen. Budgets for capital projects funds are adopted in the year the project is authorized
and may extend over multiple accounting periods. Following is a reconciliation between the

budget as presented for reporting purposes and the adopted budget.

Total May 14, 1992 Annual Town Meeting $14,590,732
Supplemental Appropriations RSA 31:95b 165,615

Total Budget - Legal Basis 14,756,347
Add (Deduct) Timing Differences

Continued Appropriations

July 1, 1992 488,373
June 30, 1993 (215,571)

General Fund $11,299,318
Special Revenue Funds 3,729,831

Total Budget - Report Basis $15,029,149
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State law requires balanced budgets but permits the use of beginning fund balance to reduce
the property tax rate. For the year ended June 30, 1993, the Town applied $422,630 of its

unappropriated general fund balance to reduce taxes.

Reconciliation of Exhibit C to Exhibit B

Expenditures shown on the Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balances - Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - General and Special Revenue Funds
(Exhibit C) are reported on the basis budgeted by the Town. Special Revenue Fund balances

differ from those reported in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the

Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Govern-
mental Fund Types (Exhibit B) as follows:

Special Revenue Fund

Fund balances June 30, 1993 Budgetary

Basis Exhibit C $214,070
Adjustments:

Library Fine Fund not budgeted 12,047

Fund balances June 30, 1993 GAAP
Basis Exhibit B $226,117

Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders and other commitments for the expend-
iture of monies are recorded in order to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation, is

employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in Governmental Funds. Encum-
brances outstanding at year end are reported as a component of fund balance since they do not

constitute expenditures or liabilities and are detailed by fund type and function as follows:

General government
Public safety

Highways and streets

Sanitation

Culture and recreation

Capital outlay

Statement of Cash Flows

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of demand
deposits and certificates of deposit. A reconciliation for Non-expendable Trust Funds is as fol-

lows:

Special Capital

General Revenue Projects

Fund Funds Funds
$3,122

64
5,403

$47,195
139

4,773 $31,526

$13,501 $47,195 $31,526
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Cash - demand deposits $111,861

Investments in certificates of deposit 202,907

Cash and cash equivalents, per Exhibit E $314,768

Assets, Liabilities and Fund Equity

Investments - Investments are stated at cost in all funds other than the pension trust and de-

ferred compensation agency funds which record investments at market. Certificates of deposit

with a maturity of greater than ninety days from the date of issuance are included in invest-

ments.

Taxes Receivable - Taxes levied during 1992 and prior and uncollected at June 30, 1993 are

recorded as receivables net of reserves for estimated uncollectibles of $1 ,009,437.

Inventory - The Town accounts for fuel, equipment repair parts, and stabilized base material

inventories under the consumption method on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventories are record-

ed at cost and are not reported as a reserved component of fund balance as is required by
generally accepted accounting principles.

Deferred Revenue - The Town has recorded deferred property tax revenues of $14,927,899 due
July 1, 1993, which is the first installment of 1993-1994 taxes. Other deferred revenue con-

sists of receivables which will be recognized when earned.

Revenues, Expenditures and Expenses

Property Taxes - Taxes are levied on the assessed value of all taxable real property as of the

prior April 1 ($1,634,805,805 as of April 1, 1992) and were due in two installments on July 1

and December 1 . Taxes due after the due dates accrue interest at 12% per annum.

Under State law, the Tax Collector obtains tax liens on properties which have unpaid taxes in

the following calender year after taxes were due for the amount of unpaid taxes, interest and
costs. These priority tax liens accrue interest at 18% per annum. If the property is not
redeemed within a two year redemption period, the property is tax deeded to the Town.

The Town has accrued taxes of $1,653,675 (net of allowances for estimated uncollectibles of

$1,009,437) in the General Fund which do not meet the susceptible to accrual criteria of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The net effect of not recognizing the tax receiva-

bles would result in an undesignated General Fund deficit of $1,574,880 and might mislead the

user of these financial statements as to the Town's financial position. This understatement
might give the user of these financial statements a misleading impression about the Town's
ability to meet its current or future obligations. Under existing State law, the Town will either

receive full payment or acquire an ownership interest in the property in lieu of payment in

1995. Prior history indicates that a substantial portion of overdue taxes are paid before this

date.

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave - Employees earn vacation and sick leave as they provide
services. Provision is made in the annual budget for vacation and sick leave. The estimated
value of accumulated compensated absences at June 30, 1993 is $589,295 and has been re-

corded in the General Long-Term Debt Account Group.

10
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NOTE 2 -STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

Deficit Fund Balances - As of June 30, 1993 the following individual funds were in a deficit

position.

Deficit

Special Revenue Funds:

Solid Waste Disposal Fund $29,367
Capital Projects Funds:

Incinerator Fund 9,911

Special Revenue Funds - The deficit in the special revenue funds results from an unanticipated

shortfall in solid waste fees in prior years.

Capital Projects Funds - The deficit in the Incinerator Fund is a result of a timing difference in

revenue recognition for the State share of the project.

NOTE 3 -CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The Town maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use of all governmental
fund types which under state law are in the custody of the Town treasurer. Each fund type's

portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet as "Equity in pooled cash and
investments". If a cash deficiency occurs it is recorded as an interfund balance. Investment
earnings are allocated to each fund on the basis of average monthly balances. The deposits and
investments of the Library Trustees Fund, the Capital Reserve and Insurance Expendable Trust

Funds, the Non-expendable Trust Funds, the Pension Trust Fund and the Deferred Compensa-
tion Agency Fund are held separately from those of other Town funds.

The Town's deposit and investment policies are governed by New Hampshire state law and
written policies adopted by the Board of Selectmen. The policy for Governmental Fund Types
requires that deposits and investments be made in institutions that are participants in federal

insurance programs. A maximum of $2,000,000 may be invested without perfected collateral

in any one bank. An unsecured deposit or an investment of more than $100,000 must meet
criteria set by the Board of Selectmen regarding the bank's financial condition. Investments
for other funds are at the discretion of the trustees of those funds.

At year end, the carrying amount of all the Town's cash deposits was $2,904,214 and the bank
balance was $1,885,527 of which $1,302,012 was insured or collateralized with securities

held by an agent in the Town's name and $583,515 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

The Town's investments are categorized to provide an indication of the level of risk assumed
by the Town of Merrimack. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or

for which the securities are held by the Town or its agent in the Town's name. Category 2

included uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the bro-

ker's or dealer's trust department or agent in the Town's name. Category 3 includes uninsured

or unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its

trust department or agent but not in the Town's name.

11
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Certificates of deposit

U.S. Treasury securities

Corporate bonds

Corporate stock

Mutual funds

Guaranteed investment

contracts

Repurchase agreements

Land

ICMA deferred

compensation plan

Book value of cash

and deposits

Total cash and investments

1

$503,917

1.521,227

30.000

469,479

88,869

5,911,645

$8,525,137

Category

2

$201,908

106,997

$308,905

Carrying Market

Amount Value

$503,917 $503,917

1,521.227 1,542,004

231.908 232.683

469,479 1,071.823

88.869 101,189

106.997 106.997

5,911,645 5,911.645

8.834,042 9,470,258

1,575 667.239

492.694 492,694

9,328,311 $10,630,191

2,904,214

$12,232,525

NOTE 4--EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

The Town has a non-contributory defined benefit pension plan for all non-union employees
who are not a member of another retirement plan, who have completed a year of service,

worked 1,000 or more hours in the plan year, and have attained the age of 21. The Town
makes actuarially determined annual contributions to the pension plan equal to the maximum
amounts allowed by the Internal Revenue Code. Significant actuarial assumptions are described

below. Covered wages under the plan were $1,91 1,778 or 28% of total wages paid to all

employees of $6,817,314. Pension costs of $1 14,750 include current service costs, which are

accrued and funded on a current basis, and prior costs, which are amortized over ten years.

The pension plan provides pension and death benefits. A member may retire after reaching the

age of 55 and five years participation in the plan. Benefits vest at 100% after 5 years of serv-

ice. Employees who retire at or after age 55 with 15 or more years of service are entitled to

pension payments for the remainder of their lives equal to 30% of their final five-year average

compensation, reduced for less than 15 years of service. The plan provides a death benefit

equal to the present value of the deceased member's total accrued benefit.

Contributions from the Town are recognized as revenue in the period in which employees
provide services to the Town. Investment income is recognized as earned by the pension plan.

The net appreciation (depreciation) in the fair value of investments held by the pension plan is

recorded as an increase (decrease) to investment income based on the valuation on investments
as of the date of the balance sheet. (See Note 1 for investment composition). There are no
investments with parties related to the pension plan.

12
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The pension benefit obligation is the present value of future benefits used in the actuarial

valuation for July 1, 1991, as permitted by generally accepted accounting principles for small

plans. This pension valuation method reflects the present value of estimated pension benefits

that will be paid in future years as a result of employee services performed to date and is

adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases attributable to inflation. Significant actu-

arial assumptions used in the valuation include a rate of return on pre and post retirement

assets of 7.5% annually, no pre-retirement withdrawal assumed and 4% level increase in salary

scale. The unfunded pension benefit obligation at June 30, 1993 is as follows:

Present Value of Future Benefits

Active plan participants $1,919,650
Terminated members due immediate payouts 1 ,703

Pension benefit obligation 1 ,92 1 ,353

Net assets available for benefits (821 ,686)

Unfunded pension benefit obligation $1,099,667

No changes in actuarial assumptions or benefit provisions that would significantly affect the

valuation of the pension benefit obligation occurred during the year.

Additional information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board follows

these notes. This information is presented to enable the reader to assess the progress made by
the Town in accumulating sufficient assets to pay pension benefits as they become due.

New Hampshire Retirement System

The Town participates in the New Hampshire Retirement System, which is a multi-employer

defined benefit pension plan. The system covers substantially all full-time permanent fire and
police employees. The Plan, which is a cost sharing, multiple-employer Public Employee
Retirement System (PERS), is divided into two membership groups. Group I consists of non-

public safety employees. Group II consists of public safety officers. It requires that both the

Town and employees contribute to the plan which provides retirement, disability and death

benefits.

Group I - Members contributing through age 60 qualify for normal service retirement allow-

ance based on years of creditable service. The yearly pension amount is 1/60 (1.67%) of
average final compensation (AFC) multiplied by the years of creditable service. AFC is de-

fined as the average of the three highest salary years. At age 65 the yearly pension amount is

recalculated at 1/66 (1.5%) of AFC multiplied by the years of creditable service. Members in

service with 10 or more years creditable service who are between age 50 and 60 are entitled to

a retirement allowance with appropriate graduated reduction based on years of creditable serv-

ice.

Group II - After attaining the age of 45, members with 20 years of creditable service qualify to

receive a retirement allowance at a rate of 2.5% of AFC for each year of creditable service,

not to exceed 40 years. Members in service at age 60 qualify to receive a prorated retirement

allowance.

Members of both groups are entitled to disability allowances and also death benefit allowances
subject to various requirements and rates based on AFC or earnable compensation. The State

13
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of New Hampshire funds 35% of employer costs for public safety officers (Group II) em-
ployed by the Town. The State does not participate in funding the employer cost of other

Town employees (Group I).

The Town's current year covered wages were $2,905,585, 42.6% of total wages of

$6,817,314. Employee contributions were $266,580. Employee contribution rates were 9.3%
and 5% of covered wages for public safety and general employees respectively. The Town's
contribution to this plan was $143,099. The Town's contribution rate for police, fire and
general employees was 3.48%, 6.81%, and 2.83% respectively.

The amount of total pension benefit obligation is based on a standardized measurement estab-

lished by GASB Statement 5, Disclosure of Pension Information by Public Employee Retire-

ment Systems and IjocoI Governmental Employers that must be used by a PERS. The standard-

ized measurement is the actuarial present value of creditable projected benefits. This pension

valuation method reflects the present value of estimated pension benefits that will be paid in

future years as a result of employee services performed to date, and is adjusted for the effects

of projected salary increases. A standardized measure of the pension benefit obligation was
adopted by the GASB to enable readers to (a) assess the PERS funding status on a going-
concern basis, (b) assess progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when
due, and (c) make comparisons among other PERS and among other employers.

The Plan's total benefit obligation and net assets available for pension benefits as of June 30,

1992 are as follows (in millions) (The Town's portion of these amounts is not determinable):

Net assets available for pension benefits,

at market value $ 1 ,654

Total pension benefit obligation 1,600

Net assets in excess of pension

benefit obligation $54

The measurement of the total pension benefit obligation is based on the June 30, 1991 actuarial

valuation and related forecast updated for June 30, 1992. The funding method was changed to

an open group aggregate funding method. In addition, economic and forecast assumptions and
forecast valuation salary scales were revised to better reflect actual experience of the Plan.

The New Hampshire Retirement System began compiling historical trend information in their

1987 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. When issued, the fiscal year 1993 report will

include seven years of trend data. The information will eventually include ten years of data

and will be useful in assessing the Plan's progress in accumulating sufficient assets to pay
pension benefits as they become due.

Deferred Compensation Plan

All Town employees are eligible to participate in a separate deferred compensation plan creat-

ed in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan permits them to defer a
portion of their salary which is not available to them until termination, retirement, death or
unforeseen emergency. All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan and income at-

tributable to those amounts remain property of the Town until made available to the covered
employees. Participants rights are equal to those of general creditors of the Town. Plan assets

are accounted for in the Deferred Compensation Agency Fund.

14
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NOTE 5-GENERAL DEBT OBLIGATIONS

Changes in Long-term Debt - The changes in long-term obligations for the year ended June 30,

1993 were as follows:

Balance Obligations Obligations Balance

7/1/92 Issued Retired 6/30/93
Debt $7,943,678 $1,100,000 $1,180,850 $7,862,828
Capital Lease 1,266,877 161,318 1,105,559

Total $9,210,555 $1,100,000 $1,342,168 $8,968,387

General Ijong-term Obligations

General Obligation Debt - payable at June 30, 1993 is comprised of the following individual

issues:

$1,1 10,000 1975 State Guaranteed Incinerator Sewer Bonds due
in annual installments of $55,000 through September 1, 1995;
interest at 6.5%. (This issue is wholly funded by an annual grant

from the State of New Hampshire) $165,000

$2,750,000 1977 State Guaranteed Sewer Line Extension Bonds
due in annual installments of $125,000 through August 1, 1998;
interest at 4.875% 625,000

$2,250,000 1980 State Guaranteed Sewer Line Extension Bonds
due in annual installments of $110,000 through July 1, 2000;
interest at 7. 12% 880,000

$3,000,000 1985 Road Improvement Bonds due in annual install-

ments of $300,000 through February 1, 1995; interest at 7.5% to

7.7% 600,000

$3,300,000 1987 Road Improvement Bonds due in annual install-

ments of $330,000 through July 15, 1997; interest at 5.4% to

7.25% 1,650,000

$350,000 1988 Sewer Line Bonds due in annual installments of

$50,000 through July 15, 1995; interest at 6.95% to 7.05% 150,000

$1,550,000 1989 Camp Naticook Bond due in annual installments

of $50,750 - $180,899 through January 2, 2005; interest at 9.5% 1,382,828

$1 ,460,000 1991 Road Improvement Bonds due in annual install-

ments of $150,000 through August 15, 1993 and $145,000 through
August 15, 2001; interest at 6.5% 1,310,000
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$1,100,000 1992 Road Improvement Bond due in annual install-

ments of $1 10,000 through January 15, 2003; interest at 5.0% to

5.4% 1,100,000

$7,862,828

Capital Lease Obligations - represent lease agreements entered into for the financing of

equipment acquisitions. These contracts are subject to cancellation should funds not be appro-

priated to meet payment obligations. Amounts are annually budgeted in applicable depart-

ments. Following are individual capital leases at June 30, 1993:

Computer Equipment lease, 8.4%, due in annual installments of

$47,478, maturing in March, 1994 $43,783

Aeration System lease, 8.07%, due in annual installments of
$135,524, maturing in March, 2001 776,734

Recycling Facility lease, 8.3%, due in annual installments of
$64,066, maturing in March, 1998 253,695

Computer lease, 8.44%, due in annual installments of $17,687,
maturing in June, 1995 31,347

$1,105,559

Summary of Debt Service Requirements to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize all outstanding long-term obligations as of June 30, 1993
including interest of $2,81 1,782 are as follows:

Year Ending Capital

June 30. Debt Leases Total

1994 $1,824,119 $264,756 $2,088,875
1995 1,735,352 217,277 1.952,629
1996 1,353,420 199,591 1,553,011
1997 1,192,609 199,591 1,392,200
1998 1,139,717 199,591 1,339,308

1999-2003 2,651,488 406,573 3,058,061
2004-2005 396,085 396,085

$10,292,790 $1,487,379 $11,780,169

Authorized and Unissued Debt - As of June 30, 1993, the Town has long-term debt author-
ized but unissued as follows:

Composting Facility $4,950,000
Highway 40,000
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Interfund

Receivables

$602,946

Interfund

Payables

$80,249

602
32,486

480,436
51,449

157

80,249
103,992

$716,283 $716,283
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Available Debt Margin - The Town is subject to State statue which limits debt outstanding to

a percentage (dependent on purpose) of a valuation calculation made annually by the State.

As of June 30, 1993 the Town had an available debt margin of $15,704,107 for general pur-

poses. Debt incurred for sewer expansion is not included in the limitation calculations.

NOTE 6-INTERFUND BALANCES

Interfund receivables/payables at June 30, 1993 were as follows:

Fund
General Fund
Special Revenue Funds:

Sewer Operating Fund
Solid Waste Disposal Fund
Naticook Day Camp Fund

Trust and Agency Funds:

Expendable Trust Funds
Pension Trust Fund

Total

NOTE 7 -NON-EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

The principal amounts of all Non-expendable Trust Funds are restricted in that only income
earned may be expended. Principal and income balances at June 30, 1993 were as follows:

Fund A
Fund B
FundC
Other Funds

NOTE 8 -UNRESERVED DESIGNATED FUND BALANCES

Appropriations for certain projects and specific items not fully expended at year end are car-

ried forward as continuing appropriations to the next year in which they supplement the appro-

priations of that year. At year end, continuing appropriations are reported as a component of

fund balance and are as follows:

General Fund:

General government $30,000
Public safety 4,685
Highways and streets 71,300
Health and welfare 250
Culture and recreation 2,000
Capital outlay 68,836

17

Principal

$199,499
23,352

249,570
203,110

$675,531

Income
$101,351

7,929
61,620

209,341

$380,241

Total

$300,850
31,281

311,190
412,451

$1,055,772
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TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 1993

177,071

Less revenues not susceptible to accrual (35,280)

Total General Fund $ 14 1 ,79

1

Special Revenue Funds:

Sewer Fund $20,000
Solid Waste Fund 18,500

Library Fine Fund - Restricted Donation 308

Total Special Revenue Funds $38,808

Expendable Trust Funds:

Landfill $237,658
Highway Equipment 400,515
Fire Equipment 156,655

Ambulance 69,450
Waste Water Treatment Plant 753,905

Conservation Trust 21,292
Property Reappraisal 49,611

Insurance Trust Funds 24,648
Land Bank 16,411

Total Expendable Trust Funds $1,730,145

NOTE 9-RESTATEMENT OF FUND BALANCES

Certain bequests held by the Merrimack Library Trustees as permitted by State law have been

reclassified for reporting purposes from the Special Revenue Funds to the Non-Expendable
Trust Funds. Totals Memorandum Only columns of the prior year have been restated to give

retroactive effect to the reclassification.

NOTE 10-PERFORMANCE BONDS

The Town holds performance bonds from developers until projects have been completed to

Town standards. Due to the nature of the bonds they are not included as part of the financial

statements. As of June 30, 1993, the performance bonds are comprised of the following:

Letters of credit $480,329
Cash deposits 5,717
Surety bond 11,512

$497,558

18
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TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 1993

NOTE 11 -COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Town officials estimate that any potential claims against the Town which are not covered hy
insurance are immaterial. Certain tax assessments are the subject of appeal to the New
Hampshire Board of Land and Tax Appeals. In the event that the Town's assessment was not

upheld the amounts would be charged to operations or the allowance for estimated uncollecti-

ble taxes in the year the decision is rendered.

NOTE 12 -TOP TAXPAYERS

The following are the five major property owners as they relate to the 1992 assessed property

valuation of $1,634,805,805:

Taxpayer
Digital Equipment Corp.

Anheuser Busch, Inc.

Lockheed Sanders, Inc.

Nashua Corporation

New Hampshire Merrimack River

Limited Partnership

Percentage

1992 Property of Total

Valuation Valuation

$84,136,383 5.15%
80,323,500 4.91%
33,605,200 2.06%
33,320,100 2.04%

17,518,800 1.07%

19
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Vachon, Clukay & Co., pc

Certified Public Accountants

45 Market nireet

Manchester, Now Hampshire 03101
f/.(v\\ s?';> 70/0

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD

To the Board of Selectmen and Town Manager
Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire

The historical pension information on page 21 is not a required part of the general

purpose financial statements of the Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire but is supplementary
information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied

certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding

the methods of measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

^/fldurn

August 18, 1993
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Vachon, Clukay & Co., pc

Certified Public Accountants

d'i Muikel Street

M'lry hester. New Hampshire 03101
lY'H) w? 7070

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

To the Board of Selectmen and Town Manager
Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire

Our report on our audit of the general purpose financial statements of the Town of

Merrimack, New Hampshire as of June 30, 1993 and for the year then ended appears on page

one. That audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose finan-

cial statements of the Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire taken as a whole. The supplemen-
tal schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis

and are not a required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Town of Merri-

mack, New Hampshire. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures ap-

plied in the audit of the general purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly

stated in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a

whole.

*&*>, (?jUL,<g,Pc

August 18, 1993
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SCHEDULES
TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combining Balance Sheet - All Capital Projects Funds

June 310, 1993

Road Pavement Veteran's Combining Totals

Incinerator Management Memorial June 30,

Fund Fund Park Fund 1991 1992

ASSETS

Equity in pooled cash and investments $85 $410,702 $6,252 $417,039 $712,730

Accounts receivable 255

$410,95.1 Z^IsT
255

$417,294Total As.sc Is $85 $712,730

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Retainagc payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved for encumbrances

Unreserved

Undesignated (Deficit)

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and

Fund Balances

$27,399 $144 $27,543

$9,996 9,9% $13,220

500

_.
27 .899 ~144

500

"38,039

2,000

_9,996 15,220

31,526 31.526 16.923

(9,911) 351.532 6,108 347,729 680.587

(9,911) 383,058 6,108 J179.255 697,510

$85 _$4lOJ?57_ $6,252 $417,294 _ $712,730
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SCHEDULE

4

TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund feAnccs

All Capital Projects Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 1993

Combining Totals

Road Pavement Veteran's For the Years Fndcd

Incinerator Management Memorial Camp Sargent June 30,

Fund Fund Park Fund Road Fund 1993 1992

Revenues:

Intergovernmental revenues

Charges for service

Miscellaneous revenues

Total Revenues

F.xpenditures:

Capital outlay

Interest and fiscal charges

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Proceeds of long-term debt

Operating transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

$70,815 $70,815 $74,390

50

$18,515

18~515

$7,791

7,79
1"

$16,792

]6,792^

43,098

_ £13,913^

40.549

70,815 114,989

299,426 1,794 1,155.421 1.456,641 44.671

1,794

8.014 8.014

1,464,655

6.113

_ 299,426 50.784

70,815 (280,9M) 5,997 (1,146,643) (1,350,742) 64,205

1,100.000 1. 100.000 1.460.000

(67.513) (67,513)

1,032.487

(71.087)

(67.5J3) 1,100.000 1.388.913

Excess of Revenues and Other

Sources Over (Under)

Expenditures and Other Uses

Fund Balances (Deficit) - July 1

Fund Balances (Deficit) - June 30

3,302 (280,911)

Q3.213) 663,969

($9.9111 $383,058

5,997 (46.643) (318.255) 1.453.1 18

111 46.643 JS97.510 (755,608)

$6,108 _$__Z~ _l?2?i255' IJ<»97,5i0
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SCHEDULES
TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combining Halancc Sheet - All Trust and Agency Funds

June 30. 1993 '

ASSETS

Non- Deferred Combining lota Is

Expendable Expendable Pension School Compensation June 30,

Trust Funds Trust Funds Trust Fund Agency Fund Agency Fund 1993 1992

Cash and equivalents

Equity in pooled cash and

investments

Investments

Accounts receivable

Hue from other funds

Total Assets

$241,021 $111,861 $430,729 $783,611 $328,816

21.292 21.292 29,949

1,571,824 943,91

1

308.905

1.803

$99,334 $492,694 3.416,668

1,803

3,371,329

5,110

80,249

$821,686 $492,694

80.249

$4,303,623

25,441

$1,834,137 $1,055,772 $99,334 $3J60,645

I.IAD1I ITIES AND FUND BALANCES

liabilities:

Accrued liabilities

Deferred revenue

Due to others

Due to other funds

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Reserved for endowments

Reserved for employees'

retirement

Unreserved

Designated

Undesignated

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and

Fund Balances

$103.992

103,992

1.730,145

$675,531

380.241

1,730,145 1,055,772

$1,834,137 $1,055,772

$99,334

~99,334~

$821,686

_8?_L686_

$821.686

$492,694 $492,694 $397,444

226

99.334 75.000

~~492,694~

103.992

696,020

17,424

490,094

675,531 624.824

821.686 691.317

1,730.145 1,570,178

380,241 384,2*2

"3,607,6(13 3,270,551

$99,334 $492,694 $4,303,623 .$3,760,645
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SCHEDULE

6

TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Project -Length Schedule of Construction Projects

All Capital Projects Funds

Beginning of Projects to June 30, 1993

Revenues and Other Financial Sources:

Environmental Protection Agency grants

State of New Hampshire grants

Private grants

Proceeds of general obligation bond issues

Interest income

Transfers in

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues and Other

Financial Sources

Expenditures:

Engineering and construction

Bond issue costs

Bond/bond anticipation note interest

Transfers out for bond principal and interest

Total Fxpcnditurcs

Fund Balance (Deficit)

Incinerator

Fynd(D

$4,219,326

1,685.880

286,241

1,110,000

126,401

7,427,848

Road Pavement Veterans

Management Memorial

Fund Park Fund

$7,760,000

1,046,603

40,000

2,700

"8^849303

5,664,915 7,998,129

6,945 38,881

85.262 429,235

1,680,637
~
7,437,759

($9,911)

~~8i466,245"

$383,058

$87,206

9,462

Camp
Sargent

Road Fund

$1,100,000

163,717

_96.668 1,263,717

90.560 1,155,421

9.422

98,874

90,560

$6,108

1,263,717

(1 ) Fhc Town's portion of net project costs, including bond principal and

interest, has been reimbursed by grants from Anhcuser- Bused, Inc.
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Vachon, Clukay & Co., pc

Certified Public Accountants

/lf> Market St'eet

Manchester, New Hampshire 03101

(<W) a?? /fVO

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

To the Board of Selectmen and Town Manager
Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire

We have audited the general purpose financial statements of the Town of Merrimack.
New Hampshire as of and for the year ended June 30, 1993, and have issued our report there-

on dated August 18, 1993. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility of

the Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire's management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these general purpose financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards,

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and

tHt provisions of Office of Management and Budget Circular A- 128, "Audits of State and
Local Governments." Those standards and OMB Circular A- 128 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the general purpose financial

statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,

evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general purpose financial statements.

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe

that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose
financial statements of the Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire taken as a whole. The
accompanying schedule of federal financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional

analysis and is not a required part of the general purpose financial statements. The informa-
tion in that schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the

gAfceral purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly presented in all material

respects in relation to the general purpose financial statements taken as a whole.

*rh k, xa>w»y y £V r C

August 18, 1993
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TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance

For the Year Ended Jane 30, 1993

Federal Assistance Programs

Federal

Catalogue

Number

Balance

Julyl,

1992

Revenues

Balance

June 30,

ARency/Grant Piogram/Title Federal State Local Expenditures 19°3

FEDERAL EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENTAGENCY
Pass Through Payments from State of

New Hampshire Executive Department
- Office of Emergency Management

Disaster Assistance Program 83.5 16 $9,138 $1,464 $1,464 $12,066

DEPAR1MENTOF JUSTICE
Pass Through Payments from State

Drug Control and System Improvement-

Formula Grant 16.579

Clean Sweep 31,973 39,243 71,216

DARE 16,789 31,813 48.602

Drug Task Force 45,177 15,205

86,261

60.382

93.939 180,200

DEPARTMENTOF TRANSPORTATION
Pass Through Payments from State

State and Community I lighway Safety 20.600

Total Federal Financial Assistance

3,771 6.097 9.868

J106.848 $1,464 ^3,822 S202J.M.

Sec notes to schedule of federal financial assistance
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TOWN OF MERRIMACK, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
June 30, 1993

NOTE I-GENERAL

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance presents the activity of all federal

financial assistance programs of the Town of Merrimack, New Hampshire. The Town of
Merrimack's reporting entity is defined in Note 1 to the Town's general purpose financial

statements. All federal financial assistance was passed through State of New Hampshire
agencies and is included on the schedule.

NOTE 2-BAS1S OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance is presented using the modified
accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the Town's general purpose finan-

cial statements.

NOTE 3--RELATIONSIIIP TO GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Federal financial assistance revenues are reported in the Town's general purpose financial

statements as intergovernmental revenues of the general fund.

31
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== Municipal Services ==^====
Telephone Directory

Town Manager 424-2331

Finance Department 424-2331

Assessor 424-5136

Building Inspector 424-3531

District Court 424-9916

Fire Department 424-3690

Highway Garage 424-941

1

Planning & Zonning Department 424-3531

Police Department 424-3774

Public Works Department 424-5137

Selectmen's Office 424-2331

Town Clerk/Tax Collector 424-3651

Wastewater Treatment Facility 883-8196

Water District 424-9241

Emergency Telephone Numbers

If your telephone exchange begins with 424 or 429

Dial 9-1-1

All others dial 424-2222

Office Hours

Town Clerk/Tax Collector Mon - Fri 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.

Second and fourth Mondays 7-9 p.m.

Assessor's Office Mon - Fri 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.

Building Inspector Mon - Fri 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.

District Court Mon - Fri 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.

Library Mon - Thu 9:00 a.m. - 9:00 p.m.

Fri and Sat 9:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m.

Planning and Zoning Department Mon - Fri 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.

Public Works Department Mon - Fri 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.

Selectmen's Office Mon - Fri 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.

Solid Waste and Recycling Tue - Sat 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.

Water District Mon - Fri 8:30 a.m. - 4:30 p.m.



Your 1993 Tax Dollar

School $18.98

66%

County $2.39

8%$

Municipal $7.44

26%

Total Tax Rate $28.81 per $1,000


